
 
7275 W. MAIN STREET, KALAMAZOO, MI 49009-9334 
269-216-5220           Fax 375-7180         TDD 375-7198 

www.oshtemo.org 
 

 
 
 
 

NOTICE 
OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, March 28, 2019 

6:00 p.m. 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 

5. Approval of Minutes:  March 14, 2019 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING: Agritourism Ordinance 
Consideration of a new ordinance to regulate agritourism as conditional and special uses 
within the Township.  
 

7. Old Business 
a. Lighting Ordinance – draft review 

 
8. Any Other Business 

a. Maple Hill South Overlay Zone – draft review 
 

9. Planning Commissioner Comments 
 

10. Adjournment 



Policy for Public Comment 
Township Board Regular Meetings, Planning Commission & ZBA Meetings 

All public comment shall be received during one of the following portions of the Agenda of an open meeting:  

a. Citizen Comment on Non-Agenda Items or Public Comment – while this is not intended to be a forum for dialogue
and/or debate, if a citizen inquiry can be answered succinctly and briefly, it will be addressed or it may be delegated
to the appropriate Township Official or staff member to respond at a later date. More complicated questions can be
answered during Township business hours through web contact, phone calls, email (oshtemo@oshtemo.org), walk-
in visits, or by appointment.

b. After an agenda item is presented by staff and/or an applicant, public comment will be invited.
At the close of public comment there will be Board discussion prior to call for a motion. While comments that include
questions are important, depending on the nature of the question, whether it can be answered without further
research, and the relevance to the agenda item at hand, the questions may not be discussed during the Board
deliberation which follows.

Anyone wishing to make a comment will be asked to come to the podium to facilitate the audio/visual capabilities 
of the meeting room.  Speakers will be invited to provide their name, but it is not required.   

All public comment offered during public hearings shall be directed, and relevant, to the item of business on which 
the public hearing is being conducted.  Comment during the Public Comment Non-Agenda Items may be directed to 
any issue. 

All public comment shall be limited to four (4) minutes in duration unless special permission has been granted in 
advance by the Supervisor or Chairperson of the meeting.  

Public comment shall not be repetitive, slanderous, abusive, threatening, boisterous, or contrary to  the orderly 
conduct of business.  The Supervisor or Chairperson of the meeting shall terminate any public comment which does 
not follow these guidelines.  

(adopted 5/9/2000) 

(revised 5/14/2013) 

(revised 1/8/2018)

Questions and concerns are welcome outside of public meetings during Township Office hours through phone 
calls, stopping in at the front desk, by email, and by appointment. The customer service counter is open from 
Monday-Thursday 8:00 am- 5:00 pm, and on Friday 8:00 am-1:00 pm. Additionally, questions and concerns are 
accepted at all hours through the website contact form found at www.oshtemo.org, email, postal service, and 
voicemail. Staff and elected official contact information is provided below. If you do not have a specific person to 
contact, please direct your inquiry to oshtemo@oshtemo.org and it will be directed to the appropriate person.   

Oshtemo Township 

Board of Trustees 

Supervisor   
 Libby Heiny-Cogswell  216-5220      libbyhc@oshtemo.org  

Clerk   
Dusty Farmer   216-5224       dfarmer@oshtemo.org   

Treasurer   

 Grant Taylor 216-5221     gtaylor@oshtemo.org   

Trustees   

Deb Everett 375-4260     deverett@oshtemo.org  

Zak Ford  271-5513     zford@oshtemo.org

Ken Hudok       548-7002     khudok@oshtemo.org

Township Department Information 
Assessor: 

Kristine Biddle 216-5225  assessor@oshtemo.org

Fire Chief: 

Mark Barnes 375-0487  mbarnes@oshtemo.org

Ordinance Enf: 

Rick Suwarsky  216-5227   rsuwarsky@oshtemo.org
Parks Director: 

Karen High 216-5233   khigh@oshtemo.org
     Rental Info      216-5224   oshtemo@oshtemo.org

Planning Director: 

Julie Johnston 216-5223    jjohnston@oshtemo.org

Public Works: 

Marc Elliott 216-5236    melliott@oshtemo.org

Cheri L. Bell 372-2275 cbell@oshtemo.org

mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
http://www.oshtemo.org/
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
mailto:libbyhc@oshtemo.org
mailto:dfarmer@oshtemo.org
mailto:ncoshtwp@oshtemo.org
mailto:dboshtwp@oshtemo.org
mailto:%20%20%20%20%20deverett@oshtemo.org
mailto:zford@oshtemo.org
mailto:khudok@oshtemo.org
mailto:assessor@oshtemo.org
mailto:mbarnes@oshtemo.org
mailto:rsuwarsky@oshtemo.org
mailto:khigh@oshtemo.org
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
mailto:jjohnston@oshtemo.org
mailto:melliott@oshtemo.org


1 
 

OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
MINUTES OF A MEETING HELD MARCH 14, 2019 
 
 
Agenda  
 
SPECIAL USE REVIEW: CONSUMERS CREDIT UNION 
BOSCH ARCHITECTURE, REPRESENTING CONSUMERS CREDIT UNION, 
REQUESTED SPECIAL USE AND SITE PLAN APPROVAL FOR THE 
REDEVELOPMENT OF THEIR EXISTING BUILDING LOCATED AT 5018 WEST 
MAIN STREET, TO INCLUDE DRIVE THROUGH TELLER WINDOWS.  
PARCEL NO. 3905-13-280-062. 
 
SITE PLAN REVIEW: METRO TOYOTA 
HURLEY & STEWART, REPRESENTING METRO LEASING, LLC, REQUESTED 
SITE PLAN APPROVAL FOR THE PROPOSED AUTOMOBILE SALES LOT AT 5924 
STADIUM DRIVE. PARCEL NO. 3905-25-305-031. 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
A meeting of the Oshtemo Charter Township Planning Commission was held Thursday, 
March 14, 2019, commencing at approximately 6:00 p.m. at the Oshtemo Charter 
Township Hall. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Bruce VanderWeele, Chair 
    Ron Commissaris 
    Keisha Dickason 

  Dusty Farmer, Secretary (Remotely via teleconference) 
  Micki Maxwell 
  Mary Smith, Vice Chair 

MEMBER ABSENT:  Ollie Chambers   
 

Also present were Julie Johnston, Planning Department Director, James Porter, 
Township Attorney, and Martha Coash, Meeting Transcriptionist. Nine other persons 
were in attendance. 

 
Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 Chairperson VanderWeele called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00 p.m. 
and invited those present to join in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance.” 
 
Agenda 
 
 The Chair determined there were no changes to the agenda and let it stand. 



2 
 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
 
 The Chair asked if any member of the audience cared to address the Board on a 
non-agenda item. Hearing none, he moved to the next agenda item. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of February 28, 2019 
 

The Chair asked if there were any additions, deletions or corrections to the 
Minutes of February 28, 2019. Hearing none, he asked for a motion. 

 
  Mr. Commissaris made a motion to approve the Minutes of February 28, 2019 as 
presented. Ms. Maxwell supported the motion. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
 Chairperson VanderWeele moved to the next agenda item and asked Ms. 
Johnston to review the application. 
 
SPECIAL USE REVIEW: CONSUMERS CREDIT UNION 
BOSCH ARCHITECTURE, REPRESENTING CONSUMERS CREDIT UNION, 
REQUESTED SPECIAL USE AND SITE PLAN APPROVAL FOR THE 
REDEVELOPMENT OF THEIR EXISTING BUILDING LOCATED AT 5018 WEST 
MAIN STREET, TO INCLUDE DRIVE THROUGH TELLER WINDOWS.  
PARCEL NO. 3905-13-280-062. 
 
 Chairperson VanderWeele asked Ms. Johnston to review the proposed site plan. 
 
  Ms. Johnston said Consumer Credit Union (CCU), located at 5018 West Main 
Street, would like to demolish their existing building in order to redevelop the site.  Due 
to the complete redevelopment of the site, Special Use approval for the drive through 
teller windows and site plan approval for the overall site is required. 
 
 The applicant requested variances from the setback and landscape buffer 
requirements to assist with site redevelopment.  As this is a small corner parcel, the 
Zoning Board of Appeals felt these variances were needed. The following variances 
were granted: 
 

• A 103-foot setback from the centerline of Drake Road, resulting in a needed 17-
foot variance. 

• A 149-foot setback from the centerline of West Main Street, resulting in a needed 
21-foot variance. 

• A landscape buffer variance for the east property line that tapers from the 
required 20-foot buffer down to a 1-foot buffer, resulting in a maximum 19-foot 
landscape buffer variance. 

• A five-foot landscape buffer for the south property line, requiring a 15-foot 
variance.   

• A six-foot landscape buffer for the west property line, requiring a four-foot 
variance. 



3 
 

 The proposed site design provides a smaller building footprint with the teller 
windows in the rear yard, allowing for better site circulation.  In addition, landscape 
buffers have been added to the development and parking is now in the front and east 
side yard.  A pedestrian connection is planned from the existing sidewalk along West 
Main Street to the site.  This connection will need to be thoroughly detailed on the site 
plan, with appropriate striping through the parking lot.   
 

Ms. Johnston explained the lot is legal non-conforming. The provided site plan 
actually brings the property more into compliance with the Zoning Ordinance then in its 
current configuration.  While variances were needed, the placement of the reduced 
sized building and redevelopment of the landscape buffers will more closely meet 
current ordinance requirements than the existing conditions. 
 
 Per Ordinance requirements, concrete is planned for the accessible spaces near 
the front of the building.  While the site plan provides a color distinction between those 
areas intended to be asphalt or concrete, there is no key on the site plan.  While staff 
assumes the darker shaded areas are concrete, a key would confirm this hypothesis. 
 
 Ms. Johnston reported the Special Use considerations outlined in the Zoning 
Ordinance have been met.  As this is an existing financial institution located within a 
commercial corridor of the Township, there are no compatibility concerns.  In addition, the 
site plan helps to bring the site more into compliance with current codes, assisting with 
compatibility with adjacent uses.  
 
 Ms. Johnston noted there were a few concerns still outstanding with the site plan.  
The applicant provided an elevation drawing meeting the requirements of the ordinance, 
so that concern has been handled.  In addition, information related to the fire lane was 
provided allowing that condition to be removed from the list of concerns.  The remaining 
items include: 
 
1. A key to indicate the difference between proposed surfaces on the site plan.  This is 

to ensure that the accessible spaces are developed as concrete per Ordinance 
requirements. 
 

2. Complete striping through the entirety of the parking lot for the pedestrian 
connection from the sidewalk on West Main Street to the entrance of the building. 
 

3. The photometric plan:  
a. Needs to reach 0.1 foot-candles at all property lines.   
b. Ground mounted or building mounted lighting needs to be resolved. 
c. Details of any building or ground mounted lighting needs to be provided. 
d. A note needs to be placed on the plan that all lighting will be full cut-off and 

downward directed.   
e. A note needs to be placed on the plan related to reduced lighting during 

nonbusiness hours.  
 



4 
 

 Ms. Johnston said if the Planning Commission was amenable to approving the site 
plan, Staff recommended attaching the follow conditions as outlined in the staff report to 
address the remaining concerns: 
 

1. A revised site plan be provided before the issuance of a building permit with the 
following: 
 

a. A key to indicate the difference between proposed surfaces. 
 

b. Complete striping through the entirety of the parking lot for the pedestrian 
connection from the sidewalk on West Main Street to the entrance of the 
building. 
 

2. A revised photometric plan be provided before the issuance of a building permit 
that meets all of the requirements of the Township Lighting Ordinance. 
 

     5. As the public utility connections (water and wastewater) are reconstructed, 
 spotting maps and/or locational information will be collected and captured on as-
 built (red-lined) record plans to be submitted to the Township prior to a certificate 
 of occupancy. 
 
 Chairperson VanderWeele asked if there were any questions for Ms. Johnston. 
 
 Mr. Commissaris confirmed the Fire Chief is satisfied with the turning radius. 
 
 With no further questions; the Chair asked if the applicant wished to speak. 
 
 Mr. Steve Bosch, Bosch Architects, 8065 Vineyard Parkway, noted CCU was 
moving more toward Ordinance compliance as much as possible, with the newer, 
fresher building proposed and noted it would be energy efficient. He indicated CCU 
wants to be a good partner. 
 
 Ms. Maxwell asked about the building height. 
 
 Mr. Bosch said the height meets Ordinance requirements and is consistent with 
other CCU buildings in the area. He noted the inside is only about 11 feet tall and that 
the large parapet conceals roof top units. 
 
 Hearing no further comments, Chairperson VanderWeele asked whether any 
members of the public wished to speak. As no one came forward, he moved to Board 
Deliberations. 
 
 Ms. Smith determined the proposed building would not be the same as the CCU 
building at West Main and 9th Streets. 
 
 As there was no further discussion, the Chair asked for a motion. 
 



5 
 

 Ms. Smith made a motion to approve the special use contingent on including the 
three conditions, #s 1, 2 and 5 as described and recommended by the staff report. Ms. 
Dickason supported the motion. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
 
SITE PLAN REVIEW: METRO TOYOTA 
HURLEY & STEWART, REPRESENTING METRO LEASING, LLC, REQUESTED 
SITE PLAN APPROVAL FOR THE PROPOSED AUTOMOBILE SALES LOT AT 5924 
STADIUM DRIVE. PARCEL NO. 3905-25-305-031. 
 
 Chairperson VanderWeele moved to the next agenda item and asked Ms. 
Johnston to review the site plan request from Metro Toyota. 
 
 Ms. Johnston said Metro Leasing, LLC, has purchased the Rykse’s restaurant 
property, addressed as 5924 Stadium Drive, to expand their automotive sales lot. Car 
sales lots are a Special Use under Section 18.40 of the C: Local Business District 
ordinance, which requires Planning Commission approval.  On December 13, 2018, the 
Planning Commission granted Special Use approval for this development with the 
condition that a site plan be provided. 
 
 She said the applicant received variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals from 
Sections 18.40.A and D, as follows: 
 

The sales office at 5850 Stadium Drive to function as the sales office for 5924 
Stadium Drive and to allow the following outdoor sales display setbacks, which are 
the minimum necessary to ensure substantial justice to both the applicant and 
neighboring residential uses: 
 20 feet from the right-of-way of Stadium Drive.  
 20 feet from the right-of-way of Quail Run Drive. 
 35 feet from the rear (north) property line.  
 10 feet from the side (west) property line.  
 

This motion also includes the condition that the required landscaping materials 
outlined in Section 75.130 of the Landscape Ordinance (now Section 53.50) be 
installed within these required setbacks. 

 She noted these requirements, as well as the Special Use conditions are 
required on the site plan. 
 
 Ms. Johnston said the site plan shows the demolition of the existing building on 
site and the parcel being redeveloped to accommodate a car sales lot.  Per the 
approved variances, the existing sales office located at 5850 Stadium Drive will function 
as the sales office for this parcel.  In addition, the other Special Use conditions have 
been met: security lighting has been provided, four parking spaces have been 
designated and will be signed appropriately for customer parking, the outdoor display of 
cars will be on an asphalt dust-free surface, access is provided through existing curb 



6 
 

cuts, and the outdoor display will not impact neighboring commercial uses as it is fully 
contained within the parcel boundaries. 
 
 She explained pedestrian access is provided through a five-foot sidewalk along 
Quail Run Drive, with a connection point internal to the site.  The site plan does not 
include a sidewalk along Stadium Drive; however, the Township is working with the 
Downtown Development Authority (DDA) to construct a sidewalk in this area in 
2020/2021.  The site plan also provides pedestrian/customer respite areas in two 
locations; two benches adjacent to the internal sidewalk near the eastern property line 
and a seating area within the 35-foot landscape buffer along the north property line.  
 
 In previous correspondence to the applicant, Ms. Johnston said Staff suggested 
the location of the proposed seating area, while not in violation of the Landscape 
Ordinance, may cause some concerns for the residential neighbors.  The applicant 
indicated elevation of the proposed seating area is below the neighboring residential 
property and will be screened by a new solid privacy fence.  They indicate the seating 
area will have minimal use during the day.  They wish to keep the seating area in its 
planned location. She said the Planning Commission will need to determine if the 
proposed location of the seating area is appropriate. 
 
 The site plan outlines the existing curb cut on Stadium Drive to remain and a 
realignment of the curb cut on Quail Run Drive.  This realignment will correspond with 
the current curb cut on the east side of Quail Run Drive to the existing Metro Toyota 
property.  As this is a redevelopment of the site, all Zoning Ordinance requirements are 
considered as part of staff’s review.  Staff evaluated Section 51.50.G of the Access 
Management Guidelines related to the Stadium Drive curb cut.  Section 51.50.G states 
the following: 
 

In the case of expansion, alteration or redesign of an existing development where 
existing driveways do not comply with the guidelines set forth herein, the closing, 
relocation, or redesign of the driveway may be required. 

 
 She explained this Ordinance provides the Planning Commission with the 
authority to close an existing curb cut during site redevelopment if the existing driveway 
does not comply with the requirements of Article 51: Access Management Guidelines.  
The Access Management ordinance also indicates the following under Section 51.50.F: 
 

Where parcels, lots, or building sites have frontage or access on more than one 
roadway, access shall be provided from the lesser traveled street. Where spacing 
requirements can be met, high traffic volumes will be generated, or the subject side 
street is inappropriate for nonresidential traffic, access onto the main roadway will be 
considered.  

  
 The property in question is a corner lot with existing access to both Stadium 
Drive and Quail Run Drive.  The difficulty with this particular property is the nature of 
Quail Run Drive.  The existing curb cut on this road would suggest that nonresidential 
traffic is acceptable in this location, which would lead the Planning Commission to close 



7 
 

the curb cut on Stadium Drive and adhere to Section 51.50.G.  However, closing the 
curb cut on Stadium Drive will increase nonresidential traffic on what is essentially a 
residential road as outlined in Section 51.50.F, suggesting the curb cut on Stadium 
Drive should remain.  She indicated the Planning Commission will need to consider both 
Sections 51.50.F and G. to determine which should prevail related to this access point.   
 
 Ms. Johnston said all requirements of the Landscape Ordinance have been met 
except for one; at least 30% of the landscape plantings (other than canopy trees) must 
be species that are native to Michigan.  The landscape plan comes close to meeting this 
requirement, but a few species will need to be changed.   
 
 Ms. Johnston said the following provides a list of the remaining outstanding 
items/concerns to be resolved with the site plan: 
 

1. Whether the Stadium Drive curb cut should be closed per Section 51.50.G or 
remain open per Section 51.50.F. 
 

2. The placement of the seating area within the landscape buffer. 
 

3. The establishment of an escrow account for the Stadium Drive entrance to be 
changed to concrete per the Township standards for sidewalks (if this curb cut 
remains). 
 

4. An updated landscape plan that meets the 30 percent native planting 
requirement. 
 

5. Consideration of the note on the photometric plan related to the time when 
lighting would be reduced to security lighting on the site.  The note indicates 
11:00 pm to 7:00 am. 
 

6. Concerns related to the final contours proposed in the grading plan and its 
impact on storm water management. 

 
 Ms. Johnston recommended the following four conditions be included in a motion 
if the Planning Commission is amenable to approving the site plan: 
 

1. A revised landscape plan be provided by March 29, 2019 meeting the 
percentage of native plantings required by Section 53.90 of the Landscape 
Ordinance. 
 

2. An updated photometric plan that changes the security lighting note to read 
“…the remaining lighting will be off from 10:00 pm to 7:00 am.” 
 

3. A revised grading plan that satisfies the Township Engineer’s concerns related to 
final contours and storm water management. 

 



8 
 

4. If the Planning Commission determines the Stadium Drive curb cut should 
remain, staff recommends the following condition: 

 
An escrow account be established by June 30, 2019 for the cost of 
reconstructing the Stadium Drive entrance to concrete to meet the Township 
requirements for sidewalks. Cost of construction to be determined by the 
applicant and reviewed and approved by the Township Engineer. 

 
 Ms. Johnston said if the Planning Commission determines the Stadium Drive 
curb cut should be removed, the following condition should be attached to any approval: 
 

A revised site plan be provided by March 29, 2019 with the Stadium Drive curb 
cut removed and the right-of-way restored to MDOT standards. 

 
 If the Planning Commission determines the proposed seating area should be 
relocated/removed, a condition to that effect will need to be added to any considered 
approvals. 
 
 Chairperson VanderWeele asked if Commissioners had questions for Ms. 
Johnston. 
 
 In answer to questions, she said the Township has an access management plan 
that mirrors the requirements of the Access Management ordinance. She confirmed the 
6-foot fence would be installed to replace the existing fence along the north property 
line. 
 
 Hearing no other questions, the Chair asked whether the applicant wished to 
speak. 
 
 Mr. Todd Hurley, Hurley & Stewart LLC, 2800 S. 11th Street, addressed several 
concerns: 
 

a. It is important to leave the curb cut access on Stadium Drive for several 
reasons; to allow dispersal of traffic from what was typical during Rykse’s 
operation to the current proposed use, to support any potential future use 
in case a building is added, and to provide ease of access for emergency 
vehicles. 

b. The Quail Run Drive curb cut will be moved slightly to line up with the 
existing curb cut across the street to the east.  

c. The outdoor seating area was developed by taking advantage of the 
elevation change. A knee wall will be included so seating is even further 
down, providing a private setting with no lighting and little noise, designed 
as a picnic area for employees as well as a place to talk with customers. 

d. The applicant is in agreement with all other conditions suggested by Staff. 
 



9 
 

 In response to a question from Ms. Maxwell, Mr. Hurley indicated they believe 
most customers will access the lot utilizing the Stadium Drive curb cut. 
 
 Answering a question from Ms. Farmer, Attorney Porter indicated he did not think 
where people access the dealership could be controlled. He said since Ms. Farmer has 
ownership interest in adjoining property, he recommended she refrain from questioning 
and abstain from voting. 
 
 Ms. Farmer agreed to comply with his recommendation and indicated she would 
abstain from the vote. 
 
 Ms. Johnston pointed out if the curb cut remains it will be the natural access point 
for drivers to use. 
 
  In response to a question from Ms. Maxwell about the purpose of a concrete pad 
at the southwest corner, Mr. Hurley said it is a concrete display pad, sloping toward 
Stadium Drive to hold and display five vehicles. It will include low shrubs and lighting. 
 
 Hearing no further questions from Commissioners, Chairperson VanderWeele 
opened a public hearing and asked whether anyone cared to address the Board. 
 
 Mr. Matthew Van Dyke, Miller Johnson, 100 West Michigan Avenue, Kalamazoo, 
explained the shifting of the Quail Run curb cut to line up directly across from the drive 
was requested by worried neighbors, who felt too much traffic there would worsen 
problems. He said that traffic concerns were raised more than anything else at the 
Zoning Board of Appeals hearing.  He indicated the change in use should lessen traffic 
concerns compared to what was there before. If the curb cut on Stadium Drive is closed 
it would jeopardize the whole project. He noted there will be a lot of nice landscaping 
provided to help screen the use for the adjacent neighbors. 
 
 Mr. Jeff DeNooyer, 1426 Edgemoor and owner of Metro Toyota, noted the curb 
cut in question has been there for 32 years and provides a natural place to turn in; 
closing it would cause more confusion for drivers. He explained he is interested in 
potential expansion; he is considering adding a Land Rover franchise, which could be 
accommodated there, but would be difficult to add without the curb cut. 
 
 He explained the space in back under discussion is an amenity consisting of a 
picnic table for staff picnics and to provide a place to speak with customers. He does 
not anticipate any noise at all there and no lights will be added; it will be an enjoyable 
park setting. He noted Rykes, the previous business on the site, had many trucks 
coming and going in the morning and their customer traffic was heavy at breakfast and 
lunch times. Traffic will be much diminished and spread out over the day with the 
change to Metro Toyota. 
 
 In answer to a question from Ms. Maxwell, Ms. Johnston explained an additional 
sales office is not required due to the variances received for this lot as long as the 



10 
 

building on the adjacent lot is available for use. In the future, if the property is sold a 
sales office would need to be provided. At that point the new owner would have to come 
back to the Township with a site plan. 
 
 Mr. Paul McIntire, Quail Run Drive, said the property is not adjacent since the 
road runs through it. He indicated neighbors would like the Stadium Drive curb cut to 
stay, that more than a thousand vehicles drive down Quail Run every day and they do 
not want to encourage more. He said neighbors were ok with an 8-foot fence. He 
expressed concerns related to the danger to pedestrian traffic, which would be lessened 
if a sales office were on site. He liked the proposed landscaping and extras provided by 
the applicant that are not required. He indicated it would be nice to have a left-hand turn 
lane at the end of Quail Run Drive and asked the Board to consider safety issues. 
 
 Ms. Pam Davan, Quail Run Drive, said her main concern is lighting. She lives 
directly behind the Rykse’s building and would like the lights to be off by 10:00 p.m. She 
is a walker and feels people have a personal responsibility to pay attention to traffic. 
She wondered if there might be a crosswalk light. 
 
 There were no other public comments. Chairperson VanderWeele closed the 
public hearing and moved to Board Deliberations. 
 
 He asked whether there was consensus on the items in question: 
 
 The group agreed they felt 1) the curb cut should be left open and an escrow 
account be established by the applicant to pay for the work needed for the sidewalk on 
Stadium Drive, 2) the seating and landscaping is fine, 3) they would like an 8-foot fence 
that matches what is existing at the Metro Toyota site, and 4) lights should be reduced 
at 10:00 p.m. and allowed to be increased at 7:00 a.m. 
 
 Ms. Johnston noted a crosswalk as mentioned is under the purview of the Road 
Commission and that they are not likely to provide one. She suggested pedestrians use 
the sidewalk that will soon be improved on Stadium Drive. 
 
 Ms. Maxwell thought the applicant could put something on their property, for 
instance a “Cross here” sign. 
 
 Mr. Hurley noted the alignment of the curb cuts will help with conflicting 
movement, making it feel more like an intersection. 
 
 Attorney Porter said a mid-block crossing cannot be done and reiterated this is 
under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission. 
 
 Hearing no further discussion, Chairperson VanderWeele asked for a motion. 
 
  Ms. Maxwell made a motion to approve the site plan contingent on including the 
four conditions as recommended by Staff.  



11 
 

 
1. A revised landscape plan be provided by March 29, 2019 meeting the 

percentage of native plantings required by Section 53.90 of the Landscape 
Ordinance. 
 

2. An updated photometric plan that changes the security lighting note to read 
“…the remaining lighting will be off from 10:00 pm to 7:00 am.” 
 

3. A revised grading plan that satisfies the Township Engineer’s concerns related to 
final contours and storm water management. 
 

4. An escrow account be established by June 30, 2019 for the cost of 
reconstructing the Stadium Drive entrance to concrete to meet the Township 
requirements for sidewalks. Cost of construction to be determined by the 
applicant and reviewed and approved by the Township Engineer. 

 
Mr. Commissaris supported the motion. The motion was approved 5 – 0, with Ms. 

Farmer abstaining. 
  
  
OLD BUSINESS 
  

There was no old business to consider. 
 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 Ms. Johnston said the March 28 meeting agenda would include Agritourism and 
discussion of the Maple Hill overlay zone. The lighting ordinance will also be on the 
agenda with the expectation that the lighting consultant will attend a meeting in April. 
She also noted the April 11 agenda will be a long one; she expects seven items will be 
included on the agenda, most for temporary outdoor events. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
  
 There were no comments from Commissioners. 
.  
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Hearing no further comments, Chairperson VanderWeele adjourned the meeting 

at approximately 7:03 p.m.  
 
Minutes prepared: 
March 16, 2019 
 
Minutes approved: 
___________, 2019 



 

 

 
 
 
March 20, 2019 
 
 
 
 
Mtg Date:   March 28, 2019 
 
To:  Planning Commission   
 
From:  Julie Johnston, AICP 
 
Subject: DRAFT Agribusiness/Agritourism Ordinance Public Hearing 
 
 
The attached document is the most up-to-date DRAFT of the Agribusiness and Agritourism Ordinance for 
Planning Commission review and public hearing consideration. The Planning Commission has been 
consistently reviewing and refining this ordinance since April of 2018.  Staff would advocate the Planning 
Commission consider public comment on this most recent draft and make any final necessary changes 
before forwarding to the Township Board with a recommendation of approval. 
 
The Agribusiness/Agritourism ordinance is designed to provide those who either produce an agricultural 
product or live in the rural area and meet certain criteria the opportunity to generate some additional 
revenue on their property.  The objective is to offer additional options for these property owners without 
impeding the enjoyment of the rural character of the area.  It is not the intent of the ordinance to allow 
commercial operations within the rural area of the Township and therefore, some uses, like special events, 
have been limited. 
 
It is also the intent that this ordinance will assist in implementing the Township’s Master Plan.  During the 
public meetings of the 2017 Master Plan Update, residents in the rural areas indicated a desire to preserve 
property, but needed a revenue source to assist with this preservation.  In addition, those that produced 
an agricultural product wanted other opportunities that would help to support their farming operations. 
In response to these requests, the Rural Character Preservation Strategy chapter includes a goal to 
recognize, preserve, protect, and expand the study area’s important and valued agricultural lands and 
enterprises.  The following action strategy was developed related to this goal, as follows: 
 

Action Strategy AG-1: Review and amend the zoning ordinance, as necessary, to allow agritourism 
and agribusiness within the AG and/or RR Districts, with appropriate development restrictions to 
ensure compatibility with adjacent land uses and available public services.  

 
The development of this ordinance is in response to this strategy. 
 
Thank you. 



1 
 

AGRIBUSINESS/AGRITOURISM DRAFT ZONING ORDINANCE 
 
ARTICLE 2: CONSTRUCTION OF LANGUAGE AND DEFINITIONS 
 
Section 2.20: Definitions 
 
A. Agribusiness: Any business catering exclusively to agricultural production, which may include, but is 

not limited to, supplying services or goods (such as feed or supplies) to producers of marketable 
agricultural products like greenhouses, nurseries, and farm cooperatives. 
 

B. Agriculture: The science, art, or occupation of cultivating land, raising crops, and feeding, breeding, 
and raising livestock. 
 

C. Agriculture building: A structure designed and constructed to house farm implements, hay, grain, 
poultry, livestock, or other horticultural products and that is clearly accessory to the agricultural 
activity on site. 
 

D. Agriculture operation: The production, harvesting, and storage of farm products including the land, 
plants, animals, buildings, structures, ponds, machinery, equipment, and other appurtenances used 
in the production of farm goods as a source of income. 
 

E. Agricultural products: Includes but is not limited to, crops (corn, wheat, hay, potatoes); fruit (apples, 
peaches, grapes, cherries, berries, etc.); cider; vegetables (sweet corn, pumpkins, tomatoes, etc.); 
floriculture; herbs; forestry; husbandry; livestock and livestock products (cattle, sheep, hogs, horses, 
poultry, ostriches, emus, farmed deer, farmed buffalo, milk, eggs, and fur, etc.); aquaculture products 
(fish, fish products, water plants and shellfish); horticultural specialties (nursery stock, ornamental 
shrubs, flowers and Christmas trees); maple sap, etc. 
 

F. Agricultural special event (Agritourism, Category 2): A planned and organized education, 
entertainment, or recreation occasion or activity that brings the public to the agricultural operation, 
whether or not the participant paid to take part in the special event, provided said event is solely 
provided by the agritourism property owner. 
 

G. Agriculturally related products: Items sold at a farm to attract customers and promote the sale of 
agricultural products. Such items include, but are not limited to, all agricultural and horticultural 
products, animal feed, baked goods, ice cream and ice cream-based desserts and beverages, jams, 
honey, food stuffs, and other items promoting the farm and on-site production. 
 

H. Agriculturally related uses:  Those activities that predominantly use agricultural products, buildings or 
equipment, such as pony rides, corn mazes, pumpkin rolling, sleigh/hay rides, and educational events, 
such as farming and food preserving classes, etc.  
 

I. Agritourism: An agriculturally based operation or activity that brings public to a working farm for the 
purpose of enjoyment, education, or active involvement in the farm operation. Agritourism 
enterprises are further classified as follows:  

 
1. Agritourism, Category 1: An agritourism enterprise limited to u-pick fruits and vegetable 

operations, direct on-farm product sales, and farm markets.  



2 
 

 
2. Agritourism, Category 2: An agritourism enterprise that includes education, entertainment, 

agricultural related uses and products, and limited non-agricultural related uses and products 
including: educational tours; historical agricultural exhibits; educational classes, lectures and 
seminars; petting farms, animal display and pony rides; outdoor mazes of agricultural origin, such 
as straw bales or corn; wagon, sleigh and hayrides; nature trails; outdoor picnic areas; and, other 
similar uses.  
 

3. Agritourism, Category 3: An agritourism enterprise that utilizes the rural character or agricultural 
buildings on site for nonresidential special events or activities, including:  educational tours, 
classes, lectures, and seminars; celebratory gatherings such as weddings; retail events such as 
farm markets, barn markets, and agricultural sales; day camps; and, other similar special events 
or activities. 

 
J. Farm Market: The sale of agricultural products directly to the consumer from a site on a working farm 

or any agricultural, horticultural or agribusiness operation or agricultural land.  This definition includes 
farm stands and roadside stands. 
 

K. Holiday Events/Festivals (Agritourism 2 and 3):  Nationally recognized or official public holidays, 
and/or observation of cultural traditions. 
 

L. Non-agriculturally related products: Items not connected to farming or the farm operation, such as 
novelty t-shirts or other clothing, crafts and knick-knacks imported from other states or countries, etc. 

 
M. Non-agriculturally related uses: Activities that are part of an agricultural tourism operation’s total 

offerings but not tied to farming. Such non-agriculturally related uses include amusement rides, 
concerts, special events, etc.   

 
N. Seasonal: A recurrent period characterized by certain occurrences, festivities, or crops; harvest, when 

crops are ready; not all year round. 
 

O. U-Pick: A fruit or vegetable-growing farm that provides the opportunity for customers to pick their 
own fruits or vegetables directly from the plant. 
 

P. Wedding/Celebratory Event: observation of a special social occasion such as a wedding, birthday, 
cultural traditions, etc., where people meet to commemorate and revel. 
 

ARTICLE 4: AG – AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 
 
Section 4.30 – Permitted Uses with Conditions: 
 
C. - Agribusiness 
D. - Agritourism, Category 1 
 
Section 4.40 - Special Uses: 
 
J. - Agritourism, Category 2 
K. - Agritourism, Category 3 



3 
 

ARTICLE 5: RR – RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 
 
Section 5.30 - Permitted Uses with Conditions: 
 
D. - Agribusiness 
E. - Agritourism, Category 1 
 
Section 5.40 - Special Uses: 
 
N. - Agritourism, Category 2 
O. - Agritourism, Category 3 
 
 
ARTICLE 48: CONDITIONS FOR SPECIFIC PERMITTED USES 
 
Section 48.10 Agribusiness 

 
1. Application Narrative. A written narrative will be provided with any application describing the use 

in detail, including all the types of items, goods and merchandise that are proposed to be sold; 
the proposed hours of operation; measures that are to be taken to assure that the operation of 
the use will take place only in a safe and convenient manner; and other information describing 
the use and which will assist the reviewing body in determining whether the application meets 
the conditional use requirements.  
 

2. Exemptions. Generally recognized agricultural operations, which are not involved with the retail 
sales of goods to other agricultural producers, are exempt from these standards. 

 
3. Building Floor Area.  

 
a. Total building floor area for the agribusiness shall not exceed 2,000 square feet. 

 
b. The maximum portion of any building used for agribusiness sales shall not exceed 600 square 

feet. 
 

4. Outdoor Storage. Outdoor storage of agribusiness materials shall be limited to 1,000 square feet 
and shall be located in the rear yard only. 
 

5. Road Access. Access to an agribusiness use must be from the County primary road or State 
highway, unless approved by the Planning Commission. 
 

6. Parking. On-site vehicle parking shall be provided on agribusiness property as follows: 
 

a. The total number of required spaces shall be calculated as one space for every 1,000 square 
feet of the total building floor area, plus one space for every two employees. This shall not 
include areas dedicated to agricultural production.  

 
b. Parking lots shall be clearly demarcated through some physical means like timbers, fences, 

stakes, etc. 



4 
 

 
c. The on-site parking shall be arranged so no vehicle movements occur in the public right-of-

way and to avoid the accumulation of parked cars on the public roads.  
 

d. Parking and driveway surfaces may be pervious or hard surface. 
 

7. Education-Oriented Activities. Events and/or activities which bring the public to the property for 
the sole purpose of participation, learning, or involvement in the agricultural operation are 
permitted if they meet the following criteria: 
 
a. Are limited to a one-day event no more than five times throughout a 12-month period. 

 
b. Have not more than 50 participants on the property at any one time during the one-day 

event. 
 

8. Impact. If the proposed agribusiness use would cause undue impacts to surrounding properties 
related to drainage, traffic, noise, or other general health and safety issues, as determined by the 
Planning Director, or if the size of the agribusiness exceeds the maximums allowed herein, review 
and approval by the Planning Commission as a Special Use shall be required. 

 
Section 48.20 Agritourism, Category 1 
 

1. Application Narrative. A written narrative describing the use in detail, including the proposed 
hours of operation; measures that are to be taken to assure that the operation of the use will 
take place only in a safe and convenient manner; and other information describing the use and 
which will assist the reviewing body in determining whether the application meets the 
conditional use requirements. 
 

2. Exemptions.  
 
a. Generally recognized agricultural operations, which are not involved with the retail sales of 

goods to the public, are exempt from these standards. 
 

b. Farm markets with a sales area of 200 square feet or less, seasonal in nature, and where no 
permanent structure exists, are exempt from this ordinance. 

 
3. Floor Area, Building and Outdoor Storage. The maximum area for farm markets shall be 3,000 

square feet, which includes both the floor area of the building and the outdoor storage/display. 
Farm markets larger than 3,000 square feet shall be a Special Use reviewed and approved by the 
Planning Commission. 
 

4. Setbacks. Farm market buildings equal to or less than 200 square feet in size shall be located not 
closer than 15 feet from the road right-of-way line or 25 feet from the edge of pavement, 
whichever is greater. Farm market buildings greater than 200 square feet in size shall comply 
with the minimum required setback distances for the district in which such building is located. 
 
 
 



5 
 

5. Retail Sales. 
 
a. At least 75 percent of the products marketed and offered for sale (measured as an average 

over the farm’s marketing season) must be grown or produced on and by the affiliated farm. 
For purposes of this requirement, affiliated means a farm under the same ownership or 
control (e.g. leased) as the farm market whether or not the farm market is located on the 
property where production occurs. 

 
b. The remainder 25 percent of products sold must be agriculturally related products as 

defined by Section 11: Definitions. 
 
c. For purposes of determining the percentage of products being marketed, the primary 

measure will be retail space used to display products offered for retail sale during the 
affiliated farm’s marketing season. If measurement of retail space during the marketing 
season is not feasible, then the percent of the gross sales dollars of the farm market will be 
used. 

 
6. Education-Oriented Activities. Events and/or activities which bring the public to the property for 

the sole purpose of participation, learning, or involvement in the agricultural operation are 
permitted if they meet the following criteria: 
 
a. Are limited to a one-day event no more than five times throughout a 12-month period. 

 
b. Have not more than 50 participants on the property at any one time during the one-day 

event. 
 

7. Road Access. Access to an agritourism use must be from the County primary road or State 
highway, unless approved by the Planning Commission.  
 

8. Parking. On-site vehicle parking shall be provided on agritourism property as follows: 
 
a. Parking lots shall be clearly demarcated through some physical means like timbers, fences, 

stakes, etc. 
 

b. The on-site parking shall be arranged so no vehicle movements occur in the public right-of-
way and to avoid the accumulation of parked cars on the public roads.  
 

c. Parking and driveway surfaces may be pervious or hard surface. 
 

9. Impacts. If the proposed agritourism use would cause undue impacts to surrounding properties 
related to drainage, traffic, noise, or other general health and safety issues, as determined by the 
Planning Director, review and approval by the Planning Commission as a Special Use shall be 
required. 

 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

ARTICLE 49: SPECIAL USES 
 
49.10 Agritourism, Category 2 
 

1. Application Narrative. A written narrative describing the use in detail, including both 
agriculturally related and non-agriculturally related products and uses; proposed hours of 
operation; measures that are to be taken to assure that the operation of the use will take place 
only in a safe and convenient manner; special events; and other information describing the use 
and which will assist the Planning Commission in determining whether the application meets the 
Special Use requirements. 
 

2. Exemption. Generally recognized agricultural operations, which are not involved with the retail 
sales of goods or any public activities, are exempt from these standards. 
 

3. General Standards. 
 

a. Parcel size. Parcels must be a minimum of 10 acres.  The Planning Commission may consider 
a smaller parcel size depending on the agritourism uses planned.  Their consideration of a 
smaller parcel size will be based on the intensity and scale of the proposed agritourism use, 
compatibility with surrounding property owners, and will be harmonious with the existing 
character of the area. 
 

b. Maximum floor area. The maximum floor area for all buildings related to the agritourism use 
shall be 10,000 square feet.  Clusters of smaller, architecturally appropriate structures are 
encouraged to maintain rural character of the agritourism use.  This maximum floor area does 
not include greenhouses. 
 

c. Outdoor storage/display. The maximum area for the storage/display of agricultural products 
for sale shall be one acre.  This requirement does not apply to u-pick operations. 
 

d. Architectural character. All buildings shall incorporate a rural theme in terms of style and 
design.  This means new agritourism uses involving new structures shall complement and 
enhance the rural environment.  For example, gable or gambrel roofs, roof ornamentation 
such as cupolas, dormers, porches, and decorative shutters. 
 

e. New uses and buildings. New uses and buildings shall be located, designed and operated so 
as not to interfere with normal agricultural practices on and off site. Non-agricultural uses 
should be limited to lands with poor agricultural soils or lands otherwise not suitable for 
agricultural purposes.  
 

f. Use and product percentages. Agricultural products produced on site, agriculturally related 
products and uses, and non-agriculturally related products and uses are permitted based on 
the following percentages: 

 
i. At least 50 percent of the products (measured as an average over the farm’s marketing 

season) and uses marketed and offered must be grown or produced on and by or have a 
direct relationship with the affiliated farm. For purposes of this requirement, affiliated 



7 
 

means a farm under the same ownership or control (e.g. leased) as the farm market 
whether or not the farm market is located on the property where production occurs. 

 
ii. A maximum of 30 percent of the products and uses marketed and offered may be other 

agriculturally related products and uses as defined by Section 11: Definitions. 
 
iii. A maximum of 20 percent of the products and uses marketed and offered may be non-

agriculturally related products and uses as defined by Section 11: Definitions. 
 
iv. For purposes of determining the percentage of products and uses being marketed and 

offered, the primary measure will be square footage of space used for each individual 
product or use. If measurement of retail space during the marketing season is not 
feasible to determine percentage of product, then the percent of the gross sales dollars 
will be used. 
 

g. Parking. On-site vehicle parking shall be provided on agribusiness property as follows: 
 
i. The total number of required spaces shall be calculated as one space for every 1,000 

square feet of the main public activity area, plus one space for every two employees. 
The main public activity areas shall be defined as the primary buildings and outdoor 
spaces where the public congregates for the agritourism use. This shall not include areas 
dedicated to agricultural production.  
 

ii. 24-foot two-way or 20-foot one-way circulation aisles shall be maintained.  To ensure 
drive aisles are maintained, the location of parking spaces shall be defined by providing 
some type of marker at the center of the space to be placed every 64 feet for two-way 
traffic and 60 feet for one-way traffic. 
 

iii. Parking lots shall be clearly demarcated through some physical means like timbers, 
fences, stakes, etc. 
 

iv. The on-site parking shall be arranged so no vehicle movements occur in the public right-
of-way and to avoid the accumulation of parked cars on the public roads.  
 

v. Parking and driveway surfaces may be pervious or hard surface. 
 

vi. Accessible spaces must be provided in accordance with the requirements of Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990, utilizing the most current design standards. 
 

vii. The Planning Commission may reduce or defer the number required parking spaces if 
the applicant provides a parking study that demonstrates, to the satisfaction of the 
Planning Commission, that a reduced number of parking spaces will meet the parking 
needs of the Agritourism uses.  If parking is deferred, the location of those deferred 
spaces must be shown as such on the required site plan.  

 
h. Lighting. Any exterior lighting installed related to an agritourism use or activity shall be 

appropriately shielded and directed downwards to minimize light pollution.  All lighting shall 
meet the standards of Section 78.720: Outdoor Lighting Standards. 



8 
 

 
i. Trash receptacles. Trash receptacles shall be provided. If dumpsters are provided, they shall 

be placed on a hard surface and shall be completely obscured from view by a screen fence or 
wall.  
 

j. Screening. Opaque screening, consisting of an earth berm, evergreen screen, or an obscuring 
wall or fence, shall be provided near the primary public activity areas on those sides abutting 
or adjacent to a residential use. The use of natural landscape materials is encouraged. The 
Planning Commission may waive the screening requirement in specific cases where cause can 
be shown that the distance between the agritourism and residential use would not require 
screening. 
 

k. Restroom facilities. Public restroom facilities, temporary or permanent, shall be provided on 
site.   
 

l. Maximum capacity. The Fire Marshall or Building Official shall establish a maximum occupant 
capacity for meetings, training, educational or similar events which shall be appropriate to 
the site and facilities in terms of safe capacity in buildings, parking area and sanitation 
limitations of the site.  
 

m. Hours of operation. Hours or operation must be provided by the applicant. The Planning 
Commission may alter the requested hours of operation for the agritourism uses, or specific 
elements thereof, consistent with the character of the land uses in the vicinity and may 
further approve an enforcement mechanism to ensure adherence to the established hours of 
operation.  
 

n. Access. Access to an agritourism use must be from the County primary road or State highway, 
unless approved by the Planning Commission.  
 

o. Livestock. The keeping of livestock for agritourism purposes shall be subject to the provisions 
of Section 78.400: Keeping of poultry, swine, horses, or livestock. 
 
 

4. Agritourism Special Events. 
 

a. The following table outlines the type and number of Agritourism Special Events allowed 
throughout a typical calendar year, beginning on January 1st. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 
 

Event Type Event Size 
(persons) 

Number of 
Consecutive 

Days  

Days between 
any Event* 

Total Number of 
Events per Year 

Educational classes, 
lectures, seminars, and 
day camps 

1-20 5 2 15 
21-50 3 4 10 

Over 50  
(max 100) 2 10 5 

Retail events N/A 2 30 3 

Holiday events/festivals N/A 2 60 3 

*Must following the maximum number of days between events. 
 

b. The agritourism operator/property owner shall submit the annual list of the special events to 
the Planning Commission for review within 30-days of the first requested event.  The Planning 
Commission may eliminate a special event if said event would be unduly disruptive to the 
general peace and enjoyment of the rural and/or residential character of the surrounding 
area. 
 

c. The special event must be related to and enhance the primary agritourism use of the property.  
 

d. A reserved parking area shall be provided on-site to be utilized for special events.  If the 
agritourism use intends to hold special events, this reserved area must be displayed on a site 
plan.  

 
e. The reserved parking area must be of adequate size to accommodate the anticipated 

additional traffic of the special event.  The size of the reserved parking area shall be reviewed 
and approved by the Planning Commission. 

 
f. For special events lasting more than one day and with an expected daily attendance exceeding 

100 hundred individuals, the on-site manager or owner shall notify all adjacent neighbors 
bordering the subject property in writing of the date, time, duration and description of the 
event. Notification shall occur at least five business days prior to the beginning of the event. 
 

5. Education-oriented activities. Events and/or activities which bring the public to the property for 
the sole purpose of participation, learning, or involvement in the agricultural operation are 
exempt from the Agritourism Special Event standards if they meet the following criteria: 
 
a. Are limited to a one-day event no more than five times throughout a 12-month period. 

 
b. Have not more than 50 participants on the property at any one time during the one-day 

event. 
 

6. Prohibited Uses. 
 

a. Motorized off-road vehicle racing or other similar motor vehicle activities. 
 



10 
 

b. Other uses that the Planning Commission determines would disturb the general peace and 
enjoyment of the rural and/or residential character of the surrounding area due to excessive 
traffic, noise, smoke, odors, or visual clutter.  

 
49.20 Agritourism, Category 3 
 

1. Intent. The intent of the Category 3 Agritourism option is to allow opportunities for limited 
nonresidential events or activities that make use of existing rural character and agricultural 
buildings.  
 

2. Application Narrative. A written narrative describing the events or activities, including proposed 
hours of operation; expected attendance; measures that are to be taken to assure that the 
operation of the use will take place only in a safe and convenient manner; and other 
information describing the events or activities which will assist the Planning Commission in 
determining whether the application meets the Special Use requirements. 

 
3. Events or Activities. 
 

a. The following table outlines the type and number of events or activities allowed throughout 
a typical calendar year, beginning on January 1st. 

 

Event Type Event Size 
(persons) 

Number of 
Consecutive 

Days  

Days between 
any Event* 

Total Number of 
Events per Year 

Educational classes, 
lectures, seminars, and 
day camps 

1-20 5 2 15 
21-50 3 4 10 

Over 50 
(max 100) 2 10 5 

Retail events N/A 2 30 3 

Weddings and 
celebratory gatherings 

1-50 1 7 20 
51-150 1 20 15 

151-300 (max) 1 27 10 

Holiday events/festivals N/A 2 60 3 

*Must following the maximum number of days between events. 
 

b. For events with an expected attendance exceeding 100 hundred individuals, the on-site 
manager or owner shall notify all adjacent neighbors bordering the subject property in writing 
of the date, time, duration and description of the event. Notification shall occur at least five 
business days prior to the beginning of the event. 
 

c. Hours of operation. Hours of operation for the event or activities must be provided by the 
applicant. The Planning Commission may alter the requested hours of operation for the 
agritourism uses, or specific elements thereof, consistent with the character of the land uses 
in the vicinity and may further approve an enforcement mechanism to ensure adherence to 
the established hours of operation.  



11 
 

4. General Standards: 
 

a. Parcel size. Parcels must be a minimum of 10 acres.  The Planning Commission may consider 
a smaller parcel size depending on the agritourism uses planned.  Their consideration of a 
smaller parcel size will be based on the intensity and scale of the proposed agritourism use, 
compatibility with surrounding property owners, and will be harmonious with the existing 
character of the area. 
 

b. Architectural character. All buildings shall incorporate a rural theme in terms of style and 
design.  This means new agritourism uses involving new structures shall complement and 
enhance the rural environment.  For example, gable or gambrel roofs, roof ornamentation 
such as cupolas, dormers, porches, and decorative shutters. 
 

c. Road Access. Access to an agritourism use must be from the County primary road or State 
highway, unless approved by the Planning Commission.  
 

d. Parking. On-site vehicle parking shall be provided on the agritourism property as follows: 
 
i. The total number of required spaces shall be calculated as one space for every 1,000 

square feet of the main public activity area, plus one space for every two employees. 
The main public activity areas shall be defined as the primary buildings and outdoor 
spaces where the public congregates for the agritourism use. This shall not include areas 
dedicated to agricultural production.  
 

ii. 24-foot two-way or 20-foot one-way circulation aisles shall be maintained.  To ensure 
drive aisles are maintained, the location of parking spaces shall be defined by providing 
some type of marker at the center of the space to be placed every 64 feet for two-way 
traffic and 60 feet for one-way traffic. 
 

iii. Parking lots shall be clearly demarcated through some physical means like timbers, 
fences, stakes, etc. 
 

iv. The on-site parking shall be arranged so no vehicle movements occur in the public right-
of-way and to avoid the accumulation of parked cars on the public roads.  
 

v. Parking and driveway surfaces may be pervious or hard surface. 
 

vi. Accessible spaces must be provided in accordance with the requirements of Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990, utilizing the most current design standards. 
 

vii. The Planning Commission may reduce or defer the number required parking spaces if 
the applicant provides a parking study that demonstrates, to the satisfaction of the 
Planning Commission, that a reduced number of parking spaces will meet the parking 
needs of the agritourism uses.  If parking is deferred, the location of those deferred 
spaces must be shown as such on the required site plan.  

 



12 
 

e. Lighting. Any exterior lighting installed related to an agritourism event or activity shall be 
appropriately shielded and directed downwards to minimize light pollution.  All lighting shall 
meet the standards of Section 78.720: Outdoor Lighting Standards. 

 
f. Trash receptacles. Trash receptacles shall be provided. If dumpsters are provided, they shall 

be placed on a hard surface and shall be completely obscured from view by a screen fence or 
wall. 

 
g. Screening. Opaque screening, consisting of an earth berm, evergreen screen, or an obscuring 

wall or fence, shall be provided near the primary public activity areas on those sides abutting 
or adjacent to a residential use. The use of natural landscape materials is encouraged. The 
Planning Commission may waive the screening requirement in specific cases where cause can 
be shown that the distance between the agritourism and residential use would not require 
screening. 

 
h. Restroom facilities. Public restroom facilities, temporary or permanent, shall be provided on 

site.   
 

i. Maximum capacity. The Fire Marshall or Building Official shall establish a maximum capacity 
for special activities or events which shall be appropriate to the site and facilities in terms of 
safe capacity in buildings, parking area and sanitation limitations of the site.  

 
5. Prohibited Uses. 

 
a. Motorized off-road vehicle racing or other similar motor vehicle activities. 

 
b. Other uses that the Planning Commission determines would disturb the general peace and 

enjoyment of the rural and/or residential character of the surrounding area due to excessive 
traffic, noise, smoke, odors, or visual clutter.  



 

 

 
 
 
March 20, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
Mtg Date:   March 28, 2019 
 
To:  Planning Commission   
 
From:  Julie Johnston, AICP 
 
Subject: DRAFT Lighting Ordinance  
 
 
The attached document is the most up-to-date DRAFT of the Lighting Ordinance for Planning Commission 
review. Based on the evaluation conducted at the February 14th Planning Commission meeting, all of the 
approved language was changed from red to black and the strikethrough language was removed.  Any 
language now shown in red is new from the February 14th review and any strikethrough language was 
requested to be removed by the Planning Commission. The language highlighted in yellow is ordinance 
language that still needs additional clarification.    
 
Staff contacted Mr. Dan Cunningham, Operations Manager of Circuit Electric, Inc. (CEI), who provided 
feedback on the draft lighting ordinance, to see if he could attend the March 28th meeting to assist in 
answering the Planning Commission’s questions.  Unfortunately, he is out of town, but maybe able to 
attend in April.   In the meantime, staff has provided some articles related to lighting ratios, which may 
help in our discussions of the outstanding items still to be addressed in the lighting ordinance.  
 
Thank you. 
 
 
  



1 
 

ARTICLE 54 - LIGHTING 
DRAFT 03/20/2019 

 
 
54.10 INTENT 
 
A. Statement of purpose. The purpose of this Article is to regulate the placement and arrangement of 

lighting within the Township. These regulations are intended to: 
 

1. Protect the public health, safety and general welfare by regulating lighting levels; 
 

2. Control light spillover and glare; 
 

3. Minimize the detrimental effect of urban sky glow;  
 

4. Encourage lighting systems which conserve energy and costs; 
 

5. Preserve community character and enhance the appearance of the Township; 
 

6. Provide for nighttime safety, and security. 
 
B. Objectives. Outdoor lighting shall satisfy the following objectives.  

 
1. Avoid excessive light spillover onto any adjacent premises; 

 
2. Be shielded, and downward directed so that the light intensity or brightness will not interfere with 

the enjoyment, health, safety, and welfare of surrounding properties;  
 

3. Control illumination of vertical architectural surfaces. 
 

4. Provide for uniform lighting within sites. 
 

5. Enable the fair and consistent enforcement of these regulations. 
 
54.20  APPLICABILITY 
 
Except as is otherwise provided below, these lighting requirements shall apply to all lighting 
installed on any property within the Township. Any lighting legally in existence before the 
effective date of this Ordinance that does not comply with these requirements shall be 
considered legal nonconforming and may remain, except as detailed in Section 54.80 and 
subject to the following provisions: 
 
A. Alterations to existing lighting. 

 
1. When poles and support structures are destroyed or removed, they must be 

replaced with poles and supports that comply with all of the provisions of this 
Section. 
 



2 
 

2. When luminaries are destroyed or removed, they must be replaced with 
luminaries that comply with all provisions of this Section. 

 
B. New parking lots or parking lot additions. When a new parking lot or addition to an 

existing parking lot is constructed, the new lot or lot addition must be provided with 
lighting in compliance with this Section. 
 

C. New structures, additions, or replacements. When a site is improved with new structures, 
or additions to, or replacements of existing structures, the lighting for the new structure, 
addition, or replacement on the site must meet the requirements of this Section.   

 
54.30 DEFINITIONS 
 
A. Ambient lighting - The general overall level of lighting in an area. 

 
B. Baffle or light shield - An opaque or translucent element to screen a light source from direct 

view. 
 

C. Building canopy - A portion of the building, whether structural or architectural in 
character, that projects outward.  
 

D. Bulb or lamp - The source of electric light. The term "bulb or lamp" is to be distinguished 
from the whole assembly (see Luminaire). 
 

E. Canopy structure - An overhead structure which is designed to allow vehicles or pedestrians 
to pass under it. 
 

F. Color rendering index (CRI) - a scale from 0 to 100 percent measuring a light source's ability to show 
object colors "realistically" or "naturally" compared to a familiar reference source, either 
incandescent light or daylight. 
 

G. Encased – a lamp obscured by translucent sheathing. 
 

H. Existing lighting - Any and all lighting installed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 

I. Exterior lighting - Temporary or permanent lighting that is installed, located, or used in such 
a manner to emit light outside. Fixtures that are installed indoors that are intended to draw 
attention to the exterior of the building from the outside are considered exterior lighting for 
the purposes of this Section. 
 

J. Fixture - The assembly that holds a lamp and may include an assembly housing, a mounting 
bracket or pole socket, a lamp holder, a ballast, a reflector or mirror, and a refractor or lens. 



3 
 

K. Fixture, cutoff – A fixture that allows no emissions above the horizontal plane passing 
through the lowest point on the fixture from where light is emitted.   

 
L. Fixture, non-cutoff – A fixture that allows light to emit beyond the horizontal plan of the 

lowest point of the fixture and/or allows light emissions in all directions. 

 
 
M. Foot-candle - A unit of measurement for quantifying the brightness of illumination produced 

on a surface. One foot-candle is equal to one lumen per square foot. 
 

N. Glare - Harsh, uncomfortably brilliant light caused by the ability to see an unshielded light 
source. 
 

O. Kelvin rating – A unit to measure the color temperature of a light source, the higher the 
Kelvin rating (expressed in K), the whiter the light source. 
 

P. Lamp - The component of a luminaire that produces the light.  
 

Q. Light pole - The structure to support and elevate a luminaire. 
 
R. Light trespass - Light that is unnecessarily emitted beyond the boundaries of the property on 

which the luminaire is located. 
 

S. Luminaire – The complete lighting system, including the lamp and light fixture. 
 
T. Lumen - A unit of measurement for quantifying the amount of light energy emitted by a light 

source (power of the light radiated by the light source).  



4 
 

 
U. Photometric plan - A diagram prepared by a lighting professional that is certified by the 

National Council on Qualifications for the Lighting Professions (NCQLP), or a state licensed 
professional engineer, architect, or landscape architect showing predicted maintained 
lighting levels produced by the proposed lighting fixtures, including any freestanding and 
building mounted lighting. 
 

V. Recessed - When a light is built into a structure or portion of a structure such that the light 
is fully cut off by the structure to which it is attached. 
 

W. Shielded - A bulb or lamp concealed by a baffle or light shield. 
 

X. Spotlight - A luminaire designed to light only a small, well defined area or object. 
 

Y. Urban sky glow - The brightening of the night sky due to manmade lighting.  
 

Z. Visibility - Being perceived by the human eye. 
 
54.40 EXEMPTIONS 
 
A. Emergency lighting necessary to conduct rescue operations, support public safety, provide emergency 

medical treatment, to illuminate emergency means of egress, or address any other emergency 
situation. 
 

B. Lighting operated by a public utility or agency during the course of constructing, repairing, or replacing 
public utilities and infrastructure. 
 

C. Temporary construction lighting, provided it is discontinued daily immediately upon completion of 
the work. 
 

D. Temporary holiday decorative lighting, from November 15th through January 5th. 
 

E. Lights on communication towers and other hazards to aerial navigation as may be required by the 
Federal Aviation Administration. 
 

F. Lighting used to illuminate a flag of the United States, subject to Section 54.60.D. 
 

G. Lighting associated with Township Department of Agriculture recognized agricultural activities. 
 

H. Typical residential light fixtures on residential buildings and associated accessory buildings, which do 
not violate Section 54.50, are exempt from the cut-off requirement when mounted at a height of eight 
feet or less. 
 

I. All outdoor light fixtures existing and legally installed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

54.50 PROHIBITED LIGHTING 
 
A. Lighting of a blinking, flashing, rotating, or fluttering nature, including changes in light 

intensity, brightness or color except for public safety purposes.  
 

B. Beacon and/or search lights except for public safety purposes. 
 

C. Fixtures that direct light upward unless permitted by this Article. 
 

D. Roof mounted lighting. 
 

E. Lighting of an intensity or brightness that interferes with enjoyment, health, safety, and welfare of 
surrounding properties. 
 

F. Unshielded luminous tube, LED, incandescent, or fluorescent lighting as an architectural detail on the 
exterior of any structure or the interior of any windows; including but not limited to rooflines, 
cornices, eaves, windows, and door openings. 
 

 
   (Examples of unshielded tube lighting)  
 
54.60 OUTDOOR LIGHTING STANDARDS 
 
A. General Provisions 

 
1. All luminaires are required to be cut-off fixtures, unless otherwise permitted in this Article. 

 
2. Security or flood lighting shall be attached to buildings and controlled by motion sensors, which 

extinguish within 10 minutes of activation. 
 

3. Lighting plans shall be designed to direct light into the development and away from adjacent 
property. 
 

4. Site and area lighting of nonresidential properties shall be designed such that light levels do not 
exceed 0.1 foot-candles at any point along the perimeter of the property adjacent to residential 
zoning or uses and 0.5 foot-candles adjacent to all other zoning and uses. 
 



6 
 

5. To provide for uniformity of lighting, the ratio of maximum to minimum levels of light within the 
illuminated areas of a nonresidential property shall not exceed 4:1. Exception shall be made for 
those areas along the perimeter of the property where a significant reduction in lighting is 
expected in order to comply with the provisions of the subsection above. 
 

6. Lighting shall be significantly reduced during non-operational building hours, allowing only 
lighting necessary for security purposes. Lighting installations should include timers, dimmers, 
and/or sensors to reduce overall energy consumption and eliminate unneeded lighting that 
affects urban sky glow. The lighting plan shall note when and how this reduction in lighting will 
occur. 
 

7. Lighting for all nonresidential developments shall have a minimum color rendering index (CRI) of 
65 and a Kelvin rating between 4000-5000k. 

 
B. Pole-Mounted Lighting  

 
1. All pole-mounted luminaires shall be affixed horizontally and angled perpendicular parallel to the 

ground. 
 

2. No more than two luminaires shall be allowed per pole. 
 

3. Luminaire height of 15 feet or less shall not exceed 12,000 lumens per luminaire and shall be 
spaced a minimum of 30 feet apart.  
 

4. Luminaire height greater than 15 feet and not exceeding 25 feet shall not exceed 20,000 lumens 
per luminaire and shall be spaced a minimum of 40 feet apart.  

 
5. Luminaire height exceeding 25 feet shall be subject to approval by the reviewing body. The 

applicant must prove, to the reviewing body’s satisfaction, that pole heights exceeding 25 feet 
are needed to ensure public health, safety, and welfare. If permitted, such lighting shall not 
exceed 40,000 lumens per luminaire and shall be spaced a minimum of 50 feet apart.  

 
C. Building-Mounted Lighting  

 
1. Pedestrian walkways and doorways 

 
a. Shall not exceed 14-feet in height.   

 
b. Each luminaire shall not exceed 8,000 lumens and shall be spaced so the lighting for 

pedestrian walkways and entrances does not exceed 2.0 foot-candles and entryways do not 
exceed 6.0 foot-candles. 

 
2. Luminaires used for the sole purpose of illuminating a building façade:  

 
a. May be up to 1.5 foot-candles averaged over the building façade.   

 
b. May be located on the building or be ground-mounted.  

 



7 
 

c. Light generated from said fixtures shall be appropriately shielded so that no light is emitted 
beyond the building facade.  
 

3. Architectural lighting 
 
a. The use of architectural features on the building, such as a canopy, which prevent the 

projection of light beyond the architectural feature may satisfy the intent of this Section and 
allow the use of noncut-off fixtures, subject to the approval of the reviewing body. 
 

b. Internally illuminated bands – building façade. 
 
i. The reviewing body may approve the use of an internally illuminated architectural band 

or similar encased lighting accent on the façade of a building upon determining that such 
lighting accent would not cause off-site glare or light pollution.  
 

ii. Only one internally illuminated architectural band or similar encased lighting accent shall 
be permitted per building façade. 
 

iii. One linear foot of internally illuminated architectural band shall be allowed per linear foot 
of the building façade. 
 

iv. The band shall be no wider than 12-inches. 
 

v. The internally illuminated band shall not exceed 2,000 lumens and must provide 
consistent lighting levels throughout the band. 
 

vi. The band may be located at different elevations on the building façade, but at no time 
will the band be allowed to stack or overlap, except as noted in this Section. 
 

vii. Bands of different elevations may be allowed to overlap by no more than 12-inches where 
abutting architectural elements of varying heights meet. 
 

viii. At not time will internally illuminated architectural bands be allowed on a building façade 
which faces a residentially zoned property. 
 

ix. The reviewing body may allow an alternate approach to the width and placement of the 
internally illuminated architectural band or similar encased lighting accent if they find the 
alternate approach provides an aesthetic enhancement to the building without allowing 
an increase to the total linear feet of allowed lighting. 



8 
 

 

c. Internally illuminated bands – windows and doors. 
 
i. The reviewing body may approve internally illuminated architectural bands or similar 

encased lighting accents around a front building façade doors and windows, upon 
determining that such lighting accents would not cause off-site glare or light pollution.  
 

ii. The front building façade must face a public right-of-way.  For lots facing more than one 
public right-of-way, only one building façade may include internally illuminated 
architectural bands around the doors and windows. 
 

iii. These internally illuminated bands may not exceed 2,000 lumens and must provide 
consistent lighting levels throughout the band. 
 

iv. The band shall be no wider than 2-inches. 
 

v. The total allowed length of internally illuminated band or similar encased lighting shall 
not exceed 30 linear feet. 

 
D. Landscape Features and Green Belt Lighting 

 
1. Landscape luminaires may include uplighting, which is specifically directed at the landscape 

or plant feature.  
 

2. Shall be equipped with shields to help direct light to the landscape or plant feature and to 
help eliminate light spillover and glare.  
 

3. Shall not exceed 300 lumens per luminaire.  
 

4. Shall not exceed a height of 18-inches above grade. 
 

E.  Special Uses 
 

1. Service station/fuel sales canopy structure 
 



9 
 

a. Luminaires shall be recessed so that the lens cover is flush with the lower surface of the 
canopy and shielded by a fixture or the edge of the canopy so that light is directed 
downward. 
 

b. As an alternative, indirect lighting may be used where uplighting is reflected from the 
underside of the canopy.  When this method is used, luminaires must be shielded so that 
direct light is focused exclusively on the underside of the canopy. 
 

c. Luminaires shall not be mounted on the top or sides (fascia) of a canopy. 
 

d. Internally illuminated signs in compliance with the Sign Ordinance may be placed on the 
fascia of the canopy. 
 

e. The total light output directly below the canopy shall not exceed 30 foot-candles. 
 

2. Outdoor display areas 
 

a. The ratio of maximum to minimum foot-candles of light for a site which includes outdoor 
display may increase to 6:1 during hours of operation. 

 
3. Outdoor dining areas 

 
a. Decorative unshielded lighting may be used in outdoor dining areas as long as the lighting 

does not exceed 1.5 foot-candles and is designed to control light spillover and reduce 
glare to adjacent properties. 
 

b. Lighting in outdoor dining areas adjacent to residentially zoned or used land must be 
extinguished by 11:00 pm or when the business closes, whichever is first. 

 
54.70 INTERIOR LIGHTING 
 
Where interior lighting and/or lighting displays are located within 10 feet of a bay of windows, glass doors, 
or other transparent areas of a building facade, walls, or roof (e.g., skylights), the lighting shall be shielded 
or screened to reduce visibility and prevent glare to patrons, individuals on adjacent and nearby 
properties, and/or motorists on adjacent streets.  
 
54.80 EXISTING LIGHTING 
 
All lighting established prior to this Ordinance shall be so arranged as to avoid glare or direct illumination 
onto any portion of any adjacent rights-of-way or onto any adjacent premises.  
 
54.90 ADMINISTRATION 
 
A site lighting plan for uses requiring Site Plan review shall be submitted and shall provide the following 
information: 

 
A. Proposed location on premises of all outdoor light fixture(s), including all building-mounted lighting, 

architectural lighting, and landscape lighting.  



10 
 

 
B. Manufacturer specification sheets, cut-sheets, or other manufacturer provided information for all 

proposed luminaires that provides a description of the illumination devices, fixtures, lamps, supports, 
reflectors, and other devices, including lumens produced.   
 

C. The height of all luminaires and poles. 
 

D. A photometric plan showing foot-candle readings every ten feet within the subject site and ten feet 
beyond the property lines.  
 

E. If building elevations are proposed for illumination, drawings shall be provided for all relevant building 
elevations showing the fixtures, the portions of the elevations to be illuminated, the illuminance levels 
of the elevations, and the aiming point for any remote light fixture.   

 
 
 



��������� ��	
����������������������������

����������������������� �����!��� ���

"##$%&'(�)*+�,$-./$&-�0&)*+1%/$*&2&$)*+1$/3�4%/$*5�$&�6+7$&%&'(583�9%:$7�;<�=($/.>?@�AB�CD@�EFGH�CDFC�IJKDCJ?K�ALMJ?F?N@H�L@HCLJNC�AOCMAAL�IJKDCJ?K�JH�PG�QF?MFCJ?K�CD@�O?JBALQJCG�AB�CD@�IJKDCJ?KAR@L�HAQ@�AB�AL�FII�AB�CD@�HJC@S�T?JBALQJCG�LFCJAH�FL@�F?�JQUALCF?C�UFLC�AB�F�NAQUI@C@�H@C�AB�IJKDCJ?K�NLJC@LJF�F?MNF?�DFR@�F�UAHJCJR@�@BB@NC�A?�CD@�VOFIJCG�AB�IJKDCJ?K�J?HCFIIFCJA?HS�WD@�I@R@I�AB�O?JBALQJCG�AR@L�F�HJC@�DAE@R@L�JH?AC�CD@�HFQ@�FH�CD@�O?JBALQJCG�AR@L�UFLC�AB�CD@�HJC@X�HOND�FH�EFIYEFGH�AL�UFLYJ?K�IACHS�WDJH�F?M�ACD@L�PFHJNFHU@NCH�AB�O?JBALQJCG�LFCJAH�FL@�APRJAOHIG�?AC�O?M@LHCAAM�J?�HAQ@�ALMJ?F?N@H�F?M�FL@�HAQ@CJQ@H�KLAHHIGQJHFUUIJ@MS�WDJH�L@FUU@FLF?N@�AB�FHHANJFC@M�ULAPI@QH�MO@�CA�C@ND?JNFI�JK?ALF?N@�JH�QOND�QAL@�BL@VO@?C�F?MHJK?JBJNF?C�CDF?�?@N@HHFLGSWD@�BJLHC�JHHO@�JH�CDFC�O?JBALQJCG�LFCJAH�NF?�P@�M@BJ?@M�J?�QF?G�EFGH�F?M�AR@L�F?G�FL@FS�WD@L@BAL@�F?G�ALMJ?F?N@CDFC�MA@H�?AC�NI@FLIG�HCFC@�EDFC�RFIO@H�FL@�P@J?K�NAQUFL@M�J?�CD@�O?JBALQJCG�LFCJA�JH�C@ND?JNFIIG�J?NAQUI@C@�F?MULFNCJNFIIG�OH@I@HHS�WD@�M@BJ?JCJA?�BAL�ZO?JBALQJCG�LFCJAZ�NF?�RFLG�BLAQ�FR@LFK@[CA[QJ?JQOQ�CA�QF\JQOQ[CA[QJ?JQOQX�F?M�NF?�P@�FUUIJ@M�CA�R@LCJNFI�AL�DALJ]A?CFI�̂AL�@R@?�PACD_�RFIO@H�BAL�@JCD@L�JIIOQJ?F?N@�AL�IOQJ?F?N@�[J?JCJFI�AL�QFJ?CFJ?@M�[�FC�KLFM@�AL�FPAR@�[�AR@L�CD@�@?CJL@�HJC@�AL�UFLC�AB�JCS�WD@�QAHC�NAQQA?�O?JBALQJCG�LFCJA�J?ALMJ?F?N@H�JH�CD@�LFCJA�AB�CD@�QF\JQOQ[CA[QJ?JQOQ�JIIOQJ?F?N@�FC�KLFM@�[�J?JCJFI�[�AR@L�CD@�@?CJL@�HJC@SWD@�UAHHJPI@�LF?K@�AB�O?JBALQJCG�LFCJAH�NF?�QFY@�JC�MJBBJNOIC�CA�O?M@LHCF?M�CD@�JQUIJNFCJA?H�AB�O?JBALQJCG�LFCJAHJ?�UFLCJNOIFLS�̀�LFCJA�AB�abc�BAL�FR@LFK@�CA�QJ?JQOQ�JH�LAOKDIG�CD@�HFQ@�FH�F�LFCJA�AB�cdbc�̂CA�cebc_�BAL�QF\JQOQCA�QJ?JQOQS�f@@CJ?K�abc�F?M�cdbc�LFCJAH�FH�NLJC@LJF�EJII�P@�FLAO?M�gd[cddh�QAL@�@\U@?HJR@�CDF?�Q@@CJ?KNLJC@LJF�AB�ibc�F?M�edbc�̂CA�ejbc_S�̀H�L@VOJL@Q@?CH�BAL�O?JBALQJCG�J?NL@FH@X�CD@�FIQAHC�FII�AB�CD@�NAHCH�AB�IJKDCJ?KHGHC@QH�FIHA�J?NL@FH@X�FH�MA�F?G�UAIIOCJA?H�FHHANJFC@M�EJCD�J?HCFIIJ?K�F?M�AU@LFCJ?K�CD@�IJKDCJ?K�HGHC@QSkOLCD@LQAL@�CD@�HUFNJ?K�AB�CD@�NFINOIFCJA?�UAJ?CH�@BB@NCH�CD@�L@HOICJ?K�O?JBALQJCG�LFCJA�RFIO@HS�kAL�@\FQUI@X�FO?JBALQJCG�LFCJA�AB�cdSd�BAL�QF\JQOQ[CA[QJ?JQOQ�QJKDC�P@�@FHG�CA�Q@@C�EJCD�HUFNJ?K�AB�HFG�ed\ed�F?M�QONDQAL@�MJBJNOIC�CA�Q@@C�EJCD�HUFNJ?K�AB�j\jS�WD@�HFQ@�IJKDCJ?K�HGHC@Q�CDFC�ULAMON@H�lSd�QF\[CA[QJ?�A?�F�cd\cdHUFNJ?K�QJKDC�@FHJIG�ULAMON@�cdSd�AL�DJKD@L�EJCD�g\g�HUFNJ?KX�@HU@NJFIIG�JB�CD@�QAO?CJ?K�D@JKDC�AB�CD@�IOQJ?FJL@JH�O?M@L�eg�B@@CS�̀?G�HU@NJBJNFCJA?�AB�O?JBALQJCG�LFCJAH�HDAOIM�J?NIOM@�NA?HJM@LFCJA?�AB�CD@�HUFNJ?K�ABNFINOIFCJA?H�UAJ?CHS�>?@�L@FHA?FPI@�HAIOCJA?�JH�CA�HUFN@�CD@�NFINOIFCJA?�UAJ?CH�PFH@M�A?�CD@�D@JKDC�AB�CD@IOQJ?FJL@HX�HFG�?A�QAL@�CDF?�A?@[DFIB�AL�A?@[VOFLC@L�AB�CD@�QAO?CJ?K�D@JKDCS�WDJH�NF?�APRJAOHIG�P@NAQ@�QJNLA[QF?FK@Q@?C�AB�CD@�IJKDCJ?K�M@HJ?K�F?M�HOPQJCCFIX�J?NL@FHJ?K�CD@�NAHCH�AB�UIF?�L@RJ@EX�F?M�CD@L@BAL@�A?@�AB�CD@ÂBC@?�DJMM@?_�NAHCH�AB�FUUIGJ?K�O?JBALQJCG�NLJC@LJF�J?�ALMJ?F?N@HSÌI�AB�CD@H@�@\FQUI@�O?JBALQJCG�LFCJAH�FL@�CA�P@�FUUIJ@M�CA�CD@�L@I@RF?C�UFLC�AB�CD@�HJC@X�?AC�AR@L�CD@�@?CJL@�HJC@SmALYJ?K�EJCD�CD@H@�MJHCJ?NC�FL@FH�Q@F?H�CD@�@?CLG�LAFMX�UFLYJ?K�IAC�F?M�EFIYEFGH�NF?�@FND�P@�FM@VOFC@IG�F?MO?JBALQIG�JIIOQJ?FC@M�EJCDAOC�DFRJ?K�CA�P@�@\UIJNJCIG�L@IFC@M�CA�@FND�ACD@L�[�AL�EALH@X�IJQJC@M�PG�CD@�RFIO@�FCHAQ@�ACD@L�UAJ?C�CDFC�NAOIM�P@�FII�CD@�EFG�FNLAHH�CD@�HJC@S�̀UUIGJ?K�O?JBALQJCG�LFCJAH�CA�F?�@?CJL@�HJC@�NF?�P@@BB@NCJR@X�POC�CD@�RFIO@H�F?M�FUUIJNFCJA?�?@@M�CA�P@�L@FHA?FPI@�AL�CD@G�P@NAQ@�C@ND?JNFIIG�ELA?K�F?M�ULFNCJNFIIGOH@I@HHS�WDJH�JH�@HU@NJFIIG�CLO@�BAL�F?G�ALMJ?F?N@�CDFC�FIHA�J?NIOM@H�L@HCLJNCJA?H�BAL�IJKDCJ?K�FC�CD@�ULAU@LCG�IJ?@XP@NFOH@�CDJH�NAQPJ?FCJA?�AB�L@HCLJNCJA?H�NF?�NL@FC@�H@R@L@�IJQJCFCJA?H�BAL�IJKDCJ?K�HGHC@QH�[�HAQ@CJQ@H�QFYJ?K�JCJQUAHHJPI@�CA�Q@@C�CD@�UOPIJHD@M�nopq̀ �L@NAQQ@?MFCJA?HS



��������� ��	
����������������������������

����������������������� �����!��� ���

"#$%&&'(�%))&'#$*�+$#,-./#0'�.%0#-1�0-�2$0#.2�1#021�3%$�.24+#.2�&#*50#$*�%.2%1�05%0�-052.6#12�$227�$-0�82#&&+/#$%027�%0�%&&(�-.�0-�&-62.�&292&1:�"-.�2;%/)&2(�#,�%�+$#,-./#0'�.%0#-�#1�.24+#.27�0-�82�$-�/-.2�05%$�<=�,-./%;#/+/>0->/#$#/+/(�052$�#,�052�/#$#/+/�#&&+/#$%$32�%0�052�27*2�-,�052�).-)2.0'�#1�=:<�,3(�052�/%;#/+/%&&-627�%0�%$'�)-#$0�-$�052�1#02�#1�052�<:=�,3:�?-�052�27*2�-,�%�1#02�/%'�$227�0-�82�@-92.>#&&+/#$%027@�0-�=:A�,3�1-05%0�052�/%;#/+/�,-.�1-/2�-052.�&-3%0#-$�-$�052�1#02�3%$�82�%1�5#*5�%1�A:=�,3:�B5#1�122/1�0-�3-$0.%7#30�052�*-%&1-,�052�&#*50#$*�-.7#%$321�8'�#$3.2%1#$*�#&&+/#$%0#-$�%0�052�27*2�-,�).-)2.0'�(�%1�62&&�%1�.24+#.#$*�+$$23211%'&#*50#$*�%&-$*�6#05�%�3-..21)-$7#$*�#$3.2%12�#$�2$2.*'�+12�%$7�&#*50�)-&&+0#-$:B5#1�1#02�#1�).-9#727�%1�%�)+8&#3�12.9#32�8'�.21-7%$32�)+8&#15#$*�3-:�%$7�$-�*+%.%$022�#1�#/)&#27�-.�).-9#727:B5#1�)%*2�#1�12.927�C�/%#$0%#$27�8'�C�DEFG�HIEJKLM�NJ�OP�QRS�TU�VW��



��������� ��	
���	�����������������
���������������������	���� !"�#��������$��%��	��������&'��(�)(


����������*���(�)(*+���()�	�)�	
���	,����������,��,�������	�,��,)��,���%��	,)��,��#������ ���

-./012334567788893.4:;<:9=./7:<.>7?7@A>23AB>C44<A=D3A.B512334567788893.4:;<:9=./7:<.>7=D30>.EF7<A>23AB>GD44<A=D3A.B57?7@DBH5=D40IJ;3H..E12334567788893.4:;<:9=./7:<.>7=D30>.EF7<A>23AB>GD44<A=D3A.B57<DBH5=D40G.;3H..E7?7@A>23AB>KBAL.E/A3F6M3;HFM2.85CBN/4.E3DB3CHODB3D>0.L@PQRAS3;E05L.ETDEUAB>@.35VWXYZW[X\[W]̂_̀WZabcZdeacŶfgh[ìĵ_Zk[Zhelk[ZkXm̂]VnopWqZd_mg]̂_rk_sW[XV̂ZgT.530H.BC4EA<tuvwxy12334567788893.4:;<:9=./7:<.>7<A>23AB>G;BAL.E/A3FGDBGDHODB3D>0G.LG<0HG4DEUAB>G<.3GzS3;E057?:FQDO0{;E3B0E12334567788893.4:;<:9=./7:<.>7D;32.E7HDO07?

JB0.L320LD53053>E.8AB>50>/0B35.L320@PQ=.//0E=AD<<A>23AB>/DEU03A55A30uDE0Du53E003DBH4DEUAB><.3<A>23AB>9J8B0E5.L=.//0E=AD<4E.40E3FDBH/;BA=A4D<A3A05AB4DE3A=;<DEDE0<..UAB>D3@PQ5.<;3A.B5L.EB08H0O0<.4/0B35.E3.E04<D=0-NQzS3;E05AB0SA53AB>D44<A=D3A.B59NB32A54.53808A<<<..UD3.==;4DB340E=043A.B5.L5DL03Fu50=;EA3FDBHOA5A:A<A3FAB4DEUAB><.359M40=Az=D<<Fu808A<<E0OA08D53;HF32D3;505@PQ4DEUAB><.3<A>23zS3;E0517zS3;E057=.//0E=AD<G<A>23GzS3;E057.;3H..EG<A>23GzS3;E057DE0DG5A30G<A>23GzS3;E05?3.L.=;5.B320E0<D3A.B52A4:03800BA<<;/ABDB=0<0O0<5DBH<A>23AB>;BAL.E/A3FDBH2.832038.DLL0=3.==;4DB340E=043A.B5.L5DL03F9|20E05;<35DE05A>BAz=DB3L.E4DEUAB><.3<A>23AB>H05A>BDBHzS3;E050<0=3A.BDBH=DB:0D44<A0H/.E0>0B0ED<<F3.5A30uDE0DDBH53E003<A>23AB>D580<<9VWXYZW[XomgWX[}_WZm_Wk]̂_rk_sW[XV̂Z~WXYZW[X
� �



��������� ��	
���	�����������������
���������������������	���� !"�#��������$��%��	��������&'��(�)(


����������*���(�)(*+���()�	�)�	
���	,����������,��,�������	�,��,)��,���%��	,)��,��#������ ���

-.//012304561/07899013:25814;/892<0=>>.951:2516?165100/516@87502A8;B8/2<C90/57:D=?@BCE;8/F:/G516>82>56<2516:/0;8.13512<0>:2042H0/45818;IJKLMD<22F4NOOPPPQ504Q8/6O428/0O/0789901303KF/:725704K:13K:145K42:13:/34O>56<2516K;8/KF:/G516K;:75>52504OEDLMRSEQTUUVWXYZY[\=>>.951:170H:>.042<:29:27<2<0F<A457:>7<:/:720/542574:13.15].0>56<2516100348;2<0F:/G516>82100328̂03020/95103QIJKLM65H04/07899013:25814Q_YX̀abWXcde56<2516.15;8/952ADP<57<2/:14>:204282<0<.9:1F0/70F25818;<8P0H01>A5>>.951:2581543542/5̂.2032</8.6<8.22<0F:/G516>82E540fF/04403:42<0/:2588;9:f59.9K28K95159.95>>.951:2581>0H0>4Qg<07.//012=?@BC/07899013:258154RhNRD:>2<8.6<RMNR54789981>A.403EQg<5490:142<0/07:1̂0Rh2590498/05>>.951:2581P<0190:4./0351810:/0:8;2<0F:/G516>82789F:/0328:182<0/QCRhNR8/RMNR.15;8/952A/:2583804182F/83.70>56<25162<:29842F08F>0P8.>37:>>.15;8/9Q=2P5>>/04.>251̂82</̂56<2:133:/G:/0:48;2<0F:/G516>82Qg<54.10H011044P5>>>5G0>AF/83.70;00>51648;51407./52A;8/F08F>0P:>G516282<05/H0<57>0Q=1:3352581i2<0403:/G:/0:47:1:>480178./:605>>5752̂0<:H58/Qe:7G8;>56<2516.15;8/952A54>:/60>A:;.1725818;2/:352581:>j=klf2./04.40351F:/G516>824Qj=k>:9F46010/:20>56<2̂A90:148;:10>072/57:/7̂02P0012.1642010>072/8304514530:1:/72.̂0Qg<54:/72.̂07:1̂07814530/03:F851248./708;>56<2Qg<0lf2./0304561/0K35/07242<0>56<251282<03045/033542/5̂.2581Qg<0/04.>2548;201<56<8/<56<0/51201452A5>>.951:258135/072>A.130/2<0j=klf2./04:133:/G0/:/0:4̂02P001810lf2./0:132<010f2Qm52<2<0090/6017A8;e?ki2<0544.04:/8.13>56<2516.15;8/952A51F:/G516>82>56<25167:1̂0:33/0440351P:A42<:2P0/0F/0H58.4>A35n7.>28/59F8445̂>0P52<j=kQe?klf2./0451<0/012>AF/8H530<56<0/.15;8/952A789F:/0328j=klf2./04Qg<0>56<2;/89e?klf2./04546010/:203182;/89:4516>0F851248./70i>5G0j=kî.2;/899.>25F>0i3547/020e?k4Qg<54;:72.4.:>>A:>>8P4;8/9.7<>8P0/9:f59.9K28K95159.9.15;8/952A/:2584P<01e?klf2./04:/0.403Qo\UZcXaYpqXrs\ct\\YTUUVWXYZY[\ZYu_YX̀abWXcdg<0/0>:25814<5F̂02P0015>>.951:170:13.15;8/952A51F:/G516>82>56<2516542<0;87.48;:42.3ÂA2<0e56<2516I040:/7<-0120/DeI-E:2I01440>:0/J8>A207<157=14252.20Qg<0eI-F.̂>54<03/04.>24D51LMRhE8;:/040:/7<F/8v0722<0A7813.72038;877.F:12F0/70F258148;2<0G0A544.048;4:;02Ai407./52A:13H545̂5>52A51F:/G516>824.130/35;;0/0125>>.951:170>0H0>4:132P835;;0/012>56<2516.15;8/952A/:2584NRMNRD̂:40>510E:13wNRD59F/8H03EQg<0F:/G516>82512<042.3A90:4./03RLM;2QfLhM;2Qg<0/040:/7<0/4P0/0:̂>0284P527<̂02P00145f>56<2>0H0>4DMQL;8827:13>0428xQM;8827:13>04:132P8.15;8/952A/:2584RMNRD̂:40>510E:13wNRD01<:1703.15;8/952AEQg<05120/H50P4P0/07813.7203P52<877.F:124512<0F:/G516>82:2156<2P52<18;.>>9881:1395159:>7812/5̂.25818;82<0/10:/̂A>56<2516Qg<0877.F:124F0/705H032<0>56<2516:44:;0/P<012<0.15;8/952AP:4<56<0/DwNREQyz{|z}~�|������z�����������z|���������|���|���z����z|�|~���������z|~��������2<0//040:/7<<:4781l/9032<0407817>.45814Q�aY[UVpXaYp



��������� ��	
���	�����������������
���������������������	���� !"�#��������$��%��	��������&'��(�)(


����������*���(�)(*+���()�	�)�	
���	,����������,��,�������	�,��,)��,���%��	,)��,��#������ ���

-.//012334445/6078975:6;3;<=9>/?@<A@;<9BC8/D@DC7AE@;?F>8;@<A?<@9>G./@BC4@HIC@IJJK@/L0?@>K@DCCCE@7A6MN?@19>0O//?A@EM8:E9?@;68M/PQ<=9>/?RS@QRTBCUVD@DCWSXYBCZT[\RA?<T>G./@H]CẐ_Q ̀[a8<9@VL0?bc@DCCCX@_9>0O//?AQ68M/-.//012334445/6078975:6;3;<=9>/?@<A@;<9BC8/D@DC7AE@;?F>8;@<A?<@9>G./@BC4@HIC@IJJK@/L0?@>K@DCCCE@7A6MN?@19>0O//?A@EM8:E9?@;68M/Pdeefghic>?4̂A6F8:/

-.//012334445/6078975:6;3j<AK>1@<Ak@HIC@.K@kDJ@DlCK@HIC4@<A?<@9>G./@<Fj81/<79?@;68M/@7A6MN?Pm<AK>1RSk@HIC@̀cYT[\kDJ@DlCcHICZRA?<T>G./@RFj81/<79?Q68M/@WA6MN?-.//012334445/6078975:6;3j<AK>1@<Ak@HIC@.K@kDJ@DlCK@HIC4@<A?<@9>G./@<Fj81/<79?@;68M/@7A6MN?Pdfnoghic>?4̂A6F8:/
pqr stuvwuxrwuw

T[\O=/8A?1>M0<AE>MG96/10A6K>F?<1>GM>O:<M/7?M?O/:6;0<A?F/6̀b\y6A>M:A?<1>MG6::80<M/y??9>MG16y1<y?/L<MFK>1>7>9>/L@9<AG?9L7?:<81?6y>M:A?<1?F9>G./>MG8M>y6A;>/L5V.>11/8FL<916F?;6M1/A</?F/.<//.?.>G.?A>M.?A?M/9>G./>MG8M>y6A;>/L6yT[\O=/8A?1>M0<AE>MG96/1;?<M1964?A9>G./9?K?91<A?0611>79?4.>9?M6/:6;0A6;>1>MG<MF0?A.<01?K?M?M.<M:>MGz6::80<M/0?A:?0/>6M16y1<y?/L5S?<F/.?:6;09?/?TS{1/8FL-.//023344459A:5A0>5?F830A6GA<;13169>F1/</?30<AE>MGT6/UM>y6A;>/L5<10P5|}~���������|������������~���������_6AALz/.>10A6F8:/F6?1M6/?=>1/5_6AALz/.>10A6F8:/F6?1M6/?=>1/5





�

���������	
��
����

������
��������
����	��������
���

���
����
 ��
 !"#�$�
%�$$��&&'''(����)��)!"#�$�(!�*&+

,--.���)�
*/#��0#1�)
��2�
���1
��2�0!���
#1
"!1)/0$�$#!1
'#$�
0#*�$#1*
��!3�))#!1�0)
%'#$�
�4���#�1"�
#1
��2�0!�#1*
*!!�
0#*�$#1*
�0�1)+
$!
�#�
"!55/1#$#�)
'#)�#1*
$!
"!1$�!0
0#*�$
�!00/$#!1
�1�
���)��2�
$��
1#*�$
)��( 6789::;
<=>?8=@>A?:7<9
BC
DE;CF7<<G
9CA=>@C9
H=8?
;C>E;9
8:
I<EDCJC@8K
=@8C@A=8GK
8=J=@>K
97;E8=:@K
E@9
D:<:;L

M::9
<=>?8=@>
H=<<NOP;:J:8C
QEFC8GRSTUV
WXYZ[\
X]
̂T[
̂V_V]]̀UXWa\
bV[[VU\c

de
̂T[
fV]XŶVf
̀̂f
X̂][̀WWVf
_TUUV_[Wag
ĥ]̀eV
YẀUV
_̀ 
̂UV]hW[g
UVfh_X̂Y
[ZV
VeeV_[
Te
WXYZ[X̂Y
iZX_Z
_̀ 
̂_T̂[UXbh[V
[T
̀__XfV̂[]
̀̂f
ZX̂fVU
jX]XbXWX[ac
kXYZ[X̂Y
[Z̀[
X]
[TT
bUXYZ[
X̂[VUeVUV]
iX[Z
[ZV
VaVl]
̀bXWX[a
[T
̀f̀m[
[T
f̀UnVU
̀UV̀]cOQEoC
p:@CGqfZVUX̂Y
[T
mUTeV]]XT̂ ẀWa
UV_TrrV̂fVf
WXYZ[
WVjVW]
mUTjXfV]
̀fVsh̀[V
XWWhrX̂̀[XT̂c

tZXVWfVf
eXu[hUV]
iX[Z
VeeX_XV̂[
WXYZ[
bhWb]
̀UV
rTUV
_T][vVeeV_[XjV
bV_̀h]V
[ZVa
h]V
WV]]
V̂VUYa
ba
fXUV_[X̂Y
[ZV
WXYZ[
[TìUf
[ZV
YUTĥfc



tVV
[ZX]
iVb]X[V
eTU
_T][
_Trm̀UX]T̂]w
Z[[mwxxiiiĉV[̀__ĉV[xymThW]V̂xWXYZ[_T][cZ[rWO z:@AC;oC
{E87;E<
|CA:7;DCA


d̂̀ mmUTmUX̀[V
TU
Vu_V]]XjV
WXYZ[X̂Y
ì][V]
ThU
WXrX[Vf
̂̀[hÙW
UV]ThU_V]
̀̂f
mTWWh[V]
[ZV
̀XU
̀̂f


ì[VU
ba
ĥ V̂_V]]̀UXWa
bhÛX̂Y
ThU
WXrX[Vf
]hmmWa
Te
eT]]XW
ehVW]cO}C
}C88C;
{C=>?B:;A~u_V]]XjV
TU
rX]fXUV_[Vf
WXYZ[X̂Y
_̀ 
̂X̂[UhfV
T̂
[ZV
mUXj̀_a
Te
T[ZVU]
iZV̂
WXYZ[
TU
YẀUV
[UV]m̀]]V]
TjVU
mUTmVU[a
WX̂V]cO|C8E=@
z:JJ7@=8G�A
z?E;ED8C;
E@9
|C97DC
Q�G><:H�hU
_WV̀U
jXVi
Te
[ZV
f̀Un
][̀UUa
̂XYZ[
]na
X]
̀
UV]ThU_V
[T
bV
mUV]VUjVf
̀̂f
mUT[V_[Vfc

t[Ùa
`̂f
Vu_V]]XjV
WXYZ[X̂Y
_T̂[UXbh[V]
[T
�WXYZ[
mTWWh[XT̂�g
_Wh[[VUg
̀̂f
ĥ^̀[hÙW
�]na
YWTi�cOP;:8CD8
�D:<:>G
:F
�<:;E
E@9
�E7@E�V]V̀U_Z
][hfXV]
X̂fX_̀[V
[Z̀[
̀U[XeX_X̀W
̂XYZ[
WXYZ[X̂Y
fX]Uhm[]
[ZV
rXYÙ[X̂Yg
eVVfX̂Yg
̀̂f
bUVVfX̂Y
Z̀bX[]
Te
r̀ â
iXWfWXeV
]mV_XV]g
̀]
iVWW
̀]
YUTi[Z
m̀[[VÛ]
Te
[UVV]c
tVV
UVeVUV̂_V]
X̂
�ZV
~_TWTYX_̀W
�T̂]VshV̂_V]
Te
qU[XeX_X̀W
�XYZ[
kXYZ[X̂YcO|C97DC
�CE<8?
|=A�AkXYZ[
̀[
̂XYZ[
̂T[
T̂Wa
fX]Uhm[]
aThU
]WVVm
bh[
̀W]T
X̂[VUeVUV]
iX[ZaThU
_XU_̀fX̀̂
UZa[Zr]c
�V_V̂[
UV]V̀U_Z
X̂fX_̀[V]
[Z̀[
X̂[Uh]XjV
WXYZ[X̂Y
r̀a
UVfh_V
[ZV
mUTfh_[XT̂
Te
rVẀ[T̂X̂g
̀
bV̂VeX_X̀W
ZTUrT̂Vg
̀̂f
̀
UV]hW[X̂Y
ÙX]V
X̂
[ZV
Ù[V]
Te
bUV̀][
̀̂f
T[ZVU
_̀ _̂VU]c�@D<79C9N

�L

�=E>;EJA
:F
�DDCI8EB<C��@EDDCI8EB<C
�=>?8=@>
�=�87;CA


�L

�:H
8:
�CoC<:I
E@
�DDCI8EB<C
�=>?8=@>
P<E@



�L

�CF=@=8=:@A
:F
�7<<
z78
6FFK
Q?=C<9C9K
E@9
|�p
A=>@
<=>?8=@>
�=�87;CA


�L

�=>?8=@>
P<E@
Q7BJ=AA=:@A


�L

|CD:JJC@9C9
�<<7J=@E8=:@
�CoC<A
F:;
oE;=:7A
8EA�A



�

�������������	
�
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������

� !"#!$%�&'(#)*%+�',�-'.�/#*0 122222345�6789�:7;<:�=:=;>9?;<:�48@@:?=94�A79�BA8::C;8>�7AAB�79�DA8::6�4E?=:F=FG�:?HE>�A?I>89=4J��KL;=�678�E<M=�4=:=;>=F�A?I>89=4�NE?;E�<9=�;7O@<>?P:=�N?>E�6789�<9;E?>=;>89=�<LF�;7OO8L?>6Q�;7L><;>�>E=�O<L8A<;>89=9R4�9=@9=4=L><>?M=�>7�4==�<�4<O@:=�7A�>E=�A?I>89=S4T<LF�>7�<45�A79�<�A9==�:?HE>?LH�@:<LJ��UA�678�E<M=�<�V3W�A?:=Q�>E=�@:<L�;<L�P=�=<4?:6�@97M?F=F�?L�<�4E79>�@=9?7F�7A�>?O=J��22222��X74>�:?HE>?LH�O<L8A<;>89=94�E<M=�3@@:?;<>?7L�W=@<9>O=L>4�NE?;E�N?::�=I=;8>=�A9==�:?HE>?LH�@:<L4�>7�O==>�:7;<:�:?HE>?LH�;7F=4J��Y==�>E?4�N=P4?>=�A79�:?L54�>7�O<L8A<;>89=94Z��E>>@Z[[NNNJF<95456J79H[O;[@<H=JF7\4?>=]<H=UF̂ _̀abbc79HUF̂?F4<Y<O@:=�7A�d=P�9=><?:=94ZNNNJ4><996L?HE>:?HE>4J;7O�<LF�NNNJH9==L=<9>E:?HE>?LHJ;7O



�

���������	�
�������������
�����������
����������������������

��������
�������������������������� �� �!��
���������������"���������������� ������������#�������$%&'(�()*+%,�,-./'-�0)-�&1-&(�.*1�2)/3)�/%%+4/'&0/*'�/(�5%&''-,6�70-4/8/'9�-&3)�&1-&�:-696�5&1;/'9�%*0<�,**12&=(<�2&%;2&=(<�(/9'&9-<�.*%/&9->�2/0)�0)-�&'0/3/5&0-,�)*+1(�*.�+(-6�?*44-13/&%�*+0,**1�%/9)0/'9�()*+%,�@-�+(-,�.*1�(&.-�5-,-(01/&'�5&((&9-�&',�51*5-10=�/,-'0/./3&0/*'<�&',�%/0�,+1/'9�&30/A-�@+(/'-((�)*+1(�&',�()+0�*..�&.0-12&1,6�B��������
��������������������������������������������
�������"�#�����:C--�D55-',/E��>6��C5-3/.=�7FC�:7%%+4/'&0/'9�F'9/'--1/'9�C*3/-0=>�GH+%%�?+0�I..G�,-(/9'&0-,�*1�J.+%%=�()/-%,-,K�./E0+1-(<�(*�0)&0�'*�%/9)0�/(�-4/00-,�&@*A-�0)-�%*2-(0�%/9)0�-4/00/'9�5&10�*.�0)-�./E0+1-6�L*5�4*+'0-,�(/9'�%/9)0/'9�/(�1-3*44-',-,�2/0)�GMNOG�:,/()>�0=5-�()/-%,(<�&',�&/4-,�(*�0)&0�0)-�%/9)0�.&%%(�-'0/1-%=�*'�0)-�(/9'�&',�/(�5*(/0/*'-,�(*�0)&0�0)-�%/9)0�(*+13-�:@+%@>�/(�'*0�A/(/@%-�.1*4�&'=�5*/'0�*..�0)-�51*5-10=�*1�/'0*�0)-�1*&,2&=�0*�1-,+3-�9%&1-6��H*1�-&3)�*'-�(P+&1-�.**0�*.�(/9'<�+(+&%%=�'*�4*1-�0)&'�QRR�%+4-'(�/(�'-3-((&1=�.*1�9**,�A/(/@/%/0=6�����S�T�
����������������
�������#����U�#
������V��?*45&30�.%+*1-(3-'0�:Q�RRW>�*1�X/9)�$1-((+1-�C*,/+4�/(�1-3*44-',-,�+'%-((�0)-�%/9)0�/(�4*0/*'�(-'(*1�&30/A&0-,<�/'�2)/3)�3&(-�/'3&',-(3-'0�*1�0)-�/'(0&'0�(0&10�3*45&30�.%+*1-(3-'0�@+%@(�3&'�@-�+(-,6��O-0&%�X&%/,-�:,+-�0*�/0(�)/9)-1�3*(0(<�-'-19=�+(-<�/45&30�*'�0)-�-'A/1*'4-'0<�&',�91-&0-1�3*'01/@+0/*'�0*�G(;=�9%*2G>�/(�,/(3*+1&9-,<�&(�2-%%�&(�%/9)0�(*+13-(�1&0-,�*A-1��RRR�W-%A/'Y�&',�*+0,&0-,�O-13+1=�Z&5*1�@+%@(�&1-�51*)/@/0-,6[�\��
�!��]��#�����]������
���#������������̂��� ���̂� ��������������̂�������D+0*4&0/3�3*'01*%(�0+1'�*..�%/9)0(�2)-'�'*0�'--,-,6��D%%�%/9)0(�()*+%,�@-�-E0/'9+/()-,�'*�%&0-1�0)&'�*'-�)&%.�)*+1�&.0-1�0)-�3%*(-�*.�@+(/'-((6��D,,/0/*'&%�4*0/*'�(-'(*1�&30/A&0-,�%/9)0/'9�3&'�@-�+(-,�.*1�-4-19-'3=�&33-((6��DA*/,�G,+(;_0*_,&2'G�(-'(*1(�2/0)*+0�&�4/,,%-�*.�0)-�'/9)0�()+0�*..�3*'01*%6��N/9)0(�&%*'-�2/%%�'*0�(-1A-�0*�G51*0-30G�51*5-10=�&',�&1-�&�5**1�G(-3+1/0=G�,-A/3-6��FE&4/'-�*0)-1�4-&'(�*.�51*0-30/'9�51*5-10=�&',�0*�,/(3*+1&9-�31/4/'&%�&30/A/0=6���N-0�=*+1�%*3&%�5*%/3-�;'*2�0)&0�=*+�)&A-�&�J%/9)0(�*+0K�5*%/3=�(*�0)&0�0)-=�3&'�/'A-(0/9&0-�/.�0)-=�(--�%/9)0(�*1�&30/A/0=�&.0-1�)*+1(6���̀�� �������������������"�#������N*3&0-�./E0+1-(�'*�3%*(-1�0*�0)-�51*5-10=�%/'-�0)&'�.*+1�0/4-(�0)-�4*+'0/'9�)-/9)0�*.�0)-�./E0+1-<�&',�'*0�0*�-E3--,�0)-�)-/9)0�*.�&,a&3-'0�(01+30+1-(6��:FE3-50/*'(�4&=�@-�4&,-�.*1�%&19-1�5&1;/'9�&1-&(<�3*44-13/&%�8*'-(�&,a&3-'0�0*�)/9)2&=(<�*1�.*1�./E0+1-(�2/0)�91-&0-1�3+0�*..�()/-%,/'9�@-)/',�0)-�5*%-�4*+'0�/'�3*44-13/&%�8*'-(6>b��� ���
����������������������
���̂������c
�������������d���N/4/0�%/9)0�0*�(5/%%�&31*((�0)-�51*5-10=�%/'-(6��N/9)0�%-A-%(�&0�0)-�51*5-10=�%/'-�()*+%,�'*0�-E3--,�R6e�.**03&',%-(�:.3>�&,a&3-'0�0*�@+(/'-((�51*5-10/-(<�&',�R6Rf�.3�&0�1-(/,-'0/&%�51*5-10=�@*+',&1/-(6��g0/%/0=�%-&(-,�.%**,%/9)0�./E0+1-(�4*+'0-,�*'�5+@%/3�+0/%/0=�5*%-(�/'�0)-�5+@%/3�1/9)0_*._2&=�()*+%,�'*0�@-�+(-,6��h�\���������������� �#�����
����6��N/9)0�%-A-%(�&',�+'/.*14/0=�1&0/*(�()*+%,�'*0�-E3--,�1-3*44-',-,�A&%+-(<�5-1�7FCiD�M$_���*1�QR6�:C--�D55-',/E�f<�M-3*44-',-,�7%%+4/'&0/*'�N-A-%(�.*1�A&1/*+(�0&(;(6>�GN+4-'�3&5G�1-3*44-',&0/*'(�.*1�&1-&(�0*�@-�/%%+4/'&0-,�&1-�&(�.*%%*2(j��3*44-13/&%�51*5-10/-(�/'�'*'_+1@&'�3*44-13/&%�8*'-(�k�Qf<RRR�%+4-'(�5-1�&31-Y�.*1�51*a-30(�/'�1-(/,-'0/&%�&',�NlI�8*'-(�k�eR<RRR�%+4-'(�5-1�&31-6��H*1�1-(/,-'0/&%�51*5-10/-(j��.*1�(+@+1@&'j��fR<RRR�%+4-'(�5-1�&31-�3&5<�&',�/'�+1@&'�&1-&(j�eRR<RRR6m���n�����������������o*+1�$%&''/'9�p-5&104-'0�&',�%*3&%�%/9)0/'9�(&%-(�1-51-(-'0&0/A-(�3&'�&((/(0�=*+�/'�*@0&/'/'9�0)-�'-3-((&1=�/'.*14&0/*'�.*1�9**,�%/9)0/'96���H*1�%&19-�51*a-30(�*A-1�ef<RRR�%+4-'(j��91-&0-1�-'-19=�3*'(-1A&0/*'�&',�3*'01*%�*.�%/9)0�5*%%+0/*'<�%/9)0�01-(5&((�&',�9%&1-<�4&=�@-�&3)/-A-,�2/0)�0)-�)-%5�*.�&�51*.-((/*'&%�%/9)0/'9�,-(/9'-1�2/0)�G,&1;�(;=G�%/9)0/'9�5%&'�-E5-1/-'3-6�q���������������

�����������������#
��������#������������n������� �
������C+@(0/0+0/*'(�@=�-%-301/3/&'(�&',�3*'01&30*1(�&1-�3*44*'�&',�()*+%,�'*0�@-�&33-50-,6��H/'&%�D551*A-,�C/0-�$%&'(���2/%%�'*0�&%%*2�&,,/0/*'&%�-E0-1/*1�./E0+1-(�*1�(+@(0/0+0-(�2/0)*+0�1-A/-2(6��rs�����������������
���������������������������

# ����������#���������$1*A/,-�/'0-1/*1%/9)0/'9�5)*0*4-01/3(�.*1�0)-�@+/%,/'9t(�5-1/4-0-1�&1-&(<�,-4*'(01&0/'9�0)&0�0)-�/'0-1/*1�%/9)0/'9�.&%%(�(+@(0&'0/&%%=�2/0)/'�0)-�@+/%,/'9�&',�'*0�0)1*+9)�0)-�2/',*2(6��D.0-13%*(/'9<�/'0-1/*1%/9)0/'9�0)&0�-E0-',(�*+0,**1(�'--,(�0*�@-�-E0/'9+/()-,�@=�0)-�+(-�*.�()+0�*..�0/4-1(6��



�

����������	��	
��������	��������������	���	�����	������	����������	��	�� 	������!
" �����	���	����	��������	��	�������������	���������	��	���	#�����������	��	��	���	���$	��%��	��	��	�#�����	��&�	���	�������	��	���	�������	�������	%���	��	��#����%	���	��%��	������	��	����	���	'()	�	��	����$	'(	��%����	����$	���	����*����!	" +�	���	#���������	��	�����	��	���&���	���	����	����	�������������	���		�������	,���	�����		���#������-�	���	�����$��%	����������	�����	��	��	#���	$����	��	������	��	�����#����	��		&����	�����������		������	����������			�������	�����������	��	��������	��	����		#����	���	��	��%��	�#�����	��	���	������	��������	���#	���	�#�	,����-	��		��������%	���#����	��	����������	��	����������	��	���������	���#	��	���	��	���	��������	��	���.�����	����$	���	����*����!			/���	��	��	�����#����	��		������	�����	��		&����	�����#���	��	�	�������%	�#���!	"  ����������	��	�����	�����������&��	��	���&���	�����%����	��	��%��	��������	�	����	�������	�	$���	�	���������	������#��%	���	�������������	������	����	����	�������������	��	�����	��������!				/����	+0�	�����	#�	��	�������	���	��#������	��		��#�����	���%�#������11$$$!2���!��#1�����'!��#�" 3����#�����	������	���	���������	���%����	��%��	��������	��	$��%���	��	���	&�����	�	�+0��	������	����	��4����	��	�����%�	#����������5	$�������!		" ��������	#���	��	��������	���������	��	���	���	�����#	��	���	�������	��	��&��	$���	���	%�����!		0���������	��	�����	%�&��	���	��%�	��%����%	$����	��4�����	&������	��%����%�							��� �	��%�	��%����%	�������														 								



�

���������	
������������������������������������������ !����"��#��$� � ����%�&���&��'�#����%(!���$����"��� ����'����������"������������$��&��������)����*��������#��#����+���������������,�����-��������*����!��&� �"�� �#�'�� ������!����#���.��� �'������������'�����������'��'&�������� �#��#�!� ��&� ���������������+�&�������#��/�'�� ���&�!����&!�0����!�#������������ ����"��!���#� ��� �'������� �"%�����'��!� �#����!!�����.�!&'���!������'����'�������������0��1��%�������������&��'�&���!�'���#��$� �������#���������'���%�&�!����#��#��� �!����#���!.����'����������%�&����'�����2&�������!0��345 �������������#����!��&� ���'�& ����678��������#��#�!� ���������������#��$� �!��������������������������,9 �%#���� ��&�"�������&���������2&�#�����3��+�&��!5.���'�& ��������:'&������'����'����!��'!:.��� �'���������&��'�&������ ��� ����&�"��3!50�9 -��#�!�&�'���%#��3"&�"��%#�.��0�0������#��!!&���!� �&�5.��&�����&�#&�.��� ��������0�9 1�&������������������ �!���'������ �������������!��#��#���%������������'���&�������09 �%#�!����������� �$�'�!�&!� ����'�������������&�!�!����������&��������.��!�������!�����#��#�!� ���&�!��������'����+�&��������"���#����� 09 ������-&���!�������'����+�&��.��� �������!2&�������������������!����"�����&������ 0��;���#��/�'�!�������������'�����'����<���!.������&���!�#��������'������"�����.���� ������+'�� �=�.>>>��&���!0��;���#��/�'�!������!� ����������-?@�<���!,��4>.>>>��&���!09 ;�������#���!����������������������+�&��!,��A�B��'&�������)&����%��� �'����������'�� �����$��!�����������������#���.��������������+��&�.��$�������� ������&�.��!�������!�����&��������%������������+��&����������&�.��� ��$��������������&����$��!C03=5 -�����������&��'�&���D!&##��� �!#�'���'�����!�3:'&��!����!:5��������'�& ��#�������#�!����������+�&��!.��� �'����������'������� �:'&������'����'����!��'!:����������+�&��03E5 ;���'�� ���F�!���"&����.�#��������������������$��!��������'�� ��!�����������&� .�������� �!������ ���&������������!���������#��#�!� ���+�&��!0��1�+��&�����&�����'����$��!�!��&� �"���+#��!!� ��������'�� ������!&������!��������� ��������!����!�����������'�� ������ ���!�����$��%���$��������D�����!2&���0��������� �!�������'�& ��������'�����"&����!����������!�&�'�!�3�0�0�#������&��� .��������&��� .�!���.��� �!�����������!05��)��������'�� ������ �����!���$�������"�%�� �����#��#���%�����!0C��3G5 H����2&�!�� �"%�������$�����������'%.���!�������������������������#����!!�������������#���.�����������������!��������.��!���� � ��������������������������!��!��� �� !03�5 A����$�������������#�'��!�����������%�"����2&��� ��!����������#�'����������+����������������#��#�!� ���������.���&��.��� �����������!I%0��-�'���������!#�'��!�!��!���$���������������������������#��+����%�������&���#��!��$�!�����!�������'����"!��$������!����:F��I�)I%�*��I!:.���� !����"���� �'��� 03J5 @������A##��$� �*�������!��&� �"������ ���������!&"!���&����!.��  �����!.����'�����!���%�"���� �������&��#������##��$���"%�������$��������&������%0��C����!�������������'���"���"����� �������������&��'�&���.�%�&�����������!&##����.�����������&��'�&���(!���#��!������$�0



�

�����������	
���������	������	���	������	��������		�����	��	 !"!#$	��	���%"!&�#!�&'	"��$%(�)	!&	���#*�&)��$	+�*,	�#	-(�%&)	��.��	%&��$$	&�#�)/0123	4561																																																																			4789																:;<	<;	6=>66?@A9		4><B76	CDBE?BF8	GF<51F>6																																							H9I			J>															K			J>4LL5;1>M 																																		I9H	J>H9		N12	O<1<B;F	4LL5;1>M 													 		H				J>P9		N12	O<1<B;F	QDRL	4561																																																												178@		K				J>S9		N12	O<1<B;F	O657B>6	4561		 																		1789		P				J>K9		OB?6T1E32 I9H	J>												K		J>										�9		OD5J1>6	;J	2B8F2	 																										H				J>���		U.�(�-�VW!&!"%"VX&!��("!#Y	Z�#!�	 !"!#$	��(	[�(\!&-	 �#$/]9		QD̂EB>	Q153BF8	_;<2	̀̀	F;<	<;	6=>66?@4765186													aBFBRDR									 				bFBJ;5RB<c	d1<B;		ea1=	<;	aBFf478	<;	aBFg		I9h																							I9H																					 			HI@A	f	S@A]]9		Q5B71<6	Q153BF8	_;<2	̀̀	F;<	<;	6=>66?@4765186													aBFBRDR											 			bFBJ;5RB<c	d1<B;	ea1=	<;	aBF	f	478	<;	aBFg		I9K																					I9AP																			 		 			HI@A	f	S@AiZ/����	]J	BEEDRBF1F>6	85B?	EB8M<BF8	LE1F2	>1FF;<	̂6	567B6T6?	;5	BJ	JB=<D562	?;	F;<	L5;7B?6	LM;<;R6<5B>2	1F?	D̂Ê2	156	DF?65	HIII	EDR6F2j	D26	<M626	8DB?6EBF62@k�		[���	$l���	��	&�	-(��#�(	!&	l�!-l#	#l�&	��%(	#!"�$	#l�	)!$#�&*�	#�	#l�	m(�m�(#Y	�!&��n�		W�o!"%"	 %"�&	 �.��$	��(	)!���(�&#	�!o#%(�	l�!-l#$/a;DF<BF8	p6B8M<	eq66<g													 			 d6>;RR6F?6?	_DR6F	a1=BRDR2�	 KII	̀	AIII	EDR6F2h 												�II	̀	Aj�II	EDR6F2AI 									AjIII	̀	HjIII	EDR6F2AH 									Aj�II	̀	HjSII	EDR6F2rsstuvwxyz@		e{q|{g	}	]2	<M6	̂12B>	DFB<	;J	BEEDRBF1F>6	e<M6	1R;DF<	;J	EB8M<	J1EEBF8	;F	1	2D5J1>6g9		q;;<>1F?E6	R612D56R6F<	B2	<136F	TB<M	1	M1F?	M6E?	EB8M<	R6<659		~F6	J;;<>1F?E6	B2	6�DB71E6F<	<;	<M6	BEEDRBF1F>6	L5;?D>6?	;F	;F6	2�D156	J;;<	;J	2D5J1>6	1561	̂c	1	2;D5>6	;J	;F6	>1F?E6	1<	1	?B2<1F>6	;J	;F6	J;;<9		p;5B�;F<1E	J;;<>1F?E62	R612D56	<M6	BEEDRBF1<B;F	2<5B3BF8	1	M;5B�;F<1E	LE1F69	q;;<>1F?E6	71ED62	>1F	̂6	R612D56?	?B56><Ec	TB<M	>65<1BF	M1F?M6E?	BF>B?6F<	EB8M<	R6<6529y��zw}	4	DFB<	D26?	<;	R612D56	<M6	1><D1E	1R;DF<	;J	EB8M<	<M1<	B2	L5;?D>6?	̂c	1	̂DÊ9		0M6	EDR6F	�D1F<BJB62	<M6	1R;DF<	;J	EB8M<	6F658c	L5;?D>6?	̂c	1	E1RL	1<	<M6	E1RLj	F;<	̂c	<M6	6F658c	BFLD<j	TMB>M	B2	BF?B>1<6?	̂c	<M6	{T1<<186{9		q;5	6=1RLE6j	1	�K̀T1<<	BF>1F?62>6F<	E1RL	>1F	L5;?D>6	AIII	EDR6F2	TMBE6	1	�ÌT1<<	MB8M̀L5622D56	2;?BDR	E1RL	L5;?D>62	�III	EDR6F29		_DR6F	;D<LD<	B2	EB2<6?	̂c	<M6	R1FDJ1><D565	;F	<M6	L1>318BF89		�	���'	Z�*�""�&)�)	[(�*#!*�$'	+Z[������,/		 !-l#!&-	��(	�o#�(!�(	�&.!(�&"�&#$�	�&)	+Z[�n�,/[�(\!&-	 �#$�		0M6	]EEDRBF1<BF8	GF8BF665BF8	O;>B6<c	;J	:;5<M	4R65B>1	e]GO	;5	]GO:4gj	B2	1F	;581FB�1<B;F	<M1<	62<1̂EB2M62	DL?1<6?	2<1F?15?2	1F?	BEEDRBF1<B;F	8DB?6EBF62	J;5	<M6	EB8M<BF8	BF?D2<5c9M<<L@ffTTT9B62F19;58f2M;LfB<6R̀?6<1BE9>JR�]��dQ̀PP̀���2<;56B?�AM<<L@ffTTT9B62F19;58f2M;LfB<6R̀?6<1BE9>JR�]��dQ̀HÌ�h�2<;56B?�A



 

 

 
 
 
March 20, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
Mtg Date:   March 28, 2019 
 
To:  Planning Commission   
 
From:  Julie Johnston, AICP 
 
Subject: DRAFT Maple Hill South Overlay Zone  
 
 
The attached document is the first DRAFT of the new Maple Hill South Overlay Zone for the Planning 
Commission’s consideration.  This new ordinance is in response to the Maple Hill South Sub-Area Plan, 
which was developed as part of the 2017 Master Plan Update.  The Overlay Zone is an optional ordinance, 
providing flexibility to the property owners to either develop utilizing the requirements of the Overlay 
Zone or develop applying the existing underlying zoning, which is R-2: Residence District.  The Overlay 
Zone is intended to mirror the goals of the Sub-Area Plan, providing regulations for these goals.  For your 
convenience, a copy of the Sub-Area Plan has been provided with the draft ordinance. 
 
Thank you. 
 
 
  



Page 1 
 

Oshtemo Township 
Maple Hill South Mixed-Use Overlay District 
 
 
SECTION XX.000 MAPLE HILL SOUTH MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT 
March 20, 2019 PRELIMINARY DRAFT 
 
XX.10 INTENT AND APPLICABILITY 
 
A. Intent. The Maple Hill South Mixed-Use Overlay District (MHS-Overlay District) is intended to 

provide, through comprehensive planning, zoning and project review, for the development of a 
compact, pedestrian-oriented, mixed-use district, consisting of a planned mixture of 
commercial, office and technology, residential, and public use, which features high quality and 
uniform building and site design standards, and which complements and is compatible with 
adjacent uses. The district is designed to provide residents and visitors with a unique 
opportunity to meet their needs for housing, employment services, entertainment, and 
recreation.  
 

B. Optional Overlay. The MHS-Overlay District is established as an optional overlay district, the 
limits of which are designated on the official Zoning Map of Oshtemo Township. This means that 
it is overlaid on other, existing zoning districts. Within this optional overlay district, property 
owners have the option to continue to use their property in the manner permitted in the 
underlying districts. The overlay district provides additional opportunities and flexibility should 
property owners choose to avail themselves of those choices. These opportunities within the 
overlay district, however, do not apply unless the property owner elects to become subject to 
the overlay district and the standards and procedures contained herein. 

 
C. Eligibility Criteria.  In order to qualify as an eligible development under the MHP-Overlay District 

standards and procedures contained herein, the Planning Commission, shall find that the 
development demonstrates compliance with the following principles: 

 
1. Size. In order to ensure that the intent of this Overlay District is accomplished, projects 

must be of a sufficient size. A minimum development size of 80 acres of contiguous land 
shall be required.  

 
2. Walkability. Physical infrastructure shall be provided to support pedestrian access and a 

mix of amenities and destinations within a reasonable walking distance. Blocks shall be 
short and walkable. Streets should be designed for cars, bicycles, and pedestrians. 

 
3. Circulation. Site access and on-site circulation shall be provided through an 

interconnected network of streets, sidewalks and other routes. A grid-like network of 
streets shall be established to enable an efficient dispersion of traffic. Accommodations 
for transit facilities should be provided. 

 
4. Pedestrian-Orientation. Sites shall be designed such that vehicles are not the dominant 

feature. Large expanses of pavement shall be replaced or reduced via on-street parking, 



 
 

Page 2 

parking structures, shared parking, underground parking, and other parking 
management strategies. 

 
5. Mixed-Use. There shall be a variety of compatible uses, services and building types that 

serve the needs of residents, workers, and visitors alike.  A range of types, sizes, 
amenities, and uses will enhance a series of inviting functional spaces, including streets 
and pedestrian-friendly streetscapes, open spaces, courtyards, trails, residential, office, 
and retail in mixed-use buildings. Varied styles of residential development shall be 
provided to attract residents of diverse ages, incomes, and lifestyles. 

 
6. District Identity and Physical Design. A coordinated distinct identity shall be developed 

for the District to promote a sense of place. Building design shall be elevated with varied 
building heights, architectural character, and high-quality building materials that provide 
visual interest at a pedestrian scale. A streetscape aesthetic shall be designed that 
includes public elements and integrated gateways and signage within the District. 

 
7. Community Spaces. Open spaces and community gathering spaces shall be provided 

within the District to be used as locations to stimulate social interaction, civic events, 
and recreational activity. Passive open spaces shall be designed to be reflective of the 
existing landscape and natural features (tree rows, ponds, etc.) of the site. Active plazas 
and civic spaces shall also be integrated into the overall development. 

 
8. Compatibility with Adjacent Residential Uses. The physical height and bulk of buildings 

shall reduce in size from north to south, providing compatibility in size to the adjacent 
residential neighborhoods. A transitional land use scheme shall be employed, with the 
least intensive and lowest density land uses to be located along the southern edge of 
the District (adjacent to established residential areas).  

 
XX.20 CONTEXT ZONES 
 
The Maple Hill South Mixed Use Overlay District is divided into three Context Zones. These Context 
Zones are illustrated on the map herein and are as follows: Gateway (G); Town Center (TC); and 
Neighborhood Transition (NT). The regulations of this Article related to uses allowed, building heights, 
building design, site orientation, parking and other development standards may vary for each of the 
Context Zones. The Planning Commission is given the authority to permit flexibility in the delineation of 
the context zones to encourage innovation in land use and variety of design, layout, type and use of 
structures. 
 
[Insert Context Zones Map] 

 
XX.30 USES PERMITTED BY CONTEXT ZONE 
 
A. Permitted Uses. The following Context Zone character descriptions shall determine the types of 

uses which may be allowed. The Planning Commission, may approve any use determined to be 
compatible with the Context Zone character descriptions, with the exception of prohibited uses 
listed in Subsection B.  

 



 
 

Page 3 

1. Gateway (G) – Lands along the edge of the MHS-Overlay District with frontage along or 
near U.S. 131 and/or West Main Street are designated in this Context Zone. Land uses 
within this area will primarily be of a retail, restaurant, entertainment, lodging, office 
and technology character. Other uses may also be accommodated, including compatible 
medical, educational, institutional and higher-density residential use.  

 
2. Town Center (TC) – This Context Zone is envisioned as a central focal point of the MHS-

Overlay District, with compact mixed-uses that will provide a nucleus to attract future 
growth. Development will allow for a mix of uses both vertically within buildings and 
horizontally within blocks. Mixed-use buildings could contain first-floor commercial, 
retail, and/or office uses, with upper floor office and/or residential uses. Mixed-use 
blocks allow for single-use buildings in a range of land uses within one block. 
Commercial uses, professional offices, entertainment facilities and cultural centers are 
encouraged.  

 
3. Neighborhood Transition (NT) – This Context Zone is anticipated to accommodate a 

wide variety of residential styles. This could include higher density residential land uses 
adjacent to the Town Center, Gateway and/or existing commercial development on 
West Main Street. Traditional single-family detached and/or attached residential uses 
will be accommodated to serve as a buffer between mixed-uses within the District and 
the adjacent neighborhoods to the south of the District. 

 
4. Community and Open Space Uses shall also be integrated throughout the development 

to ensure an exceptional environment for visitors and residents. A central community 
space area is recommended as a District focal point; this space would be designed to 
accommodate more active community functions, such as civic events, recreation, and 
entertainment. Passive open space areas shall serve as buffers and places to experience 
and enjoy nature. 

 
B. Prohibited Uses. The following uses are specifically prohibited within the MHS-Overlay District:  
 

1. New and/or used car sales lots; recreational vehicle sales lots; mobile home sales lots 
outside of mobile home parks; farm machinery and other equipment sales lots; boat 
sales lots; and other businesses involving substantial outdoor sales or activities 
connected with retail sales. 
 

2. Filling stations, carwashes, public garages or service stations, auto body and auto paint 
shops.  
 

3. Automobile repair, service and/or automobile glass repair facilities.  
 

4. Drive-in theatres.  
 

5. Earth removal, quarrying, gravel processing, mining, related mineral extraction 
businesses, and landfill gas recovery processing facilities. 
 

6. Manufacturing, compounding, assembling or treatment of merchandise. 
 



 
 

Page 4 

7. Wholesaling, storage and/or warehousing of commodities.  
 

8. Storage buildings and mini warehouses.  
 

9. Outdoor equipment and/or vehicle storage yards. 
 

10. Kennels for the breeding, raising and/or boarding of dogs or cats.  
 

11. Adult regulated uses. 
 

XX.40 DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Site Development Requirements. The following regulations shall apply to all development 
within the MHS-Overlay District.  

 

Context 
Zone 

Height Placement Minimum 
Floor Area 

per 
Dwelling 

Unit 

Minimum 
Required 

Open Space 

Minimum 
Building 
Height 

(1) 

Maximum 
Building 
Height 

Front and 
Street 
Sides 

Minimum 
Side 

Setback 

Minimum 
Rear 

Setback 

Gateway (G) 1 story / 18 
feet 

3 stories / 
6 stories 

with direct 
US-131 

frontage 

15 feet 
(2) 

10 feet 
(2) 

20 feet 
(2) (4) 

15% of net 
acreage 

(5) 

Town 
Center (TC) 

2 stories 5 stories 

0 feet 
required 

building line 
(3) 

0 feet 0 feet (4) 
10% of net 

acreage 
(5) 

Neighbor-
hood 

Transition 
(NT) 

1 story 2 stories 15 feet 
(2) 

10 feet 
(2) 

15 feet 
(2) (4) 

25% of net 
acreage 

(5) 

 
Footnotes to the Development Requirements Table: 
 

(1) A minimum ground floor height of 12 feet shall be required for all development within 
the MHS-Overlay District. 

 
(2) The Planning Commission, may approve reduced setbacks to allow for buildings to be 

placed in a manner that encourages a consistent street wall and provides for a usable 
sidewalk area and a more attractive pedestrian environment. 

 
(3) Buildings shall be placed on lots in relation to their frontages in a manner that 

encourages a consistent street wall and provides for a usable sidewalk area and a more 
attractive pedestrian environment. 75% of the building façade must meet the required 
building line, while up to 25% of the façade can be setback to allow for architectural 
considerations such as outdoor cafés, plazas, squares or other public spaces. The 



 
 

Page 5 

required build to line and frontage coverages may be modified by the Planning 
Commission, provided that the location of any proposed building is in keeping with or 
improves the context of the existing area. 

 
(4) The minimum floor area per dwelling unit shall be as follows: 

 
   Unit Type:     Minimum Floor Area: 

Efficiency or 1 bedroom    600 sq. ft. 

2 Bedrooms     800 sq. ft. 

3 or More Bedrooms    1,000 sq. ft. 
 
Elderly (independent)    525 sq. ft. 

 
Elderly (limited assisted)   425 sq. ft. 

 
(5) Required open space may include plazas, parks, pedestrian pathways, lakes or similar 

types of park-like features. 
 
B. Residential Maximum Density and Density Bonus.   
 

1. For the purposes of this Article, net acreage shall be defined as the gross acreage of the 
development, minus public/private rights-of-way and stormwater detention areas. 
However, stormwater detention areas may be included within the net acreage if they 
are designed as functional open spaces, are accessible to pedestrians, and do not 
require safety fencing.  
 

2. The maximum residential density shall not exceed six (6) dwelling units per net acreage 
of the development.  

 
3. The inclusion of certain amenities or design options may result in an allowed increase in 

residential density, referred to as a density bonus. However, the total density bonus 
shall not result in a residential density of more than eight (8) dwelling units per net 
acreage of development. The Planning Commission may determine the density bonus 
upon a finding that the proposed development would accomplish at least four (4) of the 
below amenities or design options. If the development is proposed in phases, the 
Planning Commission may, at its discretion, approve density bonuses for one or more 
phases, commensurate with the amenities or design options proposed for each phase. 

 
a. Construction and dedication of land for a public park, plaza, or open space use, 

if acceptable to the Township. 
 

b. Development of significant recreational or site amenities such as golf courses, 
baseball diamonds, tennis courts, basketball courts and community buildings. 

 



 
 

Page 6 

c. In addition to sidewalks required along public streets, the development of 
pedestrian, bicycle, or other recreational trails for public use that are separated 
from vehicular traffic, within the development and connecting to adjacent 
development.  

 
d. Provision of open space in an amount which is at least 50 percent greater than 

the minimum open space percentage required by Section XX.40.A. 
 

e. Significant use of sustainable building design features such as, optimized energy 
performance, on-site renewable energy, passive solar heating, use of 
reused/recycled/renewable materials, indoor air quality mechanisms, green 
roofs, or other elements identified as sustainable by established groups such as 
the US Green Building Council (LEED) or ANSI National Green Building Standards. 

 
f. Significant use of sustainable site design features such as stormwater filtration 

landscaping, low impact stormwater management, permeable surfaces, 
bioretention facilities, or other elements identified as sustainable by established 
groups such as the US Green Building Council (LEED). 

 
g. Provision of other exceptional public benefits within the development, 

determined by the Planning Commission as sufficient to qualify as one of the 
four required amenities or design options justifying a density bonus. 

 
C. Road Design.   
 

1. The development shall be serviced by an interior street system. If some or all of the 
interior street system is private, it shall be built in conformance with the standards and 
requirements of Section 49.160 of the Township Zoning Ordinance. Exceptions to the 
standards and requirements of Section 49.160 may be permitted by the Planning 
Commission, where deemed necessary to achieve the intent and eligibility criteria of 
this Article. 

 
D. Open Space.   
 

1. Designated open space shall be set aside as common land and either retained in an 
essentially undeveloped or unimproved state or improved as a "public gathering places" 
to serve the following purposes: 

 
a. Conservation of land and its resources 
 
b. Ecological protection 
 
d. Protect historic and/or scenic features 
 
e. Shaping and guiding the development 
 
f. Enhancement of values and safety 
 



 
 

Page 7 

g. Provide opportunities for social interaction 
 
h. Provide parkland and active recreational opportunities on a neighborhood scale. 

 
2. Designated open space shall be under common ownership or control, such that there is 

a single entity having proprietary responsibility. Sufficient documentation of ownership 
or control in the form of agreements, contracts, covenants, and/or deed restrictions 
shall be provided.  

 
3. Designated open space shall be set aside through an irrevocable conveyance approved 

by the Planning Commission, such as: 
 

a. Recorded deed restrictions 
 
b.  Covenants that run perpetually with the land 
 
c.  A conservation easement 
 
d.  Land trusts. 
 
e.  Such conveyance shall assure that the open space is protected from 

development, except as approved by the Planning Commission. Such 
conveyance shall also: 
 
1)  Indicate the proposed allowable use(s) of the designated open space; 
 
2)  Require that the designated open space be maintained by parties who 

have an ownership interest in the open space; 
 
3)  Provide standards for scheduled maintenance of the open space; 
 
4)  Provide for maintenance to be undertaken by the Township in the event 

that the dedicated open space is inadequately maintained or is 
determined by the Township to be a public nuisance, with the 
assessment of costs upon the open space ownership. 

 
E. Buffer from Adjacent Residential Uses.  
 

1. Where the height and bulk of any proposed residential construction is not equivalent 
and more intensive than existing adjacent residential development, a greenspace 
buffer/vegetative screen shall be provided which is acceptable to the Planning 
Commission in terms of width, height and composition of plant materials. 

 
F. Access. 
 

Item to be discussed. Refer to the “Vehicular Circulation and Connections” narrative from the 
Maple Hill Drive South Sub-Area Plan.  

 



 
 

Page 8 

XX.50 AUTHORITY TO WAIVER DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS. 
 
Regulations relating to the use of land, including permitted land uses, height requirements, yard 
setbacks, and site improvements shall, in the first instance, be based upon the standards and 
requirements outlined in this Article. However, the Planning Commission is given the authority to permit 
flexibility in such standards and encourage innovation in land use and variety of design, layout, type and 
use of structures, provided any variation granted would also result in the overall design being consistent 
with the Intent and Eligibility Criteria of this Article, compatible with the adjacent uses of land, the 
natural environment, and the capacities of public services and facilities affected by the land uses. 
 
XX.60 APPLICATION AND APPROVAL PROCEDURES 
 
A. Optional pre-application review(s). Informal pre-application review(s) is encouraged and may be 

scheduled with the Planning Department and/or Planning Commission, at which the project 
concept may be reviewed by the applicant, Township staff, and Township consultants.  

 
B. General Development Plan. 
 

1. An application proposing the development of land within the MHS-Overlay District shall 
first be made through the submittal of a general development plan (GDP). An 
application for review and approval of a GDP may be made by the owners of record or 
by any persons acting on behalf of the owners of record of the subject parcel. The 
applicant shall have a substantial interest in the subject property prior to filing; such 
filing shall be in the name of and signed by all owners. The applicant shall provide 
evidence of full ownership all land in the proposed project area, such as legal title or 
execution of a binding sales agreement, prior to approval of the GDP by the Township. 

 
2. Information required. The general development plan shall consist of a plan of the entire 

area carried out in sufficient detail as to show topography, land uses proposed, the 
densities and scale of development, the system of pedestrian and vehicular circulation, 
including off-street parking areas, and the relationship to adjacent properties and uses. 
Further, the GDP shall contain all the following information: 

 
a. A property survey of the exact acreage proposed to be developed, prepared by 

a registered land surveyor or civil engineer (Scale: 1" = 50');  
 
b. The intent of nonresidential development, type and gross and net square feet 

for each area of the site; 
 
c. The number and type of residential units and residential density for each area of 

the site; 
 
d. Location, size, and uses of common open space and recreation areas; 
 
e. General landscape concept showing woodlands, wetlands and vegetation to be 

preserved or added, topography, and similar features; 
 
f. Delineation of areas to be subdivided, if applicable; 



 
 

Page 9 

 
g. General description of proposed water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage 

system; 
 
h. A unified plan for wayfinding and signage within the development; 
 
i. A plan delineating the location and area of the proposed phases of the 

development; 
 
j. A written statement containing the following supporting documentation: 

 
1) A full description as to how the proposed development satisfies the 

eligibility requirements and design principles of Section XX.10.C; 
 
2) If applicable, evidence of how the proposed development meets the 

criteria for qualifying for a density bonus outlined in Section XX.40.B;  
 
3) A description of the expected schedule of development including 

progressive time schedule for each phase of the development;  
 

4) General description of the organization to be established, to own and 
maintain common open space; 

 
5) General description of covenants, grants, easements, or other 

restrictions to be imposed upon land or buildings, including easements 
for public utilities, bylaws, and articles of incorporation for any 
homeowners' association or cooperative association; 

 
6) Description of applicant's intentions regarding selling or leasing of all or 

portions of land in the development and of dwelling units; 
 

7) Description of all proposed nonresidential uses, including types of stores 
and offices; 

 
8) The number and type of residential units and calculations of the 

resultant population; 
  

9) Average initial sales prices of dwelling units for sale and/or average 
initial rents of rental dwelling units; 

 
10) A draft Development Agreement which establishes the formal rights and 

obligations of the property owner and Oshtemo Township regarding the 
future development of the site. The Development Agreement shall, at a 
minimum, specify: the parties to the agreement; the obligations of the 
property owner; a term or duration within which the action and 
obligations of the agreement must be fulfilled by the property owner; 
vested rights; procedures for determining compliance with the 
conditions included in the agreement; default remedies; provisions 



 
 

Page 10 

guiding the transfer of rights and obligations to subsequent property 
owners; and enforcement procedures; 

  
C. Public Hearing. The Planning Commission shall, upon receipt of a general development plan in 

proper form, schedule and hold a hearing upon the request and shall notify the applicant and all 
owners of all contiguous parcels of such hearing.  
 

D. Standards for Review of the GDP. The general development plan and supporting information 
shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission shall base its 
determination as to whether the plan meets the following standards: 

 
1. The general development plan shall generally conform to the Intent of this Article as 

outlined in Section XX.10.A. 
 
2. The general development plan shall generally conform to the Eligibility Criteria and 

Design Principles of Section XX.10.C. 
 
3. The general development plan shall generally conform to the review criteria for special 

land uses as outlined in Section 65.30. 
 
E. Decision of the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission shall deny, approve, or approve 

with conditions the general development plan and supporting documentation. The Planning 
Commission shall record its conclusions, its decisions, the basis for its decision, and any 
recommended conditions to be imposed in conjunction with an affirmative decision.  

 
F. Effect of Approval of the General Development Plan. Approval of the GDP shall indicate the 

Planning Commission’s acceptance of uses, building location, layout of streets, dwelling unit 
count and type, floor areas, densities, and all other elements of the plan. The approval shall 
authorize the applicant to then submit, within ninety (90) days, a final draft Development 
Agreement for review and approval by the Township, with assistance from the Township 
Attorney. 

 
G. Development Agreement. For any project involving a financial obligation on the part of Oshtemo 

Township, approval of the GDP by the Township Board shall be required. The Development 
Agreement shall attest that the approved GDP and any conditions attached to the approvals, 
shall be binding on the property owner and upon their heirs, successors, and assigns. Upon 
approval by the Township, the executed Development Agreement shall be recorded with the 
Kalamazoo County Register of Deeds Office by the property owner within thirty (30) days of its 
signing. The property owner shall immediately thereafter provide a certified copy of the 
recorded Development Agreement with the Township Clerk for record keeping purposes. 

 
H. Site Plan. Execution of the Development Agreement shall authorize the applicant to file 

applications for site plan approval for all or phases of the development consistent with the 
approved GDP phasing schedule and Development Agreement. All site plans shall conform to 
the approved GDP and shall include the information required by Section 64.60.C. The Planning 
Department shall have the authority to deny, approve, or approve with conditions all site plans 
submitted for review under this section. The Planning Department shall record its conclusions, 



 
 

Page 11 

its decisions, the basis for its decision, and any recommended conditions to be imposed in 
conjunction with an affirmative decision.  

 
I. Amendments. A property owner may request an amendment to an approved GDP. 
 

1. Minor modifications to an approved GDP may be administratively approved by the 
Planning Department. Modifications to be considered minor shall include, among other 
similar modifications, the following: 

 
a. A change in residential floor area; 
 
b. A change in nonresidential floor area of ten percent or less; 
 
c. Minor variations in layout which do not constitute major changes; and/or 
 
d. A change in lot coverage of the entire GDP of five percent or less. 

 
2. Major modifications to an approved GDP shall follow the procedures and conditions 

required for the original submittal and review in full. Modifications to be considered 
major changes shall include one or more of the following: 

 
 a. Change in concept of the development; 
 
 b. Change in use or character of the development; 
 
 c. Change in type of dwelling units as identified on the general development plan; 
 
 d. Change in the number of dwelling units; 
 
 e. Change in nonresidential floor area of over ten percent; 
 
 f. Change in lot coverage of the entire GDP of more than five percent; 
 
 g. Rearrangement of lots, blocks, and building tracts; 
 
 h. Change in the character or function of any street; 
 

i. Reduction in land area set aside for common open space or the relocation of 
such area; or, 

 
j. Increase in building height. 

 
3. The Planning Department shall have the authority to determine whether a requested 

change is major or minor, in accordance with this section. The burden shall be on the 
property owner to show the reasons for any requested change owing to changed 
physical or economic factors, or consumer demand. 

 



 
 

Page 12 

J. Expiration, Extension and Revocation. The Development Agreement approved by the Township 
shall designate the timeframes and terms for the expiration, extension and revocation of plan 
approvals under this Article. 

 
 



Old
P

o

st Rd

Horizon Heights Dr

Valley View Dr

S Manorwood Dr

G reen Meadow
D

r

Driftwood Ave

M
ap

le
 H

ill
 D

r

Shadywood Dr

W
in

d
in

g
w

o
o

d
D

r

C
lu

b
 V

ie
w

 D
r

Lo
d

g
e 

Ln

E
R

id
g

e

C
ir

Lo
d

g
e 

Ln

W
o

o
d

la
n

e 
D

r

W
es

tv
ie

w
 S

t

Scenic Way Dr

M
anda la

y
D

r

N
 1

0
th

 S
t

N
 D

ra
k

e
 R

d

W Main St

S
 D

ra
k

e
 R

d

R
o

u
n

d
 H

ill R
d

M
ap

le
 H

ill
 D

r

M
al

l

D
r

Sky Ridge Ave

B
u

tte
rfl y

Grasshopper

Penrose Ln

Vin tage Ln

N JeffersonCommons

C
ir

H
ic

ko
ry

V
al

le
y

D
r

C
o

p
p

er
Beach Blvd

£¤131

0 500 1,000250
Feet

Z

Maple Hill South Mixed-Use Overlay District:
Context Zones

Data Sources:
Oshtemo Township Zoning Map
Michigan Geographic Framework, v14.

Local Roads

Major Roads

Property Lines

DRAFT - 3/20/19

Gateway
(G)

Neighborhood
Transition (NT)

Town
Center

(TC)

Gateway
(G)



Old
P

o

st Rd

Horizon Heights Dr

Valley View Dr

S Manorwood Dr

G reen Meadow
D

r

Driftwood Ave

M
ap

le
 H

ill
 D

r

Shadywood Dr

W
in

d
in

g
w

o
o

d
D

r

C
lu

b
 V

ie
w

 D
r

Lo
d

g
e 

Ln

E
R

id
g

e

C
ir

Lo
d

g
e 

Ln

W
o

o
d

la
n

e 
D

r

W
es

tv
ie

w
 S

t

Scenic Way Dr

M
anda la

y
D

r

N
 1

0
th

 S
t

N
 D

ra
k

e
 R

d

W Main St

S
 D

ra
k

e
 R

d

R
o

u
n

d
 H

ill R
d

M
ap

le
 H

ill
 D

r

M
al

l

D
r

Sky Ridge Ave

B
u

tte
rfl y

Grasshopper

Penrose Ln

Vin tage Ln

N JeffersonCommons

C
ir

H
ic

ko
ry

V
al

le
y

D
r

C
o

p
p

er
Beach Blvd

£¤131

0 500 1,000250
Feet

Z

Proposed Maple Hill South
Mixed-Use Overlay District

Data Sources:
Oshtemo Township Zoning Map
Michigan Geographic Framework, v14.

Local Roads

Major Roads

Proposed Maple Hill South Mixed-Use Overlay District

Property Lines

R-3, Residence

I-1, Industrial

R-2, Residence

R-4, Residence

R-1, Residence

C, Local Business

Underlying Zoning Districts:

DRAFT - 3/20/19



�����������	
��������������
��������������������� !��"���#��$"��%!&"���'()*



����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��������������������	���
����������������������	��������������������������	���	��������
�����
������	����	�� ��!����
��������"������	���#	��������������	�$����	��������� ���
���������
	������"



��������	�
����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � ����������������� ���������������

����� !"�#��$%&'�()*+,�-&++�./&0,�1234%�13567/,)�8+)9�&'�%,/,5:�&9;2/*2/)4,<�)'�)�'356)/,)�*+)9�2=�4%,�>'%4,?2�$2@96'%&*�()'4,/�8+)9A�7�'356)/,)�*+)9�&'�)9�&9<&0&<3)+�;2?*29,94�2=�4%,�20,/)++�()'4,/�8+)9�4%)4�*/20&<,'�)�<,,*,/�,0)+3)4&29�2=�)�'*,;&B;�)/,)C�'3;%�)'�)�+2;)+�53'&9,''�<&'4/&;4�2/�)�9,&D%52/%22<A�7�'356)/,)�*+)9�&96;+3<,'�)�0&'&29C�D2)+'C�*/&9;&*+,'C�)9<�=343/,�+)9<�3',�?)*�E3'4�+&F,�4%,�20,/)++�()'4,/�8+)9C�)+4%23D%�&9�?2/,�<,4)&+�4%)9�4%,�$2@9'%&*6@&<,�8+)9A$%,�>'%4,?2�$2@9'%&*�()'4,/�8+)9�GHII�'*,;&B;)++:�;)++'�234�4%,�()*+,�-&++�./&0,�1234%�)/,)�)'�)�'35J)/,)�K/,=,/�42�L&D3/,�MAIC�L343/,�N)9<�O',P�)9<�/,;2??,9<'�4%)4�)�<,4)&+,<�'356)/,)�*+)9�5,�<,0,+2*,<A�7'�9246,<�&9�4%,�()'4,/�8+)9�GHIIC��4%,�()*+,�-&++�./&0,�1234%�)/,)�&'�;3//,94+:�;2?*/&',<�2=�)9�,Q&'4&9D�D2+=�;23/',�)9<�'?)++,/�)<E);,94�*/2*,/4&,'C�)9<�%)'�'4/29D�*24,94&)+�42�);;2??2<)4,�9,@�<,0,+2*?,94�<3,�42�&4'�+2;)4&29�9,)/�R,'4�()&9�14/,,4�)9<�O1JISIA�7+4%23D%�4%,�,Q&'4&9D�D2+=�;23/',�&'�)�T?)96?)<,U�D/,,9�'*);,�)/,)C�&4�,Q&'4'�)'�4%,�29+:�'&9D&B;)94�D/,,9�'*);,�@&4%&9�4%&'�%,)0&+:�<,0,+2*,<�*2/4&29�2=�4%,�$2@9'%&*A��V&0,9�4%,�'4/29D�*24,94&)+�=2/�/,<,0,+2*?,94�2=�4%,�'&4,C�&4�&'�;/&4&;)+�42�39<,/4)F,�)�'35J)/,)�'43<:C�@%,/,�)�*/,=,//,<�<,0,+2*?,94�;%)/);4,/�;)9�5,�&<,94&B,<C�;29'&'4,94�@&4%�;2??39&4:�D2)+'�)9<�?)/F,4�<,?)9<A



����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��������������

�������	
�����
������������������������������� !"�����#���$���%�&����'�������#���'����!���'��(�)#���*����&'#�������'+�����#�����#�%���(�,�#�����'��������-�!./01� ��&��'�����2�!3/3��'���$��'+���'%�������&'#���4#� ��%���&��������5��6��(�7���*�8���-���9��:��%�(��*#�����$��6!��&'#���� ��'%��60;������#��$�<$���61�����#� !������#���$���%��������#������(�,�#�����'���������������#������'����*�'�#��(�����������������;�2�!3/3�(��*#�����#� !����4#�&�#���'� ��'%��61�&������=�#��'+���#�%�'�����'��+� �����%#�������$���%��%>�$�'���������#����;�?=�#��'+�$�**��$����%������*�'�1��$$�##�%� 6��������,�#�����'��������������9��:��%1��#���$���%��**�%�����6��%>�$�'���������#� !������������'������'%���#�;�����#� !�������$����'��#�#��&'��'�@AB�CD;�E'������1������������������������������ !"����$�*���#�#������=�!*����6�3./��$��#��(���'%;�F�GH�G�I����G�G�H��HH
HHJ
��F�GH�G�I�K����LH
�M���
	�����#� !�����$�'#�#�#��(�#�=�#�����������$��#��(���'%1��'$��%�'+NO����������$��#�&��$��$�* �'�����*�9���������P������#�Q��(�5�� O��&��5�'#�*��#�?'��+6����$���$���������6�$����%������$��#�O�)'�����$����&'�%� 6�������$��+�'�������*�'���(����'#��������'�-��)�0��'%��#�%��#���*��'��'�'$��+���+�����$�**��$��������#��%>�$�'���������#� !������������'�����-(��'��'+�,�#�����'�������0��'%���#��-(��'��'+����9��:��%0��'$��%�����*����6���!��*� ���!����'��%�%������*�'�1�#�����$�'���#1��'%� �+� �=�������1����'+�&�����%>�$�'��������#�%�������%��#�#����$���'%���������#�#;��������#������#���*�=��(��#�� ��#��%���&��'%�*�%��*�%�'#��6���#�%�'�����%������*�'�;����#���'$��%��#�'+��!(�*��6�%���$��%�#� %���#��'#��'%���#�%�'�������!��$��%�$�'%�*�'��*#;���������!(�*��6������*�'��$�*���=�#�����#��+���6�(��������������#������(�����#� !����;������=�#��'+���'%��#��������'��(�����#� !������'%���$�'��6��#�#��&'��'�@AB�CR;Q���'���#�$��#�����=�*��6��������#� !����1�����#��*�����'�����'������'�&�$�**��$����%������*�'��$����'��6��'%���$�'#���$���';����#����>�$�1�$����%�,�#�+���1��#���$���%�>�#��'������(�����#� !����;�"$$�##��������

S�T�UVS�TW
�XGWW�Y	GZ
����[���\]�	
��K̂��G��S�T

_�̀abc�̀d

efghijkblmknkiokcdjpqrst
uahdckijktnvc

wcxtwh
ukotfchnvc ykozjog{�|k}mcvoh{lgkcnvcukotfch�nvc

~o{sc}}wh

uahdckijkt�nvc�c{d}gh{nvc

u}atiokhcmkmkg�dsoof�nvc

ukotfch�mk

e}}chfa}c�̀d
qg��afg}}t��f _okdlap�doh��f

�ghfghbsoofmkwofbc�wh

j̀bakij{l|k}wgd�l�gc}fwh �jkoh�nvc

wofb cwh

d̀a��okf��fmakitwh~c}anvc

�oklap wh
�c{dvgcs d̀�̀chg���atmk d̀ohcikoorcd̀

�gblbadc��f |jksg}}�wh�a�}c��g}}�mk~jh rcklg}}mk uafcdwh
~c}}c d̀ u }ji�gc smk

~kcc�tqoghdwh
wajkc}�oof̀d ��gfbcugk

���������
��������� ������������

����������
������

���������

���������� ������
����

�� ����� � � ��
|jksg}}wh�a�}c �g}}�mk

¡���mk
�cppghbsatmkr̀t�gfbcnvc

esghb�at

�gpi}cdoh�at

~c�r}ctmk
�a}}ct�gfbcmk

�̀�wh

mkaboh�}t �gffch�g}}{�mk�cvckc wh �ojhd�ota}mk u}atpookmk

wcg{jkcwh

�ghdabcwh

movck� g}}{mk
~koh{ohmk

_oddghblap q}|ahabckwh
�ojhf�g}}�f

uo}ohga}� |k}

~jddck�}t

�̀mk

uoh�okfq}a�c mk

_�g}}abcugk̀�g}}abcugk àbc̀ d

uo��ck~ca�l~}vf
¢£¤¥¦�§̈¥¥©ª̈«¦�¬®̄°¬®±²³ª¦£µ́�¶� ·¹̧º»¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÁ¹ÅÃÆ�ÇÁÈ

Û ·¹̧º»¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÁ¹ÅÃÆ�ÇÁÈáÔâÊÌ�ãÔÊäàÉÊåÔÑ�ãÔÊäàÉÊËÌÍ�ÎÏÌÌ�ÐÑÏÒÍ�ÓÔÕÖ×�ÓÕØÙÚÑÍÊ
æÊàÍ�ÐÊÖÊ�ÓÔÕÑâÍçÉÏâ×ÏèÊé�êÍÔèÑÊË×Ïâ�ëÑÊìÍíÔÑîï�ÒßðǗ

µ
Û ÛÜÝÞ ÛÜÞÛÜßÝÞ ÉÏÌÍà·¹̧º»¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÁ¹ÅÃÆ�ÇÁÈÙÚÑÍÊ

µ́
Û ·¹̧º»¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÁ¹ÅÃÆ�ÇÁÈáÔâÊÌ�ãÔÊäàÉÊåÔÑ�ãÔÊäàÉÊËÌÍ�ÎÏÌÌ�ÐÑÏÒÍ�ÓÔÕÖ×�ÓÕØÙÚÑÍÊ

æÊàÍ�ÐÊÖÊ�ÓÔÕÑâÍçÉÏâ×ÏèÊé�êÍÔèÑÊË×Ïâ�ëÑÊìÍíÔÑîï�ÒßðÜ



��������	�
����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � ����������������� ���������������

������ !�"#�$%���&�� '��%����&(�)�*#�+,%"�-#'��#�,"��+, ���.%���/'%��0�,"��#1�� '�2�3#�$%���,�*��1,���4'�"#,5��,��"5�6-7898:�;1�������� !�"#�$%���3�"*%*#��4�*���',���,'5��&%5�&�<�'�#,%��*#�'�*0�*!,���'�'�#,%��*#�'�*0��=3�*0�#1'���1�#��*0�,"��*���',��'�*#,>',"#*:�?@ABCADE�FGDADE�HICCJKD;1��+, ���.%���/'%���-�>#1�->&7L'�,�%*� '�*�"#�(�M�"���,�3�!&%",#%�"��4�*���',��M�"%"5��%*#'%3#*:�;1���,'5�*#� �'#%�"��4�#1��*>&7,'�,0�5�"�',��(��"3�! ,**%"5�#1��3�"#',�� �'#%�"��4�#1��5��4�3�>'*�0�%*�M�"���N7OP�N�*7%��"3��/%*#'%3#0�$1%���#1��*�>#1�'"� �'#%�"��4�#1��5��4�3�>'*��%*�M�"���N7QP�N�*%��"3��/%*#'%3#:�;1��+/R;�!,%"#�","3��5,',5��*%#��%*� '�*�"#�(�M�"���S78P�S"�>*#'%,��/%*#'%3#:�T%",��(0�*!,���*�5!�"#*��4�#1��*>&7,'�,�"�,'�)�*#�+,%"�-#'��#�,'��M�"���UP�V�3,��W>*%"�**�/%*#'%3#:�XYZ�[\�*1�$*�#1���<%*#%"5�M�"%"5� ,##�'"��4�#1��*>&7,'�,�,"���%3%"%#(:H]̂_À�aJKbÀJBcdDeKIBCK]̀C]KJfghijklmn�onmpqrsntmtisp;1�� '%!,'(���1%3>�,'�'�>#�*� '��%�%"5�,33�**�#��#1��*>&7,'�,�,'��)�*#�+,%"�-#'��#�u+7Q9v�#��#1��"�'#1�,"��w�'#1�/',x��N�,��#��#1���,*#:�S!7!��%,#��(�#��#1��$�*#��4�#1��*>&7,'�,�%*�6-78980�,��%!%#���,33�**�%"#�'7*#,#��4'��$,(�$%#1�,�3�"#'������,33�**�%"#�'31,"5��,#�)�*#�+,%"�-#'��#:�L�2,3�"#�#��#1��*>&7,'�,0�)�*#�+,%"�-#'��#�%*�,�y��7�,"��'�,��u3�"#�'�#>'"��,"�v�$%#1�,�* �����%!%#��4�Qz�!%��*� �'�1�>':��S"�O{8z0�,33�'�%"5�#��+/R;0�)�*#�+,%"�-#'��#�1,��,"�,��',5���,%�(�#',=3�3�>"#�uLL/;v��4�O|0|{{���1%3��*:�L33�'�%"5�#��#1��},�,!,M���L'�,�;',"* �'#,#%�"�-#>�(�O{Qz�~�,"0�#1��*�5!�"#��4�)�*#�+,%"�-#'��#�,�2,3�"#�#��#1��*>&7,'�,�%*�"�#� '�*�"#�(����y3%�"#��u$1�'��#',=3����>!���<3���*�3, ,3%#(v��1�$7���'0�*�5!�"#*��4�)�*#�+,%"�-#'��#�&�#1�#��#1��$�*#�,"���,*#��4��4�#1��*>&7,'�,�,'��3�"*%��'�����y3%�"#:�L33�'�%"5�#��#1��O{Qz�~�,"0�#'�,#!�"#�*#',#�5%�*�4�'���y3%�"#�'�,��*�5!�"#*�%"3�>��P�'��>3%"5� �'*�"�#'% *��'���1%3���!%��*�1�>'*�#',�������*1%4#%"5�,>#�!�&%���#'% *�#���#1�'�!���*��,"�0�%! '��%"5�'�,�$,(�� �',#%�"*�u*%5",��#%!%"50�#>'"%"5��,"�*0��#3:v:+, ���.%���/'%���%"#�'*�3#*�)�*#�+,%"�-#'��#�2>*#�#��#1��"�'#1��4�#1��*>&7,'�,�u,#�,�*%5",�%M���%"#�'*�3#%�"v�,"��#�'!%",#�*�%"#��,�3>�7��7*,3�,#�#1��"�'#1�'"���5���4�#1��*>&7,'�,:�;��#1��"�'#10�,3'�**�)�*#�+,%"�-#'��#0�

�I����?@ABCADE��ID���BJ�HICCJKD

������������������������������ �������������� �������������

�� ����������
������������¡�����¡�¢£����¤��

¥����������

¡��� �¡�
¥���������� ¥�����������¦���¦¥���� ����������§������������

¥������������¤�̈©��� �� �

¤�̈©������ª�«¬®�̄ ª�°±²³́�µ¶·�̧²¹º�̄
�̄°±²³́�µ¶

�� ����������

�»��£��������
¼̈������� §������  ����¦»������

�����¤�  ��¼��¦�¼���
£�̈��������£�¤�  ��¼��¦�¼��� ½������¡�

�������¡�
¾¿ÀÁÂ�ÃÄÁÁÅÆÄÇÂ�ÈÉÊËÌÈÊÍÎÏÆÂ¿ÐÑ«Ò«ÓÔÕÖ×ÕØÙÚÛØÜ�ÝÖÞ�ßÛ××ÞàØ éäìåí�îïåå�ðëïñí�òâóôõ�òóö÷�ëíäáâ��ðí�èïô��æíèïçí�ôïäå�òï��åí÷�ä�ïå��ðíôäãõíç�âë��ôôäãõíç


�ÓÔÕÖ×ÕØÙÚÛØÜ�ÝÖÞ�ßÛ××ÞàØ
ðäôä�òâóëãíè��äçí��ëï���éä������éïãõï�ä���íâ�ëäìõïã��ëä�í�âë���ñ��	

áâéäéä�ëâ�äãä�ô�áä�çè�â��íëãïäå��òíëñïãí�����ïãí��íôã	�âå���âóëèíîï�õ�ðí�èïô��æíèïçí�ôïäå�éóåôïìåí÷�ä�ïå��æíèïçí�ôïäå��òí�ïâë�îâóèï����íôã	
��èôïôóôïâ�äåáâ��ðí�èïô��æíèïçí�ôïäå�òï��åí÷�ä�ïå��ðíôäãõíç�âë��ôôäãõíç
�ôïåïôïíè � �� ������� �ííô�ÓÔÕÖ×ÕØÙÚÛØÜ�ÝÖÞ�ßÛ××ÞàØ áâãäå�æâäçèéäêâë�æâäçèéäìåí�îïåå�ðëïñí�òâóôõ�òóö÷�ëíä�ëâìíëô��áï�íèâóèï����íôã	
 �ÓÔÕÖ×ÕØÙÚÛØÜ�ÝÖÞ�ßÛ××ÞàØ
ðäôä�òâóëãíè��äçí��ëï���éä������éïãõï�ä���íâ�ëäìõïã��ëä�í�âë���ñ��	

áâ�ëâ�äãä�ô�áä�çè�â��íëãïäå��òíëñïãí�����ïãí��íôã	�âå���âóëèí��èôïôóôïâ�äå�ôïåïôïíè

ÐÑ
� �� ������� �ííô�ÓÔÕÖ×ÕØÙÚÛØÜ�ÝÖÞ�ßÛ××ÞàØ áâãäå�æâäçèéäêâë�æâäçèéäìåí�îïåå�ðëïñí�òâóôõ�òóö÷�ëíä�ëâìíëô��áï�íèâóèï����íôã	




����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��������������

������	
�����
�����
������������������������������
����������
�����
����������������
�����
�����������������������������������������
������������������	
�����
���������������
�������������� 
��
�����
���!�"���
����
#���
��������
��$����
������������������� 
��
������������������%�������&����%�!�����������
���!�
�����
����
#���
��������
����
�����������������
�����������
������
�������������������������
�����������
���
����
����!���'���������������%��������������������(���� 
�����!�����)��������
������������������������%������
�����*��+�������,����!�-�
���!�+��������*��+����
����.������������"����������������$������������
����
���������������������������������������������%�������
�����
����*!�
����(������-�������/���������0������������+���1�������������������������������� ������
��
���������
��������������������%��������234567�89:;<6=>�����%������
��������%!�����������>����
��"?�����$�%����!�������������%����
���������������%�������
�����
��@�+�����AB���������
�1�+�����C��������
��
���1�����+�����D��(������?�����E������!����
�
���"��������
��FGAH$�
���������������������
���������������������������������
����I�
������)����!�. ����������J�(�����
������?����������
������)����!�. ��������������������������AH��
�����
��������
������%��
�����������
�����K����������������
���%������
����������������������
�����������������������������
��
.�����������������
�����������!���������
�
�������%�����"���������������������!������������CG��
�����
��������������
��������������������
���%���.�
����
��$��+
�����������%���%��������*���������
���
��������
��������������
���������������%
�
�!��LM;NOM=M96PQR�89:;<SM9=:=6M;>�����%������
��������������!�������%!����������
#��������������
���������������������
�������
�����*���-�������!���
�����*��������������������%�����
��������������
�������������������������������%�������T���
�����*���������������������������
���������*��+���������������%�������	�����������������AG�������
���������!����������*��+����
��� ����������%������

UVW�XYZ[\]̂\_̀�ab_\_̀�cV̂̂de_

fghijgk�flimnop�qhrsttlurilvqh w�xskghvggy�qh qhizovggy�{|l

xs}tl�fitt�qh
wnsyuvggy�qh~gyml�~k��iyml�ih

�lpotikp{|l

~gym l~k
�ggytskl�qh �lpo|ilv�wow�lki��suqh xskystsuqh�hllkxlsygvqh

�ikyikmvggyqh�t��ril vq h

�t��rilvqh��������� �������������������
����������

xs}tl�fitt�qh

w�u��iyml�{|l
��oolhztu �hsppng}}lhfi��ghurst

tluqh�g}}lh�ls�n�t|y
�g�ky�fitt��y�g}}lh�ls�n�t|y �lkhgpl~k

rikosml~k
������ ¡��¢£¡¤��¥¦§̈©¥§ª«¬£��®�̄�°±²³́²µ¶·̧µ²µ¶�¹º́́»¼µÅÀÈÁÉ�ÊËÁÁ�ÌÇËÍÉ�Î¾ÏÐÑ�ÎÏÒÓÔÇÉÀÂÓØÖ�ÂÉÄËÃÉ×¿ÉÙ¾×Ë×Ú�ÌËÄÐÇË¿ÐÄÛ

Ü ÝÜÜ ØÖÜÜÜÕÝÜ ÞÉÉÐß°±²³́²µ¶·̧µ²µ¶�¹º́́»¼µ
ÌÀÐÀ�Î¾ÏÇ¿ÉÄÛàÄÑÐÉá¾�â¾ã×ÄÑËÈ�Ù¾×Ë×Ú�ÅÀÈÅË¿ÑËÚÀ×�äÉ¾ÚÇÀÈÑË¿�ÞÇÀáÉã¾ÇåÖ�ÍØæç

½¾¿ÀÁ�Â¾ÀÃÄÅÀÆ¾Ç�Â¾ÀÃÄÅÀÈÁÉ�ÊËÁÁ�ÌÇËÍÉ�Î¾ÏÐÑ�ÎÏÒÓÔÇÉÀèÇ¾ÈÉÇÐé�½Ë×ÉÄÂÓêÖ�ÂÉÄËÃÉ×¿ÉëÓØÖ�ë×ÃÏÄÐÇËÀÁÂÓÕÖ�ÂÉÄËÃÉ×¿ÉÂÓæÖ�ÂÉÄËÃÉ×¿ÉÂÓØÖ�ÂÉÄËÃÉ×¿É
ìÖ�½¾¿ÀÁ�íÏÄË×ÉÄÄ

Ù¾×Ë×Ú�ÌËÄÐÇË¿ÐÄÛ
Ü ÝÜÜ ØÖÜÜÜÕÝÜ ÞÉÉÐß°±²³́²µ¶·̧µ²µ¶�¹º́́»¼µ

ÌÀÐÀ�Î¾ÏÇ¿ÉÄÛàÄÑÐÉá¾�â¾ã×ÄÑËÈ�Ù¾×Ë×Ú�ÅÀÈÅË¿ÑËÚÀ×�äÉ¾ÚÇÀÈÑË¿�ÞÇÀáÉã¾ÇåÖ�ÍØæç
½¾¿ÀÁ�Â¾ÀÃÄÅÀÆ¾Ç�Â¾ÀÃÄèÇ¾ÈÉÇÐé�½Ë×ÉÄÂÓêÖ�ÂÉÄËÃÉ×¿ÉëÓØÖ�ë×ÃÏÄÐÇËÀÁÂÓÕÖ�ÂÉÄËÃÉ×¿ÉÂÓæÖ�ÂÉÄËÃÉ×¿ÉìÖ�½¾¿ÀÁ�íÏÄË×ÉÄÄ



��������	�
����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � ����������������� ���������������

������ !�"#�$%&'(�)* � +"��"#,�� �"! #�"-.�# ",*/0�*00!���0��* ��0��*�01��* ���/2-� -�-� �#0��� �3 !�/4��"! 5-.6�(�)* �# -� ���� ,"0#-.���-".��0�� �"���* �7-.28-3 #�)�-".9�5*"�*�"��.0�-� !�-::�0+";-� .4�$�;". ��#0��*�01��* ���/2-� -(�<=>?>=>@A)* �B-:. �8"..�C�"3 �D0��*�D�/2E� -�-#!�:�0: ��" ��"#��* �3"�"#"�4�-� �:� � #�.4�� �3 !�/4�-�# �50�6�01�:�/."��5-� ��-#!�� 5 ����"."�" ��F�  �GHI�JKL(�M�/."��5-� ��;-"#����#�-.0#,�/0�*�N ���B-"#�D��  ��-#!�C�-6 �O0-!�# -���* ���/2-� -(�E�&$2"#�*�!"-; � ��5-� ��;-"#� +� #!���0��* �#0��*� !, �01��* ���/2-� -�-.0#,�B-:. �8"..�C�"3 9�-#!�-#�'2"#�*�5-� ��;-"#� +� #!��"#�0��* ���/2-� -�-.0#,��* �,0.1��0��� ��.�/*0�� �!�"3 5-4(�E#�'2"#�*�5-� ��;-"#�-.�0� +� #!��# -���* ��0��* �#� !, �01��* ���/2-� -�-.0#,�O0�#!�8"..�O0-!(M�/."���-#"�-�4�� 5 ��;-"#����#�-.0#,�/0�*�N ���B-"#�D��  ��-#!�C�-6 �O0-!�# -���* ���/2-� -(�E#�'2"#�*�!"-; � ���-#"�-�4�� 5 ��;-"#� +� #!���0��* �#0��*� !, �01��* ���/2-� -�-.0#,�B-:. �8"..�C�"3 (�E#�'2"#�*��-#"2�-�4�� 5 ��;-"#�-.�0� +� #!���0��* ��0��* �#� !, �01��* ���/2-� -�-.0#,�O0�#!�8"..�O0-!(�PQRSTQU�VWQRSTWXE#� +"��"#,�,0.1��0��� �0���:" ��;��*�01��* ���/2-� -�-#!�1 -��� ��0: #��:-� 9���  ��-#!�3 , �-�"0#(�Y �-�� �01�"����",#"Z�-#���"[ 9��* �,0.1��0��� �"��-#�";:0��-#��,�  #��:-� �-� -(�\���* �9�"��"��0# �01��* �1 5�.-�, �,�  #��:-� �-� -��"#��*"��:0��"0#�01��* �)05#�*":(�]#�� �;��01�! 3 .0; #���0#���-"#��9��* �B-:. �8"..�C�"3 �D0��*�D�/2E�2 -�!0 ��#0��:� � #�.4��0#�-"#�#-���-.�1 -��� ���*-��50�.!�:�0*"/"��0���",#"Z�-#�.4�*"#! ���0#������"0#�-��"3"�4(�)* ��"� �"��, # �-..4�̂-�9�5"�*�-�1 5��;-..�:0#!��-#!��0; ���  ��05��F:-���01��* � +"��"#,�,0.1��0��� L(�_0���� -;��0����  6�� +� #!��*�0�,*�0��# -���* ���/2-� -(�E��0�!"#,��0��* �_-�"0#-.�N �.-#!��]#3 #�0�49�#0�5 �.-#!��-� �10�#!�"#��* ���/2-�2 -(�E��0�!"#,��0�\̀BE9�#0�:0��"0#�01��* ���/2-� -�"��5"�*"#�-�&%%24 -��0̂0!:.-"#(

aQb��cdSeUfg�hRfUfRfWX

ijklmjn�iolpqrs�tkuvwwoxuloytk z�{vnjkyjj|�tk tkl}ryjj|�~�o
{v�wo�ilww�tk

zqv|xyjj|�tk�j|po��n��l|po�lk
�osrwlns~�o

�j|p o�n
�jj|wvno�tk �osr�loy�zrz�onl��vxtk {vn|vwvxtk

�ln|lnpyjj|tk�w��ulo yt k

�w��uloytk

��������� ���������
z�x��l|po�~�o

��rrok}wx �kvssqj��okil��jkxuvw
woxtk�j��ok�ov�q�w�|

�j�n|�ilww��|�j��ok�ov�q�w�|

ulnrvpo�n

���

���
���� ��������� ������

���

���

������

���

���
���

����
���

���

���

���
������� ���

���
����

���

������
���

��� ���

���

���

�������

��� ��� ������

��� ���

���

���

����

���
���

�������

���

���

��� ������ ���

���

���

���

���

���
����

��� �������

���
����

���

����

���

���

���

���
���

���

���

��� ���

���

���

���

����
���� ����

���
���

���

���

���

���

���

����

���

��� ������

���

������

����

����
���

���
���

����

��� ���

����

���

���

���

���
����

���

��� ���

���

���

���

���

���

������

���

���

���
���

����
���

��� ���

���

���

���

���

��� ����

����

�������

�� ¡¢�£¤¡¡¥¦¤§¢�̈©ª«¬ª̈®̄¦¢�°±�²�³́µ¶·̧�¹º·¶·º·»¼ÏÉÌÀÃÐ�Ô¾ÊÁÅ�½¾ÃÒÓ

Ö ×ÖÖ ØÙÖÖÖÚ×Ö ÛÁÁÜ³́µ¶·̧�¹º·¶·º·»¼
Ä¾Ê¾�ÇÈÉÅÐÁÓÝÞÓËÊÁßÈ�àÈÑÒÓËÃ¿Ù�ÄÁÐÁßÌÁÅ�ÚÖØá½ÃÐËÃâ¾Ò�ãÁÈâÅ¾¿ËÃÐ�ÛÅ¾ßÁÑÈÅäÙ�ÆØåæçÈÐ¾À�èÈ¾éÓ½¾êÈÅ�èÈ¾éÓ½¾¿ÀÁ�ÂÃÀÀ�ÄÅÃÆÁ�ÇÈÉÊË�ÇÉÌÍÎÅÁ¾ÏÅÈ¿ÁÅÊë�çÃÒÁÓÏÉÌÀÃÐ�ÇÁÑÁÅ�½¾ÃÒÓÏÉÌÀÃÐ�Ô¾ÊÁÅ�½¾ÃÒÓ�Õ�Õ

°±
Ö ×ÖÖ ØÚ×ÖÜ³́µ¶·̧�¹º·¶·º·»¼

Ä¾Ê¾�ÇÈÉÅÐÁÓÝÞÓËÊÁßÈ�àÈÑÒÓËÃ¿Ù�ÄÁÐÁßÌÁÅ�ÚÖØá½ÃÐËÃâ¾Ò�ãÁÈâÅ¾¿ËÃÐ�ÛÅ¾ßÁÑÈÅäÙ�ÆØåæçÈÐ¾À�èÈ¾éÓ½¾êÈÅ�èÈ¾éÓ½¾¿ÀÁ�ÂÃÀÀ�ÄÅÃÆÁ�ÇÈÉÊË�ÇÉÌÍÎÅÁ¾ÏÅÈ¿ÁÅÊë�çÃÒÁÓÏÉÌÀÃÐ�ÇÁÑÁÅ�½¾ÃÒÓ
±

Ö ×ÖÖ ØÙÖÖÖÚ×Ö ÛÁÁÊÜ³́µ¶·̧�¹º·¶·º·»¼
ÓËÃ¿Ù�ÄÁÐÁßÌÁÅ�ÚÖØáÅ¾¿ËÃÐ�ÛÅ¾ßÁÑÈÅäÙ�ÆØåæçÈÐ¾À�èÈ¾éÓ½¾êÈÅ�èÈ¾éÓ½¾¿ÀÁ�ÂÃÀÀ�ÄÅÃÆÁ�ÇÈÉÊË�ÇÉÌÍÎÅÁ¾ÏÅÈ¿ÁÅÊë�çÃÒÁÓÏÉÌÀÃÐ�ÇÁÑÁÅ�½¾ÃÒÓÏÉÌÀÃÐ�Ô¾ÊÁÅ�½¾ÃÒÓ



����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��������������

������	
�����
�������������������������������������������������� ����!��"��#�����#�$%&�����������'���������(�����(��)��������*����������+,-./��������������������(��)�����(���������������*���'�'���������������%$��������������������������'������������������*�"����������������������������������� ����!��"��#�����#�$%&���/�0�������1�����������2,����������*�����3���������*�*�����(��)����/�4�������������������'��������1���������������(������*1�(���������*����������(�����������*����������$����������"��(���*��������/�5	6�78�9:;<;:;�=;�>�:?;�@���)������������������(��)�����(�����"��������������������"��1���������A��������$������'����*$��)�������*�������������*���'�����������������'���������)��'����������������������������"�����'��/�BCDEF�G����%"�*����������������������"���'����������������������1����"���*�$������(��)����������*���/�&**���������1����'���������*��������'��������)�*����'����������������'�������������*�*����������������/�0��'������1�����"��������������������"�������������"����*���������������%�����������(��%*�����������*�������*�"������������������*������'�%��%*�����������*�������*�"��������/��������������*�(������'��%��������������*����*������*�*�"���������(����*����������������������H���������������/�������(�����'�������*���������������"�������������������������*�"���������I����������J���*������%������IKL��������J���'��*�����������*�������*�"��������/���M�*%����*�"�������������������*�(���������*�*�������������M��$���*���'��A�������$���*��'����������������*���������������1�(����+%K���������������'��1���*���*�'����*���"����������(��������������������*������N�O��/������������"���*���������������'���(����������������������*����������������������$����������(������'��A�������$���*��'�������������1���������������1���*����*������'/�P�'%$�M���*������������������*�"���������(����������������*/�#�����������������������*���*�������1�$���������*����%������3�*�����������(�����������������*/�0��'���(������������*���$�������������1�����������*�(��)���������*�����������'����������1�(�����"��(������'�����������*/�����*������*����������������"������������%��������"����������"�*�*��������QRRFSTUV/�

W7X8;�Y5	6�78�9:;<;:;�=;�>�:?;����7Z;�>=�:;6�X���7
;Z�:�

[���������"��������������������"�����"����*��������������������(��%*����%������'��%�������*�"��������1�����������������������$%�����I����'���\���������������������������*�������������M�������������$�����*��������������*���'��������������*�"��������J������������*����������*����������*%���/��&���1�������(������]������4��*�̂�������*���������'��������������*�"�����������(��*���������������*'�����������(�����1�������������_�������̀�����3��/�a�"����������������1��������������������������������(�������������*�����*�������*���������(������������$%����/�

� bcdefcgheij� kelcf�mdc� noppcqreij�stuvu�wxyz{|� stuvu�}~�����u|{� stuvu�wxyz{|� stuvu�}~�����u|{� stuvu�wxyz{|� stuvu�}~�����u|{����� ���� ����� ���� ���� �������� ���� ����� ���� ���� ��������� ���� ����� ���� ���� �������� ���� ����� ���� ���� �������� ����� ����� ����� ���� �������� ����� ����� ����� ���� ��������� ����� ����� ����� ���� ��������� ����� ������ ����� ����� ��������� ����� ����� ����� ���� ��������� ����� ����� ����� ���� ������ ���erc� �hqcchd��efc�ij�d���qigdeh� ���jer��pcgehecd�stuvu�wxyz{|� stuvu�}~�����u|{� stuvu�wxyz{|� stuvu�}~�����u|{� stuvu�wxyz{|� stuvu�}~�����u|{����� ���� ���� ���� s}��� �������� ���� ���� ���� s}��� �������� ���� ���� ���� s}��� �������� ���� ���� ���� s}��� ��������� ����� ���� ���� s}��� �������� ����� ���� ���� s}��� �������� ����� ���� ����� s}��� �������� ����� ����� ����� s}��� �������� ����� ���� ����� s}���� ��������� ����� ���� ����� s}��� ������



��������	�
����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � ����������������� ���������������

������ !�"#�$�%�#&'(� ! )�*��+,���$�%�#&'(� ! -&((�./�"#�$�%�#&'(� ! 01/��$�%�#&'(� !



����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��������������

�������	�
������	����
� ����
������
�
�� ���������� !"#�$%�&��%�"%#�$���� '(�$��(�%��)��#*&'�*�$%�(��� "+�,��,�%�,$�#%#�$��"+�*��"�$�#�%#$-��.�%+����%,)'#�+*�$%��.�'��/(�$�#%0� ����,$(1����&�$��&,"��) 2�����%���$� ���,$�,&&��&�#,%����',%#�$�+#&��#%+�,(3,"�$%�'��/(�$�#%0����#(�$%#,'�(���'�&*�$%�%��%+���� %+4�5�%+�%+����%,)'#�+*�$%��.�'����/(�$�#%0����#(�$%#,'� �����#%+#$�%+��� )/,��,�,$(�,$(�%+��&��%�"%#�$��.��6#�%#$-�'��/(�$�#%0����#(�$%#,'� ����,(3,"�$%�%��%+��� )/,��,������+#-+'0�(��#��(�)0��#� ,'�&��.���$"��� ���0�&,�%#"#/&,$%�4�7��
8��9:���
��;���"�$(�<�0�"�*&�$�$%��.�%+��"�** $#%0����<�+�&��,��,�(��#-$��6/��"#�����+�����*,''�-�� &��=�#-+%�%�%,'>������.��*�(�,$(�,�<�(�%��#(�$/%#.0�(��#-$�"�$"�&%��,$(�#(�,��.���. % ���(���'�&*�$%��#%+#$�%+���% (0�,��,4�?��� &&��%�%+#���2��%���*,''�-�� &�������-#��$�',�-��,��#,'�&+�/%�-�,&+���.�%+���% (0�,��,��,'�$-��#%+�&��/��%,)'#�+�(�",%�-��#����#%+�&��"�(�$%�(��"�#&%#�$�1#*,-��0�.���',$(� ���%0&����) #'(#$-�%0&���,$(�"#�" ',%#�$��� %��%0&��4�5�'���#��,�� **,�0��.�%+��<�0�%+�*������@�+,��(��,' ��A�%+,%��*��-�(�,��,���� '%��.�%+#���6��"#��4BCDE�FGHGI+#'��%+��(�%,#'���.��,"+�-�� &J���#%��(��#-$�&',$�(#2���(�#$�%+��',0� %�,$(��",'���.�(���'�&*�$%��$�%+���#%�������,''��%+��&',$��+,(�%+��.�''��/#$-�#$�"�**�$KL�;�) 2���"�$�#�%#$-��.��&�$��&,"��,$(�"�*&'#*�$%,�0���"��,%#�$,'� ������4-4�&',0-�� $(���&,�<���%�,#'����%"4��+� '(�)��'�",%�(�,'�$-�%+���� %+�&��&��%0�'#$��)�%���$�%+���#%��,$(�%+��$�#-+)��+��(��%��%+���� %+�L�M�**��"#,'�,$(���%,#'� �����#$"' (#$-�*#6�(/ ���) #'(#$-����+� '(�)��'�",%�(�,'�$-�%+��$��%+�&��&��%0�'#$��=�+#"+�#��"�$�#�%�$%��#%+��6#�%#$-�',$(� �����$�N,#$�O%���%>�L�;�*#6% ����.��!"��,$(�*#6�(/ ���) #'(#$-���+� '(�)��'�",%�(�%��%+�����%��,(3,"�$%�%��PO/QRQ�



��������	�
����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � ����������������� ���������������

������ !��"�#�$�%�&!'! ()*+,-�.*-�/,012�3+4-5-3�+1�*67�.*-�2+.-�2*68,3�9-�0::-22-3�65�*67�.*-�2.5--.�1-.765;�2*68,3�.50<-52-�.*-�2+.-=�2-<-50,�.*->-2�:0>-�68.�6?�.*-�3-2+@1�/56:-22A�B*-�?6,,67+1@�/56<+3-2�0�28>>05C�6?�*67�.*-�3-2+@1�/56/620,2�3-0,.�7+.*�:611-:.+612�013�>69+,+.CAD�E,,�-+@*.�@568/2�28@@-2.-3�0�2.5--.�:611-:.+61�.6�.*-�2+.-�?56>�.*-�165.*�FG0+1�H.5--.I�.*568@*�01�-J.-12+61�6?�-J+2.+1@�2.5--.2�013�35+<-70C2�+1.6�.*-�2+.-D�)*+,-�.*5--�/,012�/56/62-3�-J.-13+1@�.*-�2.5--.�1-.765;�.6�>0;-�0�:611-:.+61�.6�.*-�-J+2.+1@�1-+@*965*6632�268.*�6?�.*-�2+.-=�.*-�>0K65+.C�6?�.*-�/,012�/56/62-3�.*-�:5-0.+61�6?�0�,05@-�984-5�05-0�0,61@�.*-�268.*-51�9653-5D�L0,?�6?�.*-�/,012�/56/62-3�0�2.5--.�:611-:.+61�.6�.*-�-J+2.+1@�:6>M>-5:+0,�05-0�F013�8,.+>0.-,C�N50;-�O603I�.6�.*-�-02.�D�H-<-50,�/,012�28@@-2.-3�.*-�:5-0.+61�6?�/-3-2.5+01�.50+,2�013�9+:CM:,-�,01-2�61�.*-�2+.-=�/6.-1.+0,,C�:611-:.+1@�+1.6�.*-�-J+2.+1@�2.5--.�1-.765;�6?�.*-�1-+@*965*6632�.6�.*-�268.*B*-�3-.0+,-3�5-28,.2�6?�.*-�3-2+@1�-J-5:+2-�05-�/56<+3-3�+1�.*-�PQQRSTUVA�WXYXZ[\�]Ẑ_Y\�̂[̀�abX[cXd_eYB*-�f2*.->6�B6712*+/�G02.-5�g,01�hijj�:61.0+12�k60,2�013�f9K-:.+<-2�.6�3-2:5+9-�.*-�<+2+61�?65�.*-�B6712*+/�02�0�7*6,-�013�*67�.6�0:*+-<-�.*->A�B*-2-�6<-50,,�@60,2�0,26�0//,C�.6�.*-�G0/,-�L+,,�N5+<-�H68.*�H89ME5-0�013�7+,,�*-,/�2*0/-�.*-�3-<-,6/>-1.�.*0.�6::852A�L67-<-5=�38-�.6�.*-�81+l8-�:+5:8>2.01:-2�+1�.*+2�289M05-0=�.*-�<+2+61=�@60,2=�013�/5+1:+/,-2�-2.09,+2*-3�*-5-+1�?65�.*-�289M05-0�7+,,�?85.*-5�@8+3-�?8.85-�,013�82-�013�3-<-,6/>-1.A��B*-�<+2+61=�@60,2=�013�/6,+:+-2�-2.09,+2*-3�*-5-+1�3-/+:.�.*-�+3-0,�?8.85-�6?�.*-�G0/,-�L+,,�N5+<-�H68.*�H89ME5-0A�B*-�<+2+61�+2�?657053M,66;+1@=�01.+:+/0.+1@�.*0.�3-<-,6/>-1.�65�5-3-<-,6/>-1.�7+,,�16.�6::85�+>>-M3+0.-,C=�98.�50.*-5=�7+,,�6::85�+1�,+1-�7+.*�>05;-.�3->013�6<-5�0�,61@-5�/-5+63�6?�.+>-=�m<-�.6�.-1�C-052�+1.6�.*-�?8.85-=�65�9-C613A�B*+2�/,01�5-:6@1+n-2�.*0.�.*-�-J+2.+1@�82-2�:855-1.,C�/5-2-1.�7+.*+1�.*-�289M05-0=�f1-�6?�.*-�2>0,,�@568/�:61:-/.�/,012�/5-/05-3�385+1@�.*-�3-2+@1�-J-5:+2-A



����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��������������

�����	��
������������������������	�������������������
���
������������������������������ �!�"��������������������������	��#�����
��	�������	������������	���������������������������	�"������������ �$%&%'(�)'*�+,-�./012*-3������
������������������������!���������4�����4���5���������	������������������������	�����������6�����������7	����	�������������������
�����������	���7�������������������8����	��������
6�����	����������	������������"��������������
��9�����6���	�������������	��
���	�����	��
������	��	�����	�"�����������������	��������������"�����	:�������� �;������������������"���������	����	������	�����������"���������9������������6�������������	������������
������6����������������������������	��������� �<�����������	��	������������������������"���	���#�6�	����������������	��������6�	����������
�����8����������<��������4������	�������������	������������������	��
�����������	������� �=����������	�	��������"���	���#�6���	�����������������"���������������6������������	����"������������������������ ��������������6�������
�����������������������	������	�����������
�
�������	�����	��	�������������������������������������������������������������"�����>������������������
��"�����	�	������� �?'3@&�3(A�B*%(C%D@-&�)'*�+,-�./012*-3��������	��������������������������	������������������"�����	���������
�����	�������"���������������������	��������"����������������	 ����
�������	����������������
���E	���������������
����
����F���������6�G������6����������������G��	�=�����	�5���� �;��������#�����	���������6�����
��	�����������	����6���������	��"��	�����6���
������"���������������	H��������������I7�������
������������	������������
� �J
��	����������	�K��������	����	��������������������������6�"�������������
�������	�����������������6�"���������������������������	����������������6�"��������������������	��6������������6 �

LMNNOPQRS�TQUV�WMXY�XPZ�[\QP]Q̂YV_��������������������!���������4�����4���5���"�������������������������������������7�����
�9�����6��������������������"��������"��#����	����6�������������"����� �̀�������������
���6���	�9�����6�����������7�����
���	���������
�������	����	��������	��
����	����������������
�����	������������������	������������K�� ��̀������������	���������6�
������
������������	��������	�	�"������������������������	�����������������������������������������������������������	�������������������6 ��̀5�	���������	����6������	���	����	�������������������������������������������������"���������6 �̀�������������������������#����	�����������E	������������"������������
	�"���������������� �����������a����
����������"�����������	�	�������������	����������������������� [bS_Q]XY�LbX\X]RV\�WMXY�XPZ�[\QP]Q̂YV_4�����	��������������	��
��"��������������!���������4�����4���5��������������"�7�����������	�����������6�����	��	�������������
��������������	�����������9����	���������7���������������������	����	��� ��;������	��������������	��	������������������	�����������������������������������������������c��������������	������������ ��!�"�������������	��	���������I7�������
���������"���������������������������������� ��̀d���	��
�	��
��������������	�"��������	�����	��
���
������������������������������	���
��9�����6�����	��
��������������������	���������������������	����������� ���̀�����6��������
�����	����#��������	��
���������	��������E���������������������������	��
�������������6������E��������	:��������	��������
�������	������������������������������K�������������������
���������� �̀e���	���6���������	������	�����������������
	���������������	�������	������
�������������	������6�� 



��������	�
����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � ����������������� ���������������
�������� !"#$�%&'()*$�&#��&+�#!*!� �,-(.!����/!*�!#�*�����.�%(,0+�#*� �&%%�1&%&#2��1(*��,��� *-!&#�&#��.��!2)%&-�#��� $�&#�� �&%%�/(-3�*(��#�&#2��&� *��*!2�&,,�&%�&#��*���(.�-&%%��4,�-!�#2��5(-�1(*��-� !��#* �&#��.! !*(- 6��7� *-��* 2&,��&� *��*!2� �&%%�1���� !"#���*�&*�!#2%)�� �,)1%!2��%�0+�#* �&#��!#*�"-&*��� !"#&"��/!*�!#�*��� )10&-�&6���8) *&!#&1%����.�%(,+�#*�,-!#2!,%� $� )2��& �*���) ��(5� *(-+�/&*�-�1� *�+&#&"�+�#*�,-&2*!2� �&#��*���!#2(-,(-&*!(#�(5�9"-��#:�1)!%�!#"��� !"#$�/!%%�1���#2()-&"���&#��!#2�#*!.!;��$�!#�(-��-�*(��#�&#2��*���<)&%!*'�(5�*���#&*)-&%��#.!-(#+�#*�&#��%!+!*�(=0 !*��!+,&2* 6������/� *�-#�,(-*!(#�(5�*��� )10&-�&$�/!*���!"��.! !1!%!*'�5-(+�>80?@?�&#��A� *�B&!#�8*-��*$� �&%%� �(/2& �� *-(#"�)#!C����� !"#�&#��&-2�!*�2*)-&%� *&#�&-� $�/!*��*���,(*�#*!&%�5(-�*���!#2(-,(-&0*!(#�(5�"&*�/&'�5�&*)-� ��!"�%!"�*!#"��#*-'�!#*(�D �*�+(��(/#0 �!,6�

EFGH�IJK�LMFN�FGH�OPQGRQSNKJT)*)-����.�%(,+�#*�!#�*���B&,%��U!%%�8()*��8)107-�&�/!%%�!#2%)���&�+!4�(5�) � $�2(+,%�+�#*!#"�*���2(++�-2!&%�2�&-&2*�-�(5�*���&-�&�/�!%��-� ,�2*!#"�&�V&2�#*�-� !��#*!&%���.�%(,+�#*6���> � �!#�*��� )10&-�&�/!%%�!#2%)���&�2(+,&*!1%��+!4�(5�-� !��#*!&%$�#(#0-� !��#*!&%�&#��,)1%!2� ,&2�6���W�.�%(,+�#*�!#�*��� )10&-�&� �&%%�!#2%)���,&  !.��(,�#� ,&2� $�&#��/!%%�1���� !"#���*(�1��-�X�2*!.��(5�*����4! *!#"�%&#� 2&,��&#��#&*)-&%�5�&*)-� �Y*-���-(/ $�,(#� $��*26Z�(5�*��� !*�6�72*!.��,%&;& �&#��2!.!2� ,&2� � �&%%�&% (�1��!#*�"-&*���!#*(�*���(.�-&%%���.�%(,0+�#*6����(��# )-��2(+,&*!1!%!*'�/!*��&�V&2�#*���.�%(,+�#*$�&�*-&# !*!(#&%�%&#��) �� 2��+�� �&%%�1���+,%('��$�/!*��*���%�& *�!#*�# !.��&#��%(/� *���# !*'�%&#��) � �*(�1��%(2&*���&%(#"�*��� ()*��-#���"��(5�*��� )10&-�&�Y&�V&2�#*�*(�� *&1%! ����-� !��#*!&%�&-�& Z$�*-&# !*!(#0!#"�*(�+(-��!#*�# !.��&#���!"��-���# !*'�%&#��) � �/��-��&�V&2�#*�*(�*���5-��/&'�&#���4! *!#"�2(++�-2!&%�&-�& 6������� ()*��-#���"��(5�*��� )10&-�&� �&%%�1���42%) !.�%'�(22),!���1'�-� !��#*!&%�%&#��) � $�*(��# )-��2(+,&*!1!%!*'�/!*��&�V&2�#*�� *&1%! ����-� !��#*!&%�&-�& 6�T)-*��-$�!5�*�����!"�*�&#��1)%3�(5�&#'�,-(,( ���-� !��#*!&%�2(# *-)2*!(#�! �#(*��<)!.&%�#*�*(�*����4! *!#"���.�%(,+�#*$�&�#&*)-&%�"-��# ,&2��1)=�-[�.�"�*&*!.�� 2-��#� �&%%�1��,-(.!���6\RRKJJ�LMFN�FGH�OPQGRQSNKJ7� &5�$��]2!�#*$�&#��1&%&#2���+)%*!0+(�&%�*-&# ,(-*&*!(#�#�*/(-3�/!%%�1��� *&1%! ����/!*�!#�*���B&,%��U!%%�W-!.��8()*��8)107-�&6�����,-!+&-'�.��!2)%&-�&22�  �*(�*��� )10&-�&�/!%%�1��,-(.!����5-(+�A� *�B&!#�8*-��*̂��(/�.�-$�%(2&%�2(##�2*!(# �*(�&�V&2�#*���.�%(,+�#*� �()%��&% (�1��� *&1%! ���6��_# )-��5)*)-����.�%(,+�#*�2(+,%!� �/!*��*����(/# �!,̀ �722�  �B&#&"�+�#*�a%&#6��b�<)!-���]2!�#*�.��!2)%&-�&#��,��� *-!&#�!#*�-2(##�2*!(# �1�0*/��#�*���.&-!�����.�%(,+�#*� !*� �/!*�!#�*��� )10&-�&6

cdefghijkdlm�ndlo�jpq�jrsfdloslirjk�qondep�tdkk�opniro�kupeglorv�jwgwojkx�jpq�srojlo�j�ipdhio�jpq�vovgurjyko�ozwordopso�{ur�|dndlurn�jpq�rondqopln}



����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��������������

�����	

���

�������

�������

�
������������������

��������
���������
	��

�� ��������
������!�"#�����
�	

���������!	

���

$��%&
�'�
$
  �����(���#�

)�����)��	��

���&&�
  ��

�

������� *���
&�'��(���(����� ����������

$��+)��	��

��(�
��)������� ,-./0-1�234.5670-�8.-56709.:;�<:693=>35:;?0-1�234.5670-�8.-56709.:;�<:693=@;40;53?�A-0;=.9�<:693,-./0-1�,3?3=9-.0;�<:693=>6BCD-30�E:6;?0-1FGHIJ�KLII�MNLOJ�PQRST�PRUVWNJGMJOJIQHXJYS�ZJ[QXXJY\GSLQY]�̂+�������_̀�ab�c���"̂dFGH�ef A-0;=.9.:;�>543/3gh:i3-�j=3�k;93;=.91l�m3;=.91�0;?�E6.7?.;n�o0==.;np-3093-�j=3�k;93;=.91l�m3;=.91�0;?�E6.7?.;n�o0==.;nqr srrtus usr v339

wxyzZW{�w|FF}y~z��P�Wwx
�Z~FWZ��xyzZWywx �Z~FWZ��xyzZWywx�Wzx�W�zZxWzFxyzP zZWyP~z�Pz|�

Pxw|yMWZ��WwwxPP
Pxw|yMWZ��WwwxPP
P}�VWZxWW{{|�W�{x�{WyM�}PxP�w|FF}y~z��|�xy�P�WwxZxzW~{�|��~wx�zxwKy|{|��z|�y�wxyzxZF~�xMVZxP~Mxyz~W{



��������	�
����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � ����������������� ���������������

������� �!"��#$%&#�!'& �($'!&!�$ � �!)$'*�� �&�+&  �'�!"&!�,��%$-'.&����,�'�%!�%$  �%!�$ ��/�!)�� �%$++�'%�&#�,�0�#$(+� !�& ,�&,1&%� !� ���"/$'"$$,��#�+�!� ��!"'$-�"�!'&2%3����4$$',� &!��)�!"�5�67�& ,�!"��8$&,�4$++����$ �$9�:&#&+&;$$�4$- !<�!$�� �-'��9-!-'��'$&,��+('$0�+� !��&'��%$ ���!� !�)�!"�!"���& ,�$!"�'�(#& ��$9�!"��7$) �"�(=�� %#-,� ��!"��>$ .5$!$'�;�,�?&%�#�!����@#& 3���6(($'!- �!����9$'�� "& %�,�!'& ��!���'0�%��)�!"� �!"���-/.&'�&��"$-#,�/���A(#$'�,�& ,�&%%$++$,&!�,3���?&%�#�!&!��!"����!&/#��"+� !�$9�&�(�,��!'�& �& ,�/�%<%#��!'& �($'!&.!�$ � �!)$'*�)�!"� �!"���-/.&'�&=�)�!"��!'&!���%�%$  �%!�$ ��!$�!"��/'$&,�'� $ .+$!$'�;�,�!'& �($'!&!�$ � �!)$'*3��@&'*� ��&'�&���"$-#,�/��,���� �,�& ,�#$%&!�,�)�!"�%&'�=�!$�&0$�,�$0�'(&'*� ��!"����!��& ,�!$�� �-'��!"��9$%-��'�+&� ��$ �!"��/-�#,.� ���& ,� $!�!"��(&'*� ��&'�&�3��B"&'�,�(&'*� ��)�##�/���!'$ �#<�� %$-'&��,3��B�,�)&#*���"$-#,�/��('$0�,�,�$ ��0�'<��!'��!�!$�('$+$!���&9��& ,��2%�� !�(�,��!'�& �'$-!���)�!"� �!"��,�0�#$(+� !3CDEDFGHIDJK�LDMGIIDJNOKPGJQ��0�#$(+� !�'�%$++� ,&!�$ ��9$'�!"���-/.&'�&=�'�#&!�,�!$�#& ,�-��=�,� ��!<=�%�'%-#&!�$ �& ,�%$  �%!�$ �=�&'��9-'!"�'�,��%'�/�,�/�#$)�& ,�&'���##-�!'&!�,�$ �RST�UV3WOJN�XQD�YZHDQ7$�&##$)�[�A�/�#�!<�� �9-!-'��,�0�#$(+� !�$9�!"����!�=�!"����-/.&'�&�(#& �,$��� $!��(�%�\%&##<�,�#� �&!��!"����$�'&("�%&#��A!� !�$9�#& ,�-����!"&!�)$-#,�%$+('����!"��$0�'&##�+�A�,.-���,�0�#$(+� !3�]$)�0�'=�%$ ���.!� !�)�!"�!"��('�0�$-�#<�#��!�,�̂& ,�_���̀$&#��& ,�@'� %�(#��=�!"��9$##$).� ���(�%�\%�#& ,�-���!<(���)$-#,�/��� %$-'&��,a�bcddefghijklmf�nlopm7"��� !��'&!�$ �$9�%$++- �!<�& ,�$(� ��(&%��-����)�!"� �!"��,�0�#.$(+� !����%'�!�%&#�!$�� �-'��& ��A%�(!�$ &#�� 0�'$ +� !�9$'�0���!$'��& ,�

'���,� !�3�q�%� !'&#�%$++- �!<��(&%��&'�&����'�%$++� ,�,�&��&��-/.&'.�&�9$%&#�($� !r�!"����(&%��)$-#,�/��,���� �,�!$�&%%$++$,&!��+$'��&%!�0��%$++- �!<�9- %!�$ �=��-%"�&��%�0�%��0� !�=�'�%'�&!�$ =�& ,�� !�'.!&� +� !3�@&���0��$(� ��(&%��&'�&��&'��&#�$�'�%$++� ,�,�!$���'0��&��/-s�'��& ,�(#&%���!$��A(�'�� %��& ,�� 1$<� &!-'�3tmhogujkvpmjwmpxfcucyi@&'!�%-#&'#<���0� ��!��"��"�0���/�#�!<�9'$+�_B.z{z�& ,�|��!�5&� �B!'��!=�!"���-/.&'�&����"��"#<��-�!&/#��!$�&%%$++$,&!��+�A�,.-���$'��!& ,.&#$ ��/-�#,� ���!"&!�)$-#,�� %#-,��'�!&�#=�'��!&-'& !=�� !�'!&� +� !=�$2%�=�& ,�!�%" $#$�<�-��3�wc}f�bmfhm~q��!$) �%� !�'������ 0���$ �,�&��&�%� !'&#�9$%&#�($� !=�)�!"�%$+(&%!=�+�A�,.-����!"&!�)�##�('$0�,��&� -%#�-��!$�&!!'&%!�9-!-'���'$)!"3���0�#$(.+� !�)�##�&##$)�9$'�&�+�A�$9�-����/$!"�0�'!�%&##<�)�!"� �/-�#,� ���& ,�"$'.�;$ !&##<�)�!"� �/#$%*�3�?$'��A&+(#�=�+�A�,.-���/-�#,� ���%$-#,�%$ !&� �\'�!.[$$'�%$++�'%�&#=�'�!&�#=�& ,�$'�$2%��-���=�)�!"�-((�'�[$$'�$2%��& ,�$'�'���,� !�&#�-���3�5�A�,.-���/#$%*��&##$)�9$'��� �#�.-���/-�#,� ���� �&�'& ���$9�#& ,�-����)�!"� �$ ��/#$%*3�4$++�'%�&#�-���=�('$9����$ &#�$2%��=�� !�'!&� +� !�9&%�#�!����& ,�%-#!-'&#�%� !�'��&'��� %$-'&��,3�@�,��!'�& .$'�� !�,�,���� ����$9�(&'&+$- !��+($'!& %��!$�%'�&!��&��� ���$9�(#&%�3�

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������



����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��������������

������	�
���������������������������������������������������� ����!�����"��#�����������$���"$��%����������$�����$������&����������"�����������$�$��������� ������������ ������������'��� �������(��������������)�����&����������$���!�$�����������*����+����,�����%��,������&��������"�����������$��������$������������������ ����������������$�!�$���#���)����������$���&������������$�������$���&�%��-�.����������������$�����������$����������� �$$����!���������/������ ������)�������� �����������������������������(���������&�����������������#�������������%�0��������"$��������"�����#������������$����.�#�������$$�$������������������������������� �$$��&������.������)�������������������������.�����������������.���������������������������&%�1234567�����!���$$�����������������������"�#�������+��$��8�$$�9��!��,�����,���:�������;�� �$$��&���������������%�*������)����������"����$��������<��������!����.����������������$�������#���&��<���������������������!������������.�����&������&��#���������"���������"����������������"������� �����%��=��$������������#�������"��������� �$$�$�>�$"������!�����������$����&����$������������������������������#�$����������������������$����������������������$�)��"��#��������$������%?@5AB53C�DEFA2*������������������.��������$���#���)�����������������$�������$���&������������������������&�������� �������(��������������$���������������$��������$��&�*����+����,�����������$��&�����G,�HIH�#�����&�%�*������������ ��������������������#�������!�$������.����$���&������$�������������������&�����$����������������$����$$��� ���� ��� ��%�:����$���&����$������������������������$��������$�"��������&�����������������.� �����������$���#����$���&��������������������&������&�����$�������������������$�� ������(����������������$���!�$�������������������%�J5KE@AF65L3�F3B�JL332E65L34:����������$��������$������$�������$���#���������������� ������������������������������(����������������������� �����MNO�PQ%����������������������������#��������������R�����$� %

S�T�UV�W�X�WUV���Y�����XY���U��Y�
����������"�!�����$�������������������������� ��$�������������&��� ������������#����*����+����,�����%�Z������������ ����+9-�� ��$����������������������������#�������[������������������������������&��������������������������������&��������&��$�R�����%�:��������$$".�������������������#������ �����������������"�����������!����)��������"���������������������������(���������!�����������"%�Z������������ �����������(��������������"�� ���� ��$���������������.�����������������������$�����&�!��������>��&�����������$������������� ��$����������������������\����Z������������#�]�$���R���Z����"%�,�������"�!�����$��������������������������������������������������#��������������!���̂�����+���� �9��!�%�=�����������������!����&����������������������������$#.��������������"�!�����$���������� ��$�����!���������������<���#��/����&�����������*����+����,������#�����������������������������.����$����&�����Z��������"�8�����:���������%�-���������������������&������������������*����+����,��������������$�����.������� ������ �$$� ��>� ��������\����Z�����������#�]�$���R���Z����"�����$���������������������� ����̂�����+���� �9��!������9��#� ����:!����.���$����$�����������$�������.� ��������������$"��������������������&�����9��>��:!����%�,�������"�!�����$��������������������������������$���������������#����9��>��\���������������.�!�������)�����&.����!���$"�� ��������������!�����!��&������(��������������������$�)%�Z������������ ����������(�������������"�� ���� ��$���������������.�����������������������$�����&�!��������>��&�����������$������������� ��$����������������������\����Z������������#�]�$���R���Z����"%�_W�
���XY���U��Y�MNO�PQ���� �������������������������������)������&��������������������!���*����+����,�����.� ����������������������������������$���������"�&����������%���������$�>�$"���������]+����������������)�������'����<���������#�������������\�����H̀��$��&�*����+����,�����%�



��������	�
����������������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � ����������������� ���������������

������ �!"#$%�&"!'()* "���*�%�&���$' "��+,-.�./01234/-5.60�78�16�460.9:766.:0.;�676<570794=.;�:49:>310476�/?/<0.5@�:76/4/046A�78�/4;.B13C/@�5>304<>/.�09143/@�:97//B13C/�16;�D.;./09416�15.6404./�E2.6:-./@�24:?:3.�91:C/@�.0:FG@�4/�:9404:13�879�0-.�/>::.//�78�0-.�/>2<19.1F�H94519?�D.;./09416�97>0./�9.:755.6;.;�879�0-.�/>2<19.1�19.�:76:.D0>133?�4;.604I.;�46�JKL�MNF�O766.:0476/�07�.P4/046A�16;�D3166.;�D.;./09416�6.0B79C/�7>0/4;.�78�0-.�/>2<19.1@�/>:-�1/�07�0-.�6.4A-279<-77;/�07�0-.�/7>0-@�B433�2.�9.Q>49.;F�RSTUVSVWXYXZ[W\][WZŴ�_UYW,7�45D3.5.60�0-.�̀1D3.�a433�b94c.�d7>0-�d>2<e9.1�H316@�16�7c.931?�=76.�B40-�;./4A6�A>4;.346./�9.310.;�07�2>43;46A�8795�B40-46�0-.�/>2<19.1�4/�9.:755.6;.;�07�2.�;.c.37D.;�16;�1;7D0.;�2?�0-.�,7B6/-4DF�,-.�7c.931?�=76.�B7>3;�D97c4;.�A>4;16:.�76�>/./@�;.6/404./@�16;�70-.9�2>3C�9.Q>49.5.60/�879�0-.�/>2<19.1F�,-.�7c.931?�=76.�B7>3;�34C.3?�46:3>;.�9.A>310476/�D.9014646A�07�0-.�87337B46Af�g�eDD34:124340?�78�7c.931?�=76.g�h/./�D.95400.;g�b.c.37D5.60�/016;19;/@�46:3>;46A�2>43;46A�16;�/40.�794.6010476@�/.021:C/@�54645>5i51P45>5�-.4A-0/@�9.Q>49.;�7D.6�/D1:.@�D19C<46A@�.0:Fg�H94c10.i:75576�7D.6�/D1:.�/016;19;/g�j6:.604c./�879�D>234:�/D1:./i>/./@�0-97>A-�9./4;.60413�;.6/40?�16;�:755.9:413�/Q>19.�8770�276>/./g�k.c4.B�16;�1DD97c13�D97:.;>9./�16;�/016;19;/b./4A6�A>4;.346./�B7>3;�13/7�2.�46:3>;.;�1/�D190�78�0-.�7c.931?�=76.@�B-4:-�B7>3;�D97c4;.�;49.:0476�76�579.�/>2l.:04c.�4//>./�/>:-�1/�0-.�A.6.913�1./0-.04:/�78�19:-40.:0>913�:-191:0.9@�2>43;46A�510.9413/@�/4A61A.@�16;�316;/:1D.�.3.5.60/F�


	1 - pc agenda 03-28-2019
	2 - 2019  Back of Agenda Final
	3 - Minutes of March 14 2019
	4 - Agritourism Public Hearing
	5 - Agritourism Draft Ordinance - Public Hearing
	6 - Lighting Memo
	7 - Article 54 Amendments - 03-20-2019
	ARTICLE 54 - LIGHTING
	ARTICLE 54 - LIGHTING

	8 - Lighting Articles
	ALI_ Uniformity Ratios in Ordinances
	Lighting Uniformity_ Study Shows An Imp..
	LightingPlanGuidelines

	9 - Maple Hill South
	10 - Mixed-Use District Draft 3-20-19
	11 - Maple-Hill-South-Sub-Area-Plan



